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It is said that time is the truest test of quality; this year, MTD Walkers PLC 

proudly celebrates 160 years of commitment to innovation, excellence in 

engineering and quality craftsmanship. While this tale of endurance is in itself a 

testament to our resolve, we will not rest on our accomplishments of the past, but 

will continue to stoke the fires of innovation and technology to keep delivering, 

as we always have. Your company has survived through generations, grown from 

strength to strength and is now, proudly, an unbridled conduit to Sri Lanka’s 

growth and transformation. 

We proudly present this comprehensive report reviewing the financial year 

ended 31st  March 2014, in which the group grew further to deliver a record 

breaking performance, to cement our position as one of Sri Lanka’s premier 

listed companies. The future excites us, our history empowers us and our vision 

motivates us. To all our stakeholders, a sincere thank you for your commitment to 

MTD Walkers PLC in our bid to construct success, we look forward to delivering 

greater value in the years to come. 

Constructing
Success



Vision

Mission

Corporate Values

To maximise our position at the forefront of Sri 
Lanka’s construction industry, fuelling imaginative 
possibilities for the evolution of the country by 
supplying and realising design. The totality of 
our talented workforce is intent on designing and 
delivering premium infrastructure projects to our 
valued partners.

1. Stakeholder Value Creation 

2. Integrity

3. Commitment

4. People

5. Safety

6. Service Quality

To be at the forefront of infrastructure 
development in Sri Lanka, implementing 
solutions to orchestrate its evolution.



ORGANISATION
STRUCTURE

MTD  WALKERS 

PLC
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Construction 
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Special Projects 
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Northern 
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Engineering 

Services 

(Pvt.) Limited 

(100%)
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MOMENTOUS
EVENTS

1840
An enterprising Scotsman named John 

Walker was attracted by the colonial 

outposts of the British Empire and 

arrived in Ceylon.

1840-1854
John Walker founded the entity as John Walker 

and Company, specialized in mechanical 

engineering to service the plantation sector.

1891
The firm assumed Limited Liability status 

in the UK as Walker Sons & Company.

1902 - 1975
With major infrastructure development going on at the time, Walker Sons & 

Company established itself as an expert engineering firm.

Rapid development at the Colombo Port provided opportunity for the firm 

to expand operations. A relocation was carried out moving operations from 

Kandy to Colombo allowing the Group to enter marine engineering and 

undertake some of the largest and most advanced ship repair work at the time. 

1975
Walkers were transformed into a rupee company, in keeping with the 

Ceylonisation policy of the Government of Sri Lanka. Walkers was 

involved in the installation of the first touch button elevator in Sri 

Lanka, the Maskeliya Oya project and the mega Mahaweli Diversion 

scheme.

160 years 
spent 
constructing 
success...
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2013
MTD Walkers PLC acquired Colombo 

Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd. and 

Western Air Ducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

1981
Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. enters the 

construction industry pioneering deep 

piled foundation technology in Sri Lanka, 

executing several high profile projects 

for both, the private and public sectors.

2007
MTD Capital Bhd acquired Northern Power 

Company (Pvt.) Ltd. and transferred the 

entity to MTD Walkers PLC in FYE 2011.

2006
MTD Capital Bhd acquires the Walkers 

Group of companies from Kapila Heavy 

Equipments. Group rebranded as MTD 

Walkers PLC.

2014 Expected
MTD Walkers PLC group 

explores options to enter real 

estate and renewable power 

sectors.

2009-2010
MTD Walkers PLC was restructured 

to form a fully integrated 

infrastructure solutions provider.
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GROUP
SYNERGY

As the pioneer in deep piled and heavy foundations 

in Sri Lanka, Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd has been a 

part of Sri Lanka’s evolving skyline. The Company 

benefits from the Group’s integrated approach to 

construction and engineering by working in tandem 

with Group subsidiaries for the supply of materials 

and resources including knowledge. 

Piling

Building Services
The building services sub-sector is a relatively new 

addition to our Group’s engineering portfolio. It has 

been developed to complement and enhance our 

mechanical, electrical and plumbing capabilities along 

with the addition of air conditioning, ducting and fire 

suppression systems. We expect the abundance of real 

estate and commercial property development ventures 

currently taking place throughout Sri Lanka to drive 

demand in this sub-sector.

Building Construction
As the newest sub-sector of our civil engineering portfolio, our 

building construction sub-sector benefits immensely from the 

Group’s fully integrated position through our diverse expertise 

and sourcing advantages; benefits which we share with our clients 

in terms of highly competitive, value for money pricing. With the 

Group’s capacity to design and build projects, construct deep 

piled foundations, create access roads and implement solutions  

for building services, our building construction sub-sector is 

positioned to be a key revenue driver in the years to come.
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Roads and Highways
Over the last 5 years, our roads and highways 

sub-sector has been the Group’s primary revenue 

driver. Our commitment to the Government’s push 

for infrastructure development has enabled us to 

improve the local road network while developing 

ourselves as a premier road and highway 

contractor. Going forward, we expect to grow 

further and undertake larger projects in a bid to 

connect Sri Lanka.

Power
Generation
Established in Jaffna at the height of 

civil conflict in 2007, the Northern 

Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. (NPC) 

was the first non-emergency power 

supplier to the Jaffna peninsula. After 

achieving National Grid connectivity 

in 2013, NPC will continue to light 

the way for Sri Lanka in the years to 

come while exploring options in the 

area of renewable power generation.

Heavy Engineering
and Mechanical work
As the Group’s heritage sector, all heavy engineering and 

mechanical work is executed through our Engineering Services 

sector. It comprises of the best engineering talent, geared to 

undertake some of the most complex and challenging projects 

throughout Sri Lanka. 

Shipping and Marine
Our engineering capacity in the shipping 

and marine industry is renowned for quality 

workmanship and record breaking turnaround 

time. We look forward to expanding our 

existing operations to build a larger array of 

services offered to commercial marine craft 

entering Sri Lankan waters.
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Our three pronged 
drive towards long 
term profitability 
is through: 
continual training & 
development of our 
staff, investing in the 
latest technology and 
employing the most 
efficient managerial 
practices; ensuring a 
competitive advantage 
in the years to come.

Constructing
Success

GROUP HIGHLIGHTS

Welding work at Nawala Bridge
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FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended 31st March  FYE 2014 FYE 2013 % Change FYE 2012

Earning highlights and ratios     

Group revenue  Rs.  10,092,370,612   7,389,640,196  36.6  5,853,313,323 

Group earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) Rs.  1,338,275,101   1,072,714,471  24.8  675,214,396 

Group profit before tax Rs.  730,418,809   616,733,737  18.4  421,374,635 

Group profit after tax Rs.  600,796,200   502,596,743  19.5  398,736,939 

Group profit attributable to shareholders Rs.  479,662,407   447,576,866  7.2  335,223,419 

Earning per share Rs.  4.2   3.9  7.2  2.9 

Interest cover No.of times  2.2   2.4  -6.4  2.7 

Gross profit margin % 20.9  22.5  -7.2  20.0 

Operating profit margin  % 13.3  14.5  -8.7  11.5 

Net profit margin  % 6.0  6.8  -12.5  6.8 

Return on assets  % 3.8  4.3  -10.2  4.3 

Return on equity (ROE) %  11.8   11.0  7.3  9.7 

Return on capital employed (ROCE) %  13.8   13.8  -0.3  9.7 

Financial position highlights and ratios     

Total assets Rs.  15,650,837,395   11,761,764,033  33.1 9,337,822,470

Total debt Rs.  4,603,243,765   3,178,019,052  44.8  2,853,144,930 

No. of shares in issue No.  114,357,140   114,357,140  0.0 114,357,140

Net assets value per share Rs.  41.3   37.5  10.2  33.7 

Current ratio No.of times  1.1   1.0  3.1  1.0 

Quick assets ratio No.of times  1.0   1.0  4.1  0.9 

Gearing ratio  % 47.4  41.0  15.8  41.1 

Market/ shareholder information     

Market price per share as at 31st March  Rs.  30.1  24.5 22.9 23.0

Market capitalisation Rs.  3,442,149,914   2,801,749,930  22.9  2,630,214,220 

Market price per share - highest Rs.  36.6   39.9  -8.3  77.4 

Market price per share - lowest Rs.  22.1   13.7  61.3  22.2 

* Gearing = debt/ debt + equity

Group Revenue 

Rs. million

10,092

7,390

5,853

FYE 2014

FYE 2013

FYE 2012

Total Assets

Rs. million

15,651

11,762

9,338

FYE 2014

FYE 2013

FYE 2012

Net Profit After Tax

Rs. million

601

503

399

FYE 2014

FYE 2013

FYE 2012
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OPERATIONAL 
HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL GROUP REVENUE

Rs. 10 Bn. 
The Group reached a milestone revenue of Rs.10.1 Bn. 

for the first time in its 160 year old history.

DIRECT EMPLOYMENT- GROUP

2,800 
The Group provides direct employment to over 2,800 

employees, including permanent and contract employees.

ENCASHMENT OF BONDS AND 
GUARANTEES

0 % 
During the financial year, the Group has completed all its 

projects with 0 percent claims on bonds and guarantees.

ECONOMIC VALUE ADDITION

Rs. 3 Bn. 
Group operations generated over Rs. 2.8 billion in value 

addition compared to Rs. 2.3 billion in the previous 

financial year.

GROWTH IN GROUP PAT

20% 
Astute management policies, prudent cost management 

measures and optimization of Group Synergies have enabled 

the Group to record a 19.5 percent growth year-on-year. 

GROUP EMPLOYEE RETENTION

95 % 
Operating in a complex engineering environment, the Group is 

proud to boast of a 95.0 percent retention rate of its skilled and 

experienced staff.

GROUP CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Rs. 1,207 Mn. 
The Group invested Rs. 1,207.3 million to increase capacity and 

the productivity of its fleet and machinery.

MARKET CAPITALIZATION

Rs. 3.4 Bn. 
The appreciation in share price has resulted in an 

increase of market capital of MTD Walkers PLC by 

22.9 percent. 

”
Celebrating 160 years of operations, MTD Walkers PLC is 
journeying rapidly towards its vision of being at the forefront of 
infrastructure development in Sri Lanka.
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CHAIRMAN’S 
MESSAGE

Since 31st March 2011, the Group has 
quadrupled its revenue and for the first 
time in its 160 year history, recorded 
Rs.10.1 billion in turnover for the year 
ended 31st March 2014.

”

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am 

pleased to present the Annual Report and 

Financial Statements of MTD Walkers PLC 

for the financial year ended 31st March 2014. 

MTD Walkers PLC is one of the oldest 

companies in Sri Lanka with a history 

dating back to 1854, when it was first 

established as a manufacturer of tea 

machinery. Today MTD Walkers PLC the far 

more diversified and has ventured out into 

other areas of engineering, including: piling 

(heavy foundations), road construction, 

steel fabrication, ship repairing and power 

generation. 

Thanks to its home grown engineering 

expertise, coupled with the strengths of 

its major shareholder, MTD Capital Bhd 

a leading Malaysian-based infrastructure 

development company with offices in 

15 countries, MTD Walkers PLC has 

successfully undertaken challenging 

domestic projects. The Group has 

continued to build on its solid foundation of 

engineering and design to position itself as 

one of the top infrastructure developers in 

Sri Lanka.

The country, in its quest for development 

has focused on establishing a solid 

infrastructure base; offering many 

opportunities for MTD Walkers PLC.  

Financial Highlights

Since 31st March 2011, the Group has 

quadrupled its revenue and for the first time 

in its 160 years of history, recorded Rs.10.1 

billion in turnover for the financial year 

2014. A consolidated group effort ensured 

the Group profitability grow in tandem with 

its revenue trajectory. As of 31st March 2014, 

gross profit rose by 26.7 percent to Rs. 2.1 

billion and Group operating profit jumped by 

24.8 percent to Rs.1.3 billion year-on-year.

Group net profit for the year under review 

amounted to Rs. 600.8 million compared 

to Rs. 502.6 million a year ago, helped by 

top line growth and measures implemented 
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towards cost management and control. The 

Group financial position remains in healthy 

financial position with total assets at Rs. 

15.7 billion and total equity at Rs. 5.1 billion 

at the end of March 2014.

Operational milestones

As of October 2013, the Group successfully 

connected its subsidiary, Northern Power 

Company (Pvt.) Ltd., to the National Grid. 

This is a significant achievement for the 

Group as Northern Power plays a crucial 

role in supplying power to the Northern 

region of Sri Lanka through its 30-megawatt 

thermal power plant in Chunnakam, Jaffna. 

With the increasing development of Sri 

Lanka, energy demand is anticipated to 

increase in tandem with economic growth 

and Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. is 

strategically positioned to meet such needs.

Another subsidiary, Walker Sons & 

Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd. rehabilitated 

some of the major dams in the country. It 

also rehabilitated the 48,000-metric tonne 

crude oil tank at the refinery of Ceylon 

Petroleum Corp., which is the largest in Sri 

Lanka. at the refinery of Ceylon Petroleum 

Corp. This is a true reflection of the Group’s 

civil and  mechanical engineering expertise 

and the ability to effectively execute projects 

entailing both disciplines. 

Meanwhile, subsidiaries CML-MTD 

Construction Limited and Walkers Piling 

(Pvt.) Ltd were involved in a number of 

major civil engineering projects, which 

among others, included the A32 road 

project in Mannar, the Narammala Girulla 

road project, the replacement of the 

Polduwa Bridge, widening of the Parliament 

Bridge at Kotte and piling work for the new 

Defence Headquarters at Akuregoda during 

the financial year ended 2014.

Besides the completion of major 

infrastructure projects, the Group was 

also focused on winning the competitive 

edge in the industry during the financial 

year under review. Towards this end, 

we have made significant progress in 

resource management with timely response 

to complex design and construction 

demands of the market, which contributed 

significantly to the achievement of the 

financial year’s results. We have also 

invested in skills development in terms of 

technical and vocational training, we believe  

a skilled and knowledgeable workforce is 

the key success factor to be the preferred 

contractor in the increasingly competitive 

infrastructure landscape.

Prospects

The Group remains upbeat on the long-

term prospects of the industry in Sri 

Lanka given the country’s current growth 

trajectory as well as the increasing inflow 

of foreign investments. According to the 

Asian Development Bank (ADB), Sri Lanka’s 

economy is expected to grow at 7.5 percent 

in the calendar year 2014, one of the 

highest growth rates in the region. For the 

calendar year 2013, the country’s GDP rose 

7.3 percent, a 100 basis point increase from 

the 6.3 percent seen in the previous year.

The construction sector, comprising: 

building, highway, bridge, water supply and 

drainage, irrigation, land drainage, dredging 

and reclamation, contributed 10 percent to 

GDP last year and is expected to remain the 

driving sub-sector in the next few years. 

In line with the sector’s buoyant prospects 

and as a pioneer in the industry, the Group 

is anticipated to remain a key beneficiary 

of the Government’s policy to accelerate 

economic growth through infrastructure 

development supported by local, bilateral 

and multilateral funding, which is already 

in place. 

Nevertheless, the market remains 

competitive and challenging, and as such, 

the Group will continue to strive to enhance 

its competitive edge by implementing more 

effective management and cost control 

measures and innovative engineering to 

ensure our long-term and sustainable 

success.

Meanwhile, the Group has also identified 

the potential in the real estate sector, which 

we believe is still in its infancy and is 

expected to grow in tandem with the growth 

in demand for housing as per capita income 

levels rise. As such, the Group intends to 

capitalise on its strengths in construction 

and expand its operations into this sector.  

On the corporate front, the Group is 

undergoing a change of logo as part of  a 

corporate rebranding exercise aimed at 

streamlining and enhancing the Group’s 

identity and strength within the industry.  

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to 

extend our appreciation to our shareholders 

for your trust and confidence in the Group. 

I would also like to thank the management 

team and staff of MTD Walkers PLC and 

all its subsidiaries for their leadership and 

contributions in pursuit of the Group’s goals 

and objectives. Last but not least, I would 

like to thank my fellow board members 

for their wisdom and guidance during the 
financial year under review. 

DATO’ DR. AZMIL KHALILI BIN DATO’ 

KHALID

Chairman

25th August 2014

We have made 
significant progress in 
resource management 
with timely response 
to complex design and 
construction demands 
of the market, 
which contributed 
significantly to the 
achievement of 
the financial year’s 
results.
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GROUP EXECUTIVE DEPUTY 
CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

With the shackles of humanitarian 

operations spanning 3 decades in Sri 

Lanka, reaching its end in 2009, the island’s 

hunger for rapid growth and development 

has been palpable to say the very least. The 

policies and actions of the Government over 

the last few years have set Sri Lanka on a 

path where infrastructure development has 

been made a pivotal goal. We are proud 

to be a major contributor at this defining 

moment. From a global standpoint, Sri 

Lanka’s overall statistics are particularly 

encouraging; the economy has rebounded, 

expanding by 7.3 percent in 2013, preceded 

by the 6.3 percent growth recorded in 2012, 

foreign reserves have risen 4.6 percent 

year-on-year while inflation has been 

steadily declining to its current position at 

below 5.0 percent. 

My review herein looks at our performance 

in the financial year ended 2014 and sets 

out how we intend to action our strategy 

to overcome the complexities that the Sri 

Lankan infrastructure landscape presents in 

addition to exploring opportunities to excel 

in our primary sectors, while maximizing 

value for our stakeholders.

Constructing Success 

The ingredients to the simple recipe that 

has been our mantra and driving force 

behind our success are three key ideas: 

“Improve Productivity”, “Innovative Cost 

Saving Measures” and “Pursue Excellence”. 

To meet and exceed the goals set by our 

corporate strategy, we focus on employee 

engagement at all levels to ensure that 

the overall company goals are effectively 

communicated to our workforce – who is 

the driving force for productivity, innovation 

and excellence.

During the financial year under review, 

MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

were involved in some of Sri Lanka’s 

most prominent infrastructure projects, 

including a portion of the multimillion Dollar 

The policies and actions of the 
Government over the last few years have 
set Sri Lanka on the path to rapid growth 
by making infrastructure development as 
one of its primary goals.

”
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Hambantota Road Network Development 

and the World Bank sponsored Nalanda 

Dam rehabilitation project. The confidence 

placed in our Group’s ability to successfully 

execute large scale engineering projects is 

further strengthened by the list of confirmed 

projects lining our order books, extending 

well into 2017.

Achieving engineering excellence in all 

spheres of its operations, MTD Walkers 

PLC and its subsidiaries continue to gain 

momentum in its journey to “Constructing 

Success”, as it celebrates its 160th year of 

operations.

Financial Performance

Achieving an extraordinary financial 

performance, the Group closed its financial 

year by not only quadrupling its revenue 

with a Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

(CAGR) of 39.2 percent since 31st March 

2011, but also reaching a top line of Rs. 

10.1 billion for the first time in its 160 year 

history.  

The impressive revenue achieved for the 

year depicted an increase of 36.6 percent 

compared to Rs. 7.4 billion in the preceding 

year. Remaining aggressive in our cost 

control efforts the Group recorded a 26.7 

percent increase in gross profit at Rs. 2.1 

billion compared to Rs. 1.7 billion recorded 

in the previous financial year.

To complement the rapid expansion of 

the Group’s operational activities, our 

cadre is being enhanced by recruiting 

some of the best talent available in Sri 

Lanka and abroad. Our training and 

mentoring programs are designed to 

draw in young graduates looking for 

real world experience and have proven 

to be a tremendous success with a high 

percentage of applicants taking up full time 

positions in the Group. This increase in 

cadre has resulted in administrative costs 

increasing by 26.1 percent in comparison 

to the previous financial year - a calculated 

and conscious decision, made to prepare 

for what we foresee to be a busy future. 

The increased administrative cost was 

cushioned by our record breaking top 

line figure and through controlling non-

essential cost, the Group was able to post 

an operating profit of Rs. 1.3 billion, which 

is 24.8 percent higher than the previous 

financial year.  Despite precautions taken to 

reduce our funding costs, as a result of the 

increased funding needed for the Group’s 

expansion activities, the net finance cost 

increased by 33.3 percent to Rs. 607.9 

million in comparison to Rs. 456.0 million 

in the previous financial year. The Group 

is currently implementing strategies for 

the next financial year to contain further 

increase in the finance costs.  Overall, 

the Group takes pride in its achievement 

in reporting a 19.5 percent increase in 

profit after tax of Rs. 600.8 million for the 

financial year ended 31st March 2014.

In terms of segmented results, the flagship 

segment of our Group, the Civil Engineering 

sector, contributed 79.3 percent of Group 

revenue, registering a growth of 65.3 

percent year-on-year. The Power Generation 

and Engineering Service sectors contributed 

a combined 19.5 percent to the Group 

revenue.

Strategic Focus

We were persistent in our efforts to enhance 

the repertoire of our key competencies, 

in order to carry out our expansion plans, 

with a view to gain leverage to reinforce 

our commanding position in the industry. 

Our strategic focus in the financial year 

under review was to gain a competitive 

edge in the infrastructure industry in Sri 

Lanka by leveraging our skilled and expert 

engineering workforce. In this spirit, we 

took on the challenges boldly and made 

necessary changes strategically to position 

ourselves as a driving force in the industry.

We were persistent in 
our efforts to enhance 
the repertoire of our 
key competencies in 
order to carry out our 
expansion plans with a 
view to gain leverage 
to reinforce our 
commanding position 
in the industry.
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Group Synergies 

Our organisational structure is finely 

synchronised to avail ourselves of the 

synergy between the different elements of 

the Group. This year, in keeping with our 

strategic focus, we made greater efforts 

to strengthen and increase the efficiency 

of the shared services of the Group. 

Group synergies complement each of our 

subsidiaries, allowing each to bid for large 

scale projects that require the services of 

another subsidiary within the Group. This 

flexibility has undoubtedly augmented our 

revenue and our position as a topmost 

infrastructure partner in the nation’s 

development drive.

Human Capital

We truly believe in the merits of 

empowering employees, who with their 

skills, dedication and commitment, remain 

the mainstay of our operations enabling 

us to reach the myriad milestones we have 

achieved in our journey spanning 160 years.

We seek to embody a work culture that 

enables and rewards performance, without 

conceding to any form of social prejudice. 

This financial year witnessed greater 

commitment towards employee wellbeing 

and training. We revisited and strengthened 

our practices to ensure a proper balance 

between personal and professional lives, 

with a particular focus on improving health 

and safety standards for all employees 

across all sites in accordance with local 

and international standards. Needless 

to say, construction is one of the most 

hazardous among all industries and the 

safety of our staff is never considered to 

be a trivial matter. To mitigate exposure 

to these inherent risks, we have invested 

in countless training programs to 

communicate the importance of a safety 

conscious culture and maintained ISO 

(International Organisation Standards)

compliant standards across the Group. 

In the financial year under review, our 

training programs effectively covered 975 

employees, a testament to the commitment 

and resourcefulness of our human capital 

management team.

Corporate Social Responsibility

While we are driven by value maximization 

for our shareholders, we understand that 

profitability alone will not define a good 

company. The Group undertook several 

projects under our social responsibility 

strategy, for the benefit of the communities 

around our active sites. In the financial year 

under review, one of the most noteworthy 

CSR projects we undertook was a project 

to provide 30,000 litres of drinking water 

per day to the communities from villages 

of Anuradhapura, carried out by the 

Group’s subsidiary, CML-MTD Construction 

Limited. This project is aimed at assisting 

the Government to reduce the incidence of 

chronic kidney disease in the rural areas of 

Sri Lanka. 

Recognition for Financial 
Reporting 

Our Annual Report for the FYE 2013 titled 

“Engineering the future” was acclaimed 

with a “Silver Award” in the construction 

category by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka. This award, 

while validating our commitment to 

accountability, transparency and quality 

of reporting, redoubles our motivation to 

improve our reporting standards. 

Beyond FYE 2014

Going beyond financial year 2014 and 

looking to the future, we see boundless 

opportunity for greater value creation for 

our stakeholders. With the present direction 

of macroeconomic policy in the country, 

we believe it is an opportune time for us to 

drive for even more growth and expansion. 

We truly believe in the 
merits of empowering 
employees who, with 
their skills, dedication 
and commitment, 
remain the mainstay 
of our operations 
enabling us to reach 
the myriad milestones 
we have achieved in 
our journey spanning 
160 years.

GROUP EXECUTIVE DEPUTY 
CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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Sri Lanka has made steady progress and 

achieved economic growth rates that 

are higher than the regional average. As 

a country moves from the status of a 

developing country to a middle income 

country, the first step in the transition 

is the infrastructure expansion, the 

foundation on which future growth of 

the country will be based. This emphasis 

on infrastructure development with a 

strong focus on transport infrastructure, 

energy infrastructure, water management 

infrastructure and communication 

infrastructure; are positives for MTD 

Walkers PLC as these are areas in which 

the Company and its subsidiaries have firm 

footholds to capitalise in the envisaged 

future development of the country.

Our horizons in the long term, however, 

are set beyond traditional infrastructure 

solutions. We have mapped our path to a 

course of green infrastructure; a concept 

that highlights the importance of the 

natural environment in the decision making 

process , and as such aims to have a 

minimal impact on nature. As a responsible 

corporate citizen, we shall make a concerted   

effort to integrate green initiatives in all 

Group strategies and initiatives. 

MTD Walkers PLC envisages to be among 

the “Top Twenty Listed Companies in Sri 

Lanka” by 2016, and the consistent year on 

year improvement the Group has shown in 

the recent years makes us certain that this 

is a goal well within our reach.

Appreciations

I wish to place on record my commendation 

and my appreciation of our Chairman and 

the Board for their farsighted leadership 

extended to carry out our corporate 

mission. To the dynamic team at MTD 

Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries; thank 

you for your outstanding work, loyalty 

and commitment to accomplish this 

record breaking performance. I trust I will 

have your support in the coming years to 

position MTD Walkers PLC as not only one 

of the top twenty listed companies in Sri 

Lanka but also as the premier infrastructure 

solutions provider in Sri Lanka. 

To our customers, business partners and all 

stakeholders, thank you for your loyalty in 

our bid to constructing success.

Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga

Group Executive Deputy Chairman

25th  August 2014
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MESSAGES FROM
 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY DIRECTORS

“Our project portfolio continued to be a strong and healthy mix of 

prestigious large scale infrastructure development projects covering 

the entire gamut of civil engineering services. Going forward, we expect 

to engage in an even closer partnership with the Urban Development 

Authority in a bid to achieve the ambitious targets of the Urban 

Regeneration Programme, aimed at transforming the living standards of 

Colombo’s underserved communities. We will also work with the Road 

Development Authority to contribute our expertise and capacity to the 

planned expressway to Sri Lanka’s Hill Capital, set to commence in the 

coming year. While we work on these two major projects connecting 

Sri Lanka’s biggest cities, we have also invested considerable resources 

in equipping ourselves to take on projects in the water sector. Going 

forward, CML-MTD Construction plans to be a major part of ensuring 

that all Sri Lankan’s have ready access to safe drinking water, the water 

sector, another area drawing major focus from the Government. Our 

performance and delivery has been commended by clients and funding 

agencies alike, allowing us to compete in bigger forums, undertaking 

greater and more complex projects geared to take Sri Lanka in to the future.”

Dian Jayasuriya

Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer

CML-MTD Construction Limited

“We aspire to be the market leader in deep piled 

foundations, design, construction and solutions 

provider for all heavy foundation works. This 

year we worked diligently towards our aspiration 

by building capacity, laying firm foundations for 

further expansion of our business.” 

Dayawansa Wijemanne

Managing Director

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd.
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Kiran Atapattu 

Chief Operating Officer

Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

“With another year of award winning 

performance, we have cemented our position 

as Sri Lanka’s premier marine engineering 

services provider. With the growth and support 

of the Group, along with the Government’s 5 

hubs strategy, we are positioned to contribute 

further to the value creation initiatives of the 

Group and our stakeholders”. 

“In 2013, Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. was 

elevated to becoming a national power supplier by 

partnering with the Ceylon Electricity Board to attain 

national grid connectivity. What started off as the only 

non-emergency power supplier to the Jaffna peninsula, 

at the height of conflict, is today a key contributor to 

empowering Sri Lanka.”

Lal Perera

Director

Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd.

“Every individual in our team has contributed immensely 

in whatever capacity expected; allowing us to attain the 

unprecedented growth witnessed over the last five years. 

Our people are, without contest, the most valuable part 

of the company, enabling us to be true to our heritage, 

reputation and consistently deliver without fail.”

Lal Perera

Director/ Chief Executive Officer

Walker Sons and Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd.
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As a premier publicly 
listed engineering 
company, we 
ensure excellence 
in every aspect of 
our operations, a 
sentiment that is 
maintained through 
our Corporate 
Governance and risk 
mitigation strategy.

Constructing
Success

Piling work at Mathugama
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

1. Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid

 Chairman

2. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga 

 Group Executive Deputy Chairman

3. Leong Yow Lee 

 Director

4. Keith George Cowling 

 Director

1 2 3 4
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5. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah 

 Director

6. Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya

 Director

7. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne

 Director

8. Prashanie Saroja Attygalle

 Company Secretary

5 6 7 8
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Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid

Chairman

Non-Independent / Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid was 

appointed as Chairman of MTD Walkers 

PLC on 23rd May 2007. He graduated with 

a Bachelors Degree in Civil Engineering and 

subsequently obtained a Master in Business 

Administration. He began his career at 

Tarmac National Construction a Company 

based in United Kingdom, and upon 

his return to Malaysia worked for Trust 

International Insurance and Citibank NA.

Dato’ Dr. Azmil is the President and Chief 

Executive Officer of AlloyMtd Group, where 

he held the position of General Manager, 

Corporate Planning, and on joining MTD 

Capital Bhd in 1993, assumed the helm 

as Group Managing Director in 1996. On 

1st June 2009, he was re designated as 

President and Chief Executive Officer. He 

concurrently holds the same position in 

the listed subsidiary of MTD Capital Bhd 

namely, MTD ACPI Engineering Berhad 

and is also the Chairman and Independent 

Non-Executive Director of another listed 

company, Daya Materials Berhad.

Dato’ Dr. Azmil holds directorships and is 

the President and Chief Executive Officer 

in other public companies namely, MTD 

InfraPerdana Bhd, and Metacorp Berhad, 

both are subsidiaries of MTD Capital 

Bhd; and ANIH Berhad, a toll concession 

company. Dato’ Dr. Azmil also a director 

of Environment Idaman Sdn. Bhd, a solid 

waste concession company, a Trustee of 

the Perdana Leadership Foundation; and 

Chairman Pro-tempore of the Malaysian 

Philippines Business Council. Dato’ Dr. 

Azmil also sits on the boards of several 

other private limited companies.

Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga

Group Executive Deputy Chairman

Non-Independent / Executive Director

Mr. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga is the 

Executive Deputy Chairman of MTD Walkers 

PLC, Sri Lanka. He was appointed to the 

board in February 2012. A Fellow Member 

of The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Sri Lanka and a Fellow Member of 

the Chartered Institute of Management 

Accountants, UK. Mr. Amaratunga was 

awarded First in Order of Merit Prize at 

the final examination of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.  Mr. 

Amaratunga currently serves as a Director 

of People’s Bank and People’s Merchant 

Finance PLC.  He is also the Chairman of 

People’s Insurance Limited. He counts 

over 25 years of experience in the fields of 

finance and management. Mr. Amaratunga 

has served as a consultant and director 

to a number of corporations and private 

business entities. At the national conference 

of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Sri Lanka, he presented a paper titled “Value 

for money accounting”, which is one of 

the many notable achievements that stand 

out in his career. He was also a member 

of the Governing Council of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Leong Yow Lee

Director

Non-Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leong Yow Lee was appointed as 

Director of MTD Walkers PLC on the 23rd 

of May 2007. Mr. Lee holds a Master in 

Business Administration (Finance) from 

University of Leicester, United Kingdom, 

and is a member of the Association 

of International Accountants, United 

Kingdom. He joined AlloyMtd Group as 

Finance Manager of MTD Prime Sdn Bhd in 

August 1994 and was promoted to Group 

Financial Controller of MTD Capital Bhd in 

August 1997. He was appointed as General 

Manager, Head of Operations of AlloyMtd 

Group in October 2001, Executive Vice 

President, Head, Finance and Treasury 

Division in April 2009 till his retirement on 

29th July 2011. 

In September 2011, he served as Executive 

Director, Special Projects of MTD Project 

Management Services Sdn Bhd under 

a two (2) year contract. Prior to joining 

AlloyMtd Group, he was with Citibank N.A., 

as Financial Controller, Bank Cards business 

and with Exxon group of companies in 

Malaysia heading various accounting 

sections in Controllers Department.

Mr. Lee is a Non-Independent Non-

Executive Director of MTD Capital Bhd and 

MTD ACPI Engineering Berhad, a listed 

subsidiary of MTD Capital Bhd Mr. Lee is 

also a Director of Touch ‘n Go Sdn Bhd, an 

electronic toll collection operator.

Keith George Cowling

Director

Non-Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Keith George Cowling was appointed as 

Director of MTD Walkers PLC on 23rd May 

2007. He is a Chartered Engineer and holds 

a Bachelor in Civil Engineering from Dundee 

University, Scotland. He is also a member 

of the Institute of Civil Engineers, United 

Kingdom and a Fellow of the Institute of 

Engineers, Malaysia where he served on 

committees including being the Chairman 

of the Tunneling and Underground Space 

Technical Division.

His experiences include service with the 

City of Dundee District Council (1972-1976) 

in Dundee, Scotland, Mason Pittendrigh 

& Partners (1976-1977) in Edinburgh, 

Scotland, Auscon Consultants (1979) and 

Petroleum Development Oman (1980-1981) 

in the Sultanate of Oman, and Maunsell 

Consultants Asia (1980-1984) in Hong 

Kong.

Mr. Cowling joined AlloyMtd Group in 1984, 

serving in various capacities from Engineer 

to Chief Engineer, General Manager, Head 

of Business Development, Executive Vice 

President, Head of Business Development 

& Manufacturing Division and his current 

position as Executive Vice President - Head 

of Manufacturing Division. He has been the 

Non-Independent Executive Director of MTD 

ACPI Engineering Bhd since 15th August 

2006 and also sits on the boards of several 

private limited companies.

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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Albert Rasakantha Rasiah

Director

Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah was 

appointed to the Board of MTD Walkers 

PLC in May 2007. He has over 40 years 

of experience in the financial sector, 

both locally and abroad. He holds board 

positions of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC, 

Nations Trust Bank PLC and E B Creasy 

Group of Companies. Mr. Rasiah, is the 

Chairman of  Ceylon Pencil Company 

Limited, a committee member of the 

Institute of Directors and a visiting 

lecturer in Finance at the Post Graduate 

Institute of Management (PIM). He was 

the Director Finance of Nestlè Lanka PLC 

for over a decade before retiring; and 

was also a visiting lecturer in Finance and 

Accounting for Nestlè SA (International) 

for Asia Oceanic region. Mr. Albert Rasiah 

is a Science Graduate of the University of 

Ceylon and a fellow member of the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya

Director

Independent / Non- Executive Director

Mr. Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya, 

who was appointed to the Board of MTD 

Walkers PLC, in February 2012, is an 

aeronautical engineer, scientist, economist 

and is a Conservative Member of the 

European Parliament elected from the SE 

England. He is the Vice President of the 

Development Committee, ECR Coordinator 

and Conservative Spokesman for Overseas’ 

Development and Cooperation. He was the 

Co Leader of the Parliamentary Delegation 

to the UN World Summit and General 

Assembly 2006, Chairman Working Group A 

of Development Committee overseeing Asia, 

Central Asia and Far East; Co Coordinator 

Assembly of 79 Parliaments of the EU-ACP 

2004 and the President EU India Chamber 

of Commerce from 2005. In 2012 he stood 

for and came runner up, beating the Liberal 

candidate into 3rd place to be the President 

(Speaker) to the European Parliament.

He was the first Asian to be elected as a 

Conservative Member of British Parliament, 

first Asian MP to serve in the British 

Government as PPS in the Scottish office 

and first Asian born MP to be elected to the 

European Parliament. He was nominated 

as a candidate to succeed Kofi Annan as 

Secretary General to the UN in 2006. He is 

a Hon. Ambassador without portfolio for 

Sri Lanka; the first Asian to be appointed 

as Her Majesty’s Deputy Lord Lieutenant 

for Greater London, representing The 

Queen on official occasions since 1985. He 

was awarded the honour “ViswaKirthi Sri 

Lanka Abhimani “by the buddhist clergy 

for his services to Sri Lanka and given 

the Knighthood with Merit of the Sacred 

Constantinian Military Order of St. George 

for his global work on poverty eradication. 

He is a Fellow of the Royal Society for Arts, 

Manufacture and Commerce (Est: 1765).

Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal 

Wijeratne

Director

Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal 

Wijeratne is the Chairman of the Rank 

Group of Companies, which has diverse 

interests in property, logistics, waste 

management, hydro power & wind energy 

and entertainment. Mr. Wijeratne owns 

the largest dry port in Sri Lanka, namely 

Rank Container Terminals Limited. Mr. 

Wijeratne gained his higher education from 

the London School of Accountancy and 

Management, United Kingdom.

Returning to Sri Lanka in late 1980’s, he 

co-founded the Grayline Group in 1987. 

He entered the business of property 

development, which led to interests in a 

range of business sectors.
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GROUP MANAGEMENT
 COMMITTEE

1. J. P. Amaratunga

 Management Committee Chairman

2. Md S. B. Mohamed

 Management Committee Member

3.  D. D. Wijemanne

 Management Committee Member

4. K. G. Cowling

 Management Committee Member

5.  O. D. N. L. Perera

 Management Committee Member

6.  D. N. Jayasuriya

 Management Committee Member

1

2

3

4

5

6
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7.  Z. A. B. Powzie

 Management Committee Member

8.  S. A. Cabraal

 Management Committee Member

9. M. B. M. Salleh

 Management Committee Member

10.  V. de Silva

 Management Committee Member

11. Md. R. B. M. Salleh

 Management Committee Member

12. Prashanie Saroja Attygalle

 Management Committee Secretary

13. A. Duckworth

 Management Committee Secretary

7

8

9

10

11

12

13



28

A
n
n
u
al R

ep
o
rt 2

0
1
3
/1

4

GROUP CORPORATE 
MANAGEMENT

1. Shiran Cabraal    

Director / General Manager 

 CML– MTD Construction Limited

2. Tulsi Wallooppillai

 Director - Infrastructure 

 MTD Walkers Projects Limited

3. Zainal Abidin Bin Powzie

 Executive Director 

 CML – MTD Construction Limited

4. Viraj de Silva

 Group Chief Financial Officer 

 MTD Walkers PLC

5. Prashanie Saroja Attygalle 

 Group Company Secretary and Head of 

Corporate Communication

 MTD Walkers PLC

6. Mohammed Najab

 Group Safety & Compliance Manager

 MTD Walkers PLC

7. Susil Kumara Silva

 Group Human Resources Manager /

Head of Human Resources 

 MTD Walkers PLC

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
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8. Mahesh Yogarajan

 Head of Corporate Finance and 

Treasury

 MTD Walkers PLC

9. Tyrell Clifford  

 Group Procurement Manager 

 MTD Walkers PLC

10. Lakmal Gunarathne

 Head of Group Internal Audit 

 MTD Walkers PLC

11. Pulathisi Punchihewa

 General Manager - Finance 

 CML – MTD Construction Limited

12. Nimal Perera 

 General Manager -  

Project Operations 

 CML – MTD Construction Limited

13. Kawinda Karunathilaka

 Chief Operating Officer 

 Walkers Piling (Private) Limited

8 9 10 11 12 13
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GROUP CORPORATE 
MANAGEMENT

14. A.M.D.B Atapattu

 Plant Manager 

 Northern Power Company  

(Private) Limited

15. Alex Duckworth 

 Deputy General Manager -  

Project Development  

 CML – MTD Construction Limited

16. Upula Dharmawardana

 Deputy General Manager -  

Project Division 

 Walker Sons & Company Engineers 

(Private) Limited

17. Douglas Wegiriya

 Deputy General Manager -  

Project Operations  

(Water Supply)

 CML– MTD Construction Limited 

18. Shanaka Cabraal 

 Group Deputy General Manager -  

Plant & Equipment 

 CML – MTD Construction Limited

19. Lalinda Kalubowila

 Deputy General Manager  

(Quarry Operations) & Chief Executive 

Officer Special Projects Company 

(Private) Limited

20. Siraj Zakariya

 Deputy General Manager - Finance

 CML– MTD Construction Limited

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
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21. Ananda Gunatilleke

 Deputy General Manager – Safety, 

Security and Logistics

 CML– MTD Construction Limited

22. L.A Lalith Liyanarachchi

 Senior Manager Building 

Construction 

 CML– MTD Construction Limited

23. Alex Douglas 

 Manager - IT

 MTD Walkers PLC

24. Rozan Jameel 

 Manager Finance 

 MTD Walkers PLC

25. Hari Mahadeva 

 Corporate Affairs 

 Northern Power Company   

(Private) Limited 

26. Thilan Wijesinghe 

 Director – Strategy

 MTD Walkers PLC

21 22 23 24 25 26
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REPORT ON
 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance 
Philosophy

At MTD Walkers PLC our Corporate 

Governance philosophy stems from the 

belief that Corporate Governance is a key 

element in improving efficiency and growth 

as well as enhancing investor confidence 

through transparent reporting and 

accountability. 

The Corporate Governance philosophy 

that MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

upholds is: “As a good corporate citizen, 

the Group is committed to sound corporate 

practices based on conscience, openness, 

fairness, professionalism and accountability 

in building the confidence of the Group’s 

various stakeholders thereby paving the 

way for the Group’s long term success.”

It is against this backdrop that MTD Walkers 

PLC and its Subsidiaries are pleased to 

state that it is fully compliant with all the 

mandatory provisions of the Companies 

Act, Inland Revenue Act, the Listing Rules 

of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and 

the Rules of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC). Our 

practices are in line with the Code of Best 

Practice on Corporate Governance; jointly 

advocated by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and the 

SEC.

Governance Framework

The Group endeavours to balance both 

growth and efficiency with governance 

and ethics. Our Board of Directors, guided 

by the mission statement, endeavours 

to formulate strategies and policies 

that optimises the value for various 

stakeholders. 

The Group’s Corporate Governance 

mechanism is based on the following three 

key elements:

1. Internal Governance Structure

 Comprising of committees, systems 

and processes that inculcate a culture 

of good governance and ensuring the 

sustainability of the organisation

2. External Governance Structure

 Comprising of applicable laws, 

regulations and best business practices 

complied by the Group

3. Assurance

 The supervisory module of the Group’s 

Corporate Governance framework that 

ensures the integrity of operations 

Shareholders

Chairman 

Board of Directors 

Board Sub-

Committees

Management 

Committee

Employee 

Empowerment

Compliance

Governance issued jointly by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Sri Lanka and the Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka

Exchange

as amended applicable to MTD 

Walkers PLC

Assurance 

Independent assurance to the Board 

Audit Committee (Internal Audit 

Department) 

External audit of consolidated financial 

statements of MTD Walkers PLC and 

the financial statements of the Group 

subsidiaries

External audit by the International 

Organisation for Standardization  on 

Quality, Environment, Occupational 

Health and Safety
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1.Internal Governance Structure

The internal governance structure 

encompasses;

1.1. The Board of Directors (BOD)

1.2. Board Sub-Committees

1.3. Management Committees

1.4. Internal Policies 

 The key components being:

ethics

policies pertaining to sustainability

1.5. Ownership Structure

1.1. The Board of Directors

 The Board of Directors sets the 

strategic objectives of MTD Walkers 

PLC and reviews the detailed 

planning and implementation of 

those objectives and policies, via 

the management committee, in 

accordance with the Board assigned 

risk parameters. The Board also 

monitors compliance with the policies 

and actual performance against set 

objectives through regular dialogue 

with management personnel. 

1.1.1. Principle Responsibilities and   

Duties of the Board

 The Board’s main responsibilities and 

duties are as below;

the Group in the establishment of its 

strategies, with an emphasis on the 

medium and long term strategies, 

in pursuit of its operational and 

financial goals

budget plans

processes with an emphasis on top 

management succession planning

performance of Chief Executive 

Officers (CEOs) of subsidiary 

companies in the Group

and compliance

control and risk management

discretions/ authorities delegated 

from the Board to the executive levels

No. of 

Members

Executive Non- 

Executive

Independent Non-

Independent 

Gender 

Representation

Age Distribution

Male Female Below 

50

50-

60

60-

70

07 01 06 04 03 07 Nil Nil 04 03

acquisitions, takeovers, disposals 

and capital expenditure, which can 

amount to a major transaction in 

terms of the Companies Act No. 07 

of 2007

material changes, which requires 

shareholder approval

1.1.3. Composition of the Board

 As at 31st March 2014, the Board of 

MTD Walkers PLC consisted of 07 

Directors. The composition of the 

Board is as follows:

1.1.2. Board Meetings and Participation

 The internal guidelines designed for 

Board Meetings facilitate informed and 

efficient decision making by the Board. 

Board Meetings are convened when 

business exigencies arise.

 At each of these meetings the 

respective Chief Executive Officers/ 

Managing Directors, of each subsidiary 

of the Group, presents the Board 

with progress updates regarding the 

implementation of approved business 

strategies, operational performance 

and funding strategies. The Board 

also receives reports from the Board 

sub-committees and may also receive 

reports from the Company Secretary, 

who is also the secretary of the Group 

subsidiaries, on any relevant Corporate 

Governance matters. 

 Directors’ attendance at Board 

Meetings is as follows:

Names of Directors Attended

Number of meetings held 3

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili bin Dato’ Khalid 3/3

Mr. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga 3/3

Mr. Keith George Cowling 3/3

Mr. Leong Yow Lee 3/3

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah 2/3

Mr. Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya 3/3

Mr. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne 1/3
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1.1.4. The Chairman

 The Chairman provides leadership 

to the Board and is responsible for 

the governance and the effective 

operations of the Board. The 

Chairman also sets the agenda, 

style and the tone of the Board 

deliberations and ensures that 

opinions of all Directors are 

appropriately considered in decision 

making.

Key responsibilities of the Chairman:

effectiveness and setting the quality 

for the governance and ethical 

framework

working relations are maintained 

between the Executive and Non-

Executive members of the Board

Secretary, that Board procedures 

are followed and information is 

distributed in a timely manner to the 

Board Members

1.1.5. Board Induction and Training

 New Directors are provided with 

an induction on joining the Board; 

apprising them comprehensively 

on the values and culture of MTD 

Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries, 

the operations of the Group and 

its strategies, policies, governance 

framework and processes. In 

addition, their responsibilities as  

Directors in terms of the applicable 

rules and regulations are reiterated.

 The Directors have access to 

information that is required to 

execute their duties as a Director. 

The Group has established 

procedures that enable Directors 

to seek information and advice 

of the Company Secretary, who 

is also the Company Secretary of 

other subsidiaries, and opinion of 

other independent professionals as 

required. 

1.1.6. Board Responsibility of Financial 

Reporting

 The Board has the overall 

responsibility of ensuring that MTD 

Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

maintains sound financial reporting 

standards. Hence, regulatory reports, 

which should be submitted to the 

Department of Inland Revenue, 

Registrar of Companies, the Colombo 

Stock Exchange have been submitted 

on due dates. In the preparation 

of quarterly and annual financial 

statements, the Group complied with 

the requirements of the Companies 

Act No. 07 of 2007 and are prepared 

and presented in conformity with Sri 

Lanka Financial Reporting Standards 

(SLFRS) and Lanka Accounting 

Standards (LKAS).

 The Board’s responsibility in 

respect of financial reporting is 

stated in Statement of the Directors 

Responsibility on this Annual Report. 

1.1.7. Role of the Company Secretary

 The Company Secretary plays an 

important role in ensuring that the 

Board procedures are followed and 

are regularly reviewed in addition to 

ensuring that all relevant information, 

details and documents are made 

available to the Directors and the 

Senior Management for effective 

decision-making at meetings. Further, 

to ensure healthy deliberation and 

optimum decision making, the 

Directors have access to the services 

of the Company Secretary ensuring 

that all regulations and statutory 

requirements are met.

 Minutes of all physically held 

meetings are recorded by the 

Company Secretary, who also 

facilitates circular resolutions sought 

for impromptu approvals from 

the Board. All these are promptly 

distributed among the Board by the 

Company Secretary. 

1.2. Board Sub-Committees

 The Board has delegated 

certain functions of its to 

Board Sub-Committees: the 

Board Audit Committee and the 

Remuneration Committee. The 

Board Sub-Committees comprises 

predominantly of Independent Non-

Executive Directors. The reports of 

the two Board Sub-Committees are 

as below:

1.2.1. Report of the Board Audit 

Committee

 Please refer page 35 on this Annual 

Report

1.2.2. Report of the Remuneration 

Committee

 Please refer page 36 on this Annual 

Report

REPORT ON
 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Composition of the Board Audit 
Committee 

The Board Audit Committee comprises of the 

following Directors of the Company:

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah (Chairman)
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leong Yow Lee
Non-Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Keith George Cowling
Non-Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Niranjan  Joseph De Silva Deva – Aditya
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal 
Wijeratne
Independent / Non-Executive Director

Charter of the Committee

The charter clearly defines the terms of reference 

of the Board Audit Committee. It demonstrates 

that activities of the Board Audit Committee 

are in line with the Code of Best Practice on 

Corporate Governance issued jointly by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

and the Securities and Exchange Commission, 

and the directions issued by the Central Bank of 

Sri Lanka.

The purpose of the Board Audit Committee is 

to assist the Board of Directors in its general 

oversight of financial reporting, internal controls 

and functions relating to internal and external 

audit.

Membership

Members of the Committee are appointed by 

the Board. Keeping in line with the Colombo 

Stock Exchange Listing Rules the Board Audit 

Committee comprises of 02 Non- Independent/ 

Non-Executive Director and 03 Independent/ 

Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the 

Committee is an Independent/ Non-Executive 

Director who has proven financial acumen in the 

fields of accountancy and audit.

The Duties and Responsibilities of the 
Audit Committee

The Committee has been mandated to carry out 

the duties set out opposite,

Financial Reporting

The Committee monitors the integrity of the 

financial information/ financial statements of 

the Company, including its annual and quarterly 

reports and any other formal announcement 

relating to the financial performance of the 

Group. The Committee reviews significant 

financial reporting issues and judgments, any 

changes in accounting policies and practices, 

significant adjustments arising from the audits 

and the going concern assumptions.

The Committee verifies the Company’s 

compliance with financial reporting requirements, 

information requirements of the Companies 

Act No. 07 of 2007 and other relevant financial 

reporting related regulations and requirements.

Having assessed the prevailing internal controls 

and procedures, the Committee is of the view that 

adequate controls and procedures are in place to 

provide reasonable assurance that the financial 

position of the Company is well monitored and 

accurately reported.

Meetings

The committee held 02 meetings during the 

year under review. The attendance of committee 

members at the meetings are listed below.

Name Attended 

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah 2/2

Mr. Leong Yow Lee 2/2

Mr. Keith George Cowling 2/2

Mr. Niranjan  Joseph De Silva 

Deva – Aditya

2/2

Mr. Hewawasamge 

Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne

1/2

Internal Audit

The committee, recognizing the need for an 

Internal Audit Department, established an Internal 

Audit Department for MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries. The Committee will ensure that 

the internal audit function is independent of the 

activities it audits and that it is performed with 

impartiality, proficiency and due professional 

care.

Necessary internal audit reports are tabled at the 

Board Audit Committee meetings. 

The Committee will review, assess and approve the 

internal audit plan and programmes.

The Committee also reviews and monitors 

management’s responsiveness to significant audit 

findings and recommendations of the internal 

auditor.

Regulatory Compliance

The Committee closely monitors the compliance 

with mandatory finance and other statutory 

requirements, systems and procedures to ensure 

the compliance with such requirements. The 

compliance reporting has been set up in such 

a way that the Company Secretary will apprise 

the Committee of compliance and regulatory 

material. The Committee has advised the Group 

Internal Audit Department to conduct compliance 

reviews on regular basis in order to ensure 

compliance awareness. 

External Audit

The Committee monitors independence, 

objectivity and effectiveness of the audit 

processes of external audit in accordance with 

applicable standards of best practice. 

The Committee remains satisfied with the level 

of independence of the external auditors and has 

not been impaired by any event or services that 

give rise to conflict of interest. Due consideration 

has been given to the nature of the services 

provided by the auditors and the level of audit 

fees received by the auditors from MTD Walkers 

PLC. 

Re-Appointment of the External 

Auditors

The Board Audit Committee recommended to 

the Board that Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered 

Accountants be re-appointed as external auditors 

of MTD Walkers PLC for the financial year ending 

31st March 2015, subject to approval by the 

shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting.

Albert Rasakantha Rasiah

Chairman- Board Audit Committee

Prashanie Saroja Attygalle 
Secretary- Board Audit Committee

25th August 2014

Colombo 

REPORT OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
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REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee of MTD 

Walkers PLC is appointed by the Board 

of Directors and is governed by 03 

Independent/ Non-Executive Directors and 

01 Non-Independent/ Executive Director.

The primary role of the Remuneration 

Committee is to approve appropriate 

remuneration in order to retain and motivate 

Executive Directors/ Senior Management of 

the suitable quality required.

The committee is chaired by Mr. Albert 

Rasakantha Rasiah. The Remuneration 

Committee is assisted by the CFO and Head 

of Human Resources in providing relevant 

information, as and when required.

The policy of the Company to be 

consistently aligned with the market 

reality in order to retain highly qualified, 

competent and a motivated workforce. The 

remuneration packages are aligned with 

the Company’s remuneration policy and linked to individual and divisional performances; 

reflecting the time and effort required from the members in fulfilling their responsibilities.

During the year under review, the members of the Remuneration Committee convened on 

two occasions in order to decide matters pertaining under their respective scope. 

Name Attended

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah (Chairman)

Independent/ Non-Executive Director

2/2

Mr. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga

Non-Independent/ Executive Director

2/2

Mr. Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya  

Independent/ Non-Executive Director

2/2

Mr. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne

Independent/ Non-Executive Director

1/2

Albert Rasakantha Rasiah Prashanie Saroja Attygalle

Chairman Remuneration Committee Secretary Remuneration Committee

MTD Walkers PLC MTD Walkers PLC

25th August 2014 25th August 2014

REPORT ON
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1.3. Management Committee

 The Management Committee plays 

an important role in the organisation 

as both leaders and decision-makers. 

MTD Walkers PLC has a committee 

formed at the management level to 

ensure internal operations of the 

company are in line with its vision, 

purpose and aims. It also monitors 

and evaluates all areas of the 

organisation’s performance, whilst 

ensuring compliance with all relevant 

legal and regulatory requirements.

 Moreover, the Management 

Committee ensures that the Board 

is provided with timely and accurate 

information. Also, it updates the 

Board aware of all important 

developments within the Company 

and further enquiries are made and 

responded to as deemed necessary. 

1.4. Internal Policies, Processes and 

Procedures

 Internal policies, processes and 

procedures of MTD Walkers PLC 

and its subsidiaries are designed to 

support and maintain a transparent 

and effective internal control system, 

the institutionalisation of best 

practices for governance, and the 

management of risk and compliance 

across the organisation. 

1.4.1. Code of Business Conduct and 

Ethics

 MTD Walkers PLC and all Group 

subsidiaries strive to ensure that 

all operations are carried out to 

maximize value creation for all 

stakeholders; our shareholders, 

internal stakeholders- our employees, 

and external stakeholders – our 

clients, suppliers and community. 

We strive to achieve this goal whilst 

maintaining our corporate integrity 

and ensuring we act with the utmost 

responsibility towards the community 

and environment we operate in.

 The following are the business ethics 

embedded in our corporate culture:

business with integrity, allowing us 

to remain true to our ethics

and regulatory requirements, in 

order to conform to legal norm, and 

to protect our interests and those of 

our stakeholders

working environment for all 

employees, at all levels, and are 

committed to continued training and 

development to complement their 

current and future work plans

employer without prejudice towards 

race, gender, nationality, religion, 

ethnic affiliation, political views or 

other distinguishing characteristics

those who choose to work with 

us out of free will; and remain 

committed to not working with 

those who use: child labour, forced 

labour, slave labour or other 

forms of involuntary labour in the 

services or goods they supply. 

We do not allow any practice that 

would restrict free movement of 

employees

and other persons, involved 

with MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries, to report legitimate 

concerns and grievances in a 

manner that ensures proper review 

and action without repercussion

staff to be able to share the benefits 

of the Group’s success in achieving 

its goals

applicable competition laws

from suitable goods and services 

providers to meet the Group’s needs

in dialogue with those who are 

affected by our operations, or wish 

to raise concerns regarding our 

operations. We will respond to 

inquiries from external parties and 

communicate with affected parties 

in a timely and effective manner and 

always work towards an amicable 

resolution

reputation by knowingly associating 

with people, organisations, products 

or transactions that could potentially 

damage the corporate heritage MTD 

Walkers PLC has built over 160 

years of operations

regulations and strive to develop 

methods to reduce our impact on 

nature and our carbon footprint. 

This will be implemented across all 

subsidiaries in all activities and in all 

finished products

communities through charitable 

donations and gifts in kind; and 

encourage the involvement of our 

staff in volunteer initiatives for 

community development

1.5. Ownership Structure

 The right of shareholders to make 

decisions is exercised at the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company in 

addition to Extraordinary General 

Meetings which are called as and 

when required. MTD Walkers PLC 

had a total number of 114,357,140 

ordinary shares as at 31st March 

2014, of which MTD Capital Bhd, the 

largest shareholder of the Company 

accounted for 90.78 percent of the 

shareholding as at 31st March 2014.
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2. External Governance   
Structure

 The external governance structure 

of MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries comprises of the laws, 

regulations and best practices listed 

below that enable the Group to 

operate within a sound Corporate 

Governance framework. 

 A detailed compliance report 

disclosing MTD Walkers PLC’s 

level of compliance with Section 

7.10 of the Listing Rules of the 

Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and 

Code of Best Practice of Corporate 

Governance issued jointly by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Sri Lanka and the Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka 

is set out on pages 36 to 49 of this 

Annual Report.

3. Assurance

 Corporate Governance assurance 

at MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries is upheld by the Internal 

Audit Department and the external 

auditors of the Group.

3.1. Internal Audit 

 MTD Walkers PLC’s internal audit 

department focuses on providing 

independent assurance to the Board 

Audit Committee on the processes 

and controls within the Group and 

the level of compliance with laws and 

regulation. The division plays a vital 

role in the governance structure of 

the Group. 

Major External Regulations Applicable to MTD Walkers PLC and its Subsidiaries 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

Code of Best Practice of Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange applicable to MTD Walkers PLC

Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 as amended

3.2. External Audit 

 External audit report enables the 

Board to determine the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Group’s internal 

controls which form an essential part 

of the sound Corporate Governance 

mechanism.  

 Messrs Ernst & Young were the 

external auditors of MTD Walkers 

PLC and the subsidiaries of the 

Group. They were responsible for 

auditing the consolidated financial 

statements of MTD Walkers PLC and 

the financial statements of the Group 

subsidiaries for the FYE 2014.

REPORT ON
 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Board of Directors

The Board should direct, lead and 

control the Company

A.1 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.

Board Meetings

Frequency of Board Meetings and 

Directors’ attendance at Board 

Meetings

A.1.1 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.2.  

Board Responsibilities 

Formulation and implementation of a 

sound strategy

A.1.2 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.1 and Our Strategic Objectives and KPIs Section of 

this Annual Report on pages 62 to 63.

Competency of the CEO and the 

Senior Managers to implement the 

Company strategy

A.1.2 - The Company does not carry a designation of a CEO. 

The function of a CEO is carried out by the Group 

Executive Deputy Chairman. The Group Executive 

Deputy Chairman and the Senior Management team of 

the Company possesses extensive knowledge and skills 

with widespread experience in the industry in which the 

Company operates. 

 

For further information please refer to Board of Directors 

Section of this Annual Report.

Adoption of an effective CEO and 

Senior Management succession plan

A.1.2 - Human Resources Department guided by the Board is in 

the process of carrying out the necessary requirements.

Effective systems to secure integrity 

of information, internal controls and 

risk management

A.1.2 - The Internal Audit Department of our parent company 

(MTD Capital Bhd) carried out 03 internal audits during 

this financial year ensuring integrity of information, 

internal controls and risk management.

As at the reporting date the Company has set up a fully 

fledged Internal Audit Department and necessary audits 

have been taken place since then.

For further information please refer to MTD Walkers 

PLC Corporate Governance-Section 1.2.1 of this Annual 

Report. 

Compliance with laws, regulations 

and ethical standards

A.1.2 - The Company practices and enforces the  highest ethical 

standards and adheres to all stipulated laws and relevant 

regulations. Moreover, the Company seeks independent 

professional advice when deemed necessary.
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Consideration of stakeholder 

interests in corporate decision 

making

A.1.2 - All charters and policies of the Company have been 

developed to ensure that responsibilities to shareholders 

and other stakeholders are timely and appropriately 

discharged. Moreover, in terms of Companies Act No. 07 

of 2007, the approval of the shareholders is sought when 

deemed necessary.

Please refer to Sustainability Framework and Policies 

Section of this Annual Report.

Recognising sustainable business 

development in corporate strategy, 

decisions and activities

A.1.2 - Please refer to Sustainability Framework and Policies 

Section of this Annual Report.

Adoption of appropriate accounting 

policies and fostering compliance 

with financial regulations

A.1.2 - The Company’s Finance Department comprises of 

qualified accountants who report to the Group CFO who 

in turn reports to the Board with regard to complying with 

the accounting policies and compliance with financial 

regulations that has to be adopted.

With this information the BOD advices the Senior 

Management on the appropriate adoption of polices and 

compliance with financial regulations.

Fulfilling the other Board functions 

relevant to the organisation

A.1.2 - During the year under review every endeavour was made 

by the Board to fulfill its obligations.

Act in accordance with the laws 

and regulations relevant to the 

organisation and procedures to 

obtain independent advice

A.1.3 - The majority of Board sub-committees consist of 

Independent Directors, which ensures that the Company 

acts in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Further, the Board seeks independent professional advice 

when deemed necessary. 

Access to the Company Secretary 

and functions of the Company 

Secretary

A.1.4 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.7.

Independent judgment of Directors A.1.5 - All Directors at the point of appointment disclosed their 

conflicts of interests or stated that they have no interest in 

business that the Group is involved in. 

During the tenure on the Board they will continue to 

disclose any matter which may have a conflict of interest. 

In the event a matter discussed to which a director has 

a conflict of interest in, he will excuse himself from 

that discussion. If there is a vote where a director has 

a conflict of interest the said Director will abstain from 

voting.

REPORT ON
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Dedication of adequate time and 

effort for the matters of the Board 

and the Company

A.1.6 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.2. 

In addition, the Directors function as members of the 

Board Sub-Committees. For attendance of Directors  

at Sub-Committee meetings refer MTD Walkers PLC 

Corporate Governance Section -1.2.1. and 1.2.2.

Further circular resolutions of the Board are passed in 

order to meet urgent business decisions.

Board induction and training A.1.7 Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.5.

Chairman and CEO

Chairman and CEO A.2 The profile of the Chairman is set out in the Board of 

Directors Section of this Annual Report. 

The Company does not carry a designation of CEO.

Chairman’s and CEO Role A.3 The Company does not carry a designation of a CEO. 

However, the Group Executive Deputy Chairman of the 

Company functions as the Chief Executive Officer of the 

Group.

For the chairman’s role refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate 

Governance Section - 1.1.4.

Key responsibilities of Chairman A.3.1 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.4.

Financial Acumen

Availability of sufficient financial 

acumen and knowledge

A.4 - The Chairman is an engineer by profession and holds a 

Masters in Business Administration. 

The Group Executive Deputy Chairman is a fellow member 

of ICASL and CIMA UK who possesses sound financial 

acumen and knowledge.

The Directors’ financial acumen and knowledge is

more-fully described under the Board of Directors Section 

of this Annual Report.

Board Balance

Board Composition A.5 7.10.1

7.10.3 (c)

Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.3.

Balance of Executive and Non-

Executive Directors

A.5.1 7.10.1 (a),(b),(c) Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.3.
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Independent Directors A.5.2, A.5.3,

A.5.5

7.10.2

7.10.3 (a)

7.10.3 (b)

Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.3.

Submission of Annual Declaration of 

Independence

A.5.4 - All Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) submit assigned and 

dated declarations of their independence on an annual 

basis.

Requirement to appoint Senior 

Independent Director

A.5.6, A.5.7,

A.5.8

- The Company’s Board composition currently does not 

necessitate the requirement for a Senior Independent 

Director. The terms of reference will be disclosed in the 

Annual Report when the need for such designation arises.

Meetings to be held with Non-

Executive Directors only

A.5.9 - The Board Audit Committee is the only Committee 

that comprises of only NEDs. Refer MTD Walkers PLC 

Corporate Governance Section - 1.2.1.

Unresolved matters A.5.10 - The Directors concerns pertaining to unresolved

matters are discussed and documented accordingly in the 

Board minutes. Further discussions on these matters are 

pursued at the next Board Meeting with a view to resolve 

them. 

Supply of Information

Management obligation for 

providing information in a timely 

manner

A.6.1 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Sections 

- 1.1.7 and 1.3.

Adequate time for effective Board  

Meetings

A.6.2 - The date of the next Board Meeting is collectively

decided  by all Board  Members present during

the previous meeting and adequate notice as per the 

Articles of Association (AOA) is given to all Board 

Member when convening a Board Meeting.

Appointment to the  Board

Appointment of new Directors  to 

the Board 

A.7 7.10.3 (d) All applications to the Board are approved by the 

Nomination Committee of MTD Capital Bhd Malaysia. 

Re-election at MTD Walkers PLC takes place strictly in 

accordance with the AOA; where 1/3 of Directors retire 

annually. 

During the financial year 2014 there were no new 

Directors appointed to the Board.

Requirement of a Nomination 

Committee

A.7.1, A.7.2 - The Company has not appointed a Nomination

Committee as at the reporting date. However, as stated 

above, the performance of the Board is assessed to 

ensure that the Board is comprised of adequate resource 

persons to represent the needs of the Company.

REPORT ON
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Re-election

Re-election at regular intervals 

and election and re-election by 

shareholders

A.8, A.8.1,

A.8.2

- The Board Members are appointed and recommended 

for re-election in terms of AOA of the Company until they 

reach the retirement age in terms of Companies Act No. 

07 of 2007. 

One third of the Directors retire by rotation on the basis 

prescribed in the AOA of the Company. 

A Director retiring by rotation is eligible for re-election by 

the shareholders at the AGM by passing a resolution.

Appraisal of Board Performance and Functions

Board Appraisal A.9, A.9.1,

A.9.2, A.9.3

- The Board appraisal mechanism is currently being 

implemented. 

Disclosure of Directors’ Information

Information in relation to each 

Director

A.10,

A.10.1

7.10.3 (C.)

7.10.4 (a.4)

The profiles of all Board Members are presented in the

Board of Directors Section of this Annual Report.

Related party transactions are presented on note 36 to the 

financial statements on page 145 of this Annual Report.

For information on Board Meetings and participation refer 

MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section - 1.1.2.

For information on Directors attendance of Directors 

at sub-committee meetings refer MTD Walkers PLC 

Corporate Governance Sections -1.2.1 and 1.2.2.

Appraisal of CEO

Assessing the performance of the 

CEO

A.11 - The Company does not possess a designation of a CEO as 

the Group Executive Deputy Chairman carries out executive 

functions and steers the Company towards its goals. The 

Board collectively appraises the performance of the Group 

Executive Deputy Chairman on the basis of pre-agreed goals 

for the Group.

Directors Remuneration and Remuneration Committee

Directors Remuneration B.1. - No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee and 

determining

remuneration of the Directors

B.1.1, B.1.2,

B.1.3, B.1.4,

B.1.5

7.10.5 (a.1),(a.2) The remuneration policy for all levels in the Group is reviewed 

and approved by the Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

The remuneration of the Executive Directors are decided by 

the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

The remuneration of the COO and the Senior Management 

is decided by the remuneration committee subjected to the 

approval of the BOD. 
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

The Level and Make up of Remuneration

Level of 

Remuneration and 

Executive Share

Options

B.2, B.2.1,

B.2.2, B.2.3,

B.2.4, B.2.5,

B.2.6, B.2.7,

B.2.8, B.2.9

- Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section - 1.2.2.

The Company does not have any executive share option schemes in place.

Mr. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga is the only Non-Independent/ Executive 

Director; however the CSE listing rules does not preclude an Executive 

Director from being involved in a subcommittee.   

Disclosure of Remuneration

Disclosure of 

remuneration

B.3, B.3.1 7.10.5 (b), (c.1) Please refer to note 28 in the notes to the financial statement on page 135 

of this Annual Report. 

Relations with Shareholders

Constructive use of 

AGM and conduct of 

General Meetings

C.1 - The Board uses Annual General Meetings (AGM) to

communicate the Company’s performance with shareholders and 

encourage their active participation. In this regard, all shareholders of the 

Company receive the notice of meeting within the statutory period.

Consideration of 

proxy votes

C.1.1 - As a matter of practice, proxy votes together with the votes of the 

shareholders present at the AGM are considered for each resolution.

Separate resolutions 

on each substantially 

separate issues

C.1.2 - The Company proposes separate resolutions on each substantially 

separate issue, giving shareholders the opportunity to vote on each such 

issue separately.

Availability of Board 

Sub-Committee

Chairman to answer 

queries

C.1.3 - If requested by the Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee 

is available to respond to any queries at the AGM.

Circulation of Notice 

of AGM

C.1.4 - The Notice of Meeting and related documents including a copy of 

the Annual Report, a form of proxy and other resolutions, if any, are 

circulated to the shareholders at least 15 working days prior to the AGM 

in compliance with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the AOA of the 

Company.

Section 2 – Directors Remuneration

Composition of the Remuneration Commitee

%
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Non-Independent/ Executive Director

25% 25% 25%

FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014
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C. Relations With Shareholders

Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Procedures governing voting at AGM C.1.5 - A summary of the procedure relating to voting at General 

Meetings is set out in the ‘Notices of Meeting’ sent to 

each shareholder.

Communication with Shareholders

Official channel to reach all 

shareholders

C. 2.1 The Company Secretary attends to all shareholder 

queries.

Disclose the policy and methodology 

for communication with 

shareholders

C. 2.2 Company Secretarial Department is in force to meet 

shareholders queries, headed by the Company Secretary.

Disclose how they implement the

above policy and methodology 

C.2.3 The Company telephone number and address is 

published on the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) 

website. Any decision to convene an AGM or EGM will be 

communicated to shareholders via circular or notice by 

the Company Secretary with proper approval by the CSE 

and the Board.

Disclose the contact person for

such communication.

C. 2.4 Company Secretarial Department of the Company.

There should be a process to make 

all Directors aware of major issues 

and concerns of shareholders, and 

this process has to be disclosed by 

the Company

C. 2. 5 All major concerns raised by the shareholders are 

communicated to the Board at each Board Meeting by the 

Company Secretary.

The Company should decide the 

person to contact in relation to 

shareholders’ matters. ( Company 

Secretary or a Director from the 

BOD)

C .2. 6 Company Secretarial Department of the Company.

The process for responding to 

shareholder matters should be 

formulated by the Board and 

disclosed.

C. 2. 7 Shareholder queries are responded to via face to face 

meetings, telephone conversations or letters issued by 

the Company Secretarial Department.

Major Transactions

Disclosure of major transactions C.3 - There were no major transactions during the financial 

year.

Disclosure of major transactions 

which change the Group 

composition

C.3.1 - There were no major transactions during the financial 

year that changed the Group’s composition.
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting D.1 - The financial statements presents a balanced and 

understandable evaluation of the Group’s financial 

performance. The Group’s position, performance and 

prospects have been discussed in detail in the following

reports:

Description Reference Page

Chairman’s Message 12 to 13

Group Executive Deputy 

Chairman’s Message

14 to 17

Management Discussion and 

Analysis

52 to 93

Financial Review 57 to 61

All interim and annual financial reports are submitted in 

terms of the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Board responsibility in respect of 

financial reporting

D.1.1 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.1.6.

Directors’ Report D.1.2 - Directors’ declaration on the Company’s Governance

is discussed in the Annual Report of the Board of

Directors on pages 96 to 98 of this Annual Report.

Declaration of going concern by the

Directors

D.1.5 - This information is provided in the Annual Report of 

the Board of Directors on pages 96 to 98 of this Annual 

Report.

Extraordinary General Meetings 

in the event the net assets of 

the Company fall below 50% 

of the value of the Company’s 

shareholders’ funds

D.1.6 - Not applicable as the Company has not faced such a 

situation during the financial year under review.

The Board should adequately and 

accurately disclose the related party 

transactions in its Annual Report

D.1.7 The Company has adhered to the disclosure requirements 

as at 31st March 2014 in terms of the SEC and CSE.

Internal Control

Implementation of sound system of 

Internal Control

D.2 - Internal Controls are closely scrutinized by the Internal 

Audit Department of the Parent Company on a regular 

basis. 

REPORT ON
 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Review of effectiveness of Group’s 

system of internal control

D.2.1 - The Board Audit Committee reviews the internal audit 

reports/findings and updates them periodically. 

Need to have an Internal Audit 

function

D.2.2 - The Group Internal Audit Department has been set up as 

of April 2014. Prior to setting up the Group Internal Audit 

Department, this function was carried out by the internal 

audit department of the Parent Company. 

The Board should require the 

Board Audit Committee to carry 

out reviews of the process and 

effectiveness of risk management 

and internal controls, and to 

document to the Board and Board 

takes the responsibility for the

Disclosures on internal controls.

D.2.3 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.2.1.

Responsibilities of Directors in 

maintaining a sound system of 

internal control

D.2.4 The system of internal control are monitored and 

implemented by Internal Audit Department of the parent 

company and reported to  the Board Audit Committee. 

The independent opinion of external auditors is also 

sought when required. 

Board Audit Committee

The Audit Committee should 

comprise minimum of two 

Independent Non-Executive 

Directors or exclusively by Non-

Executive Directors, a majority 

of whom should be independent, 

whichever is higher.

The Chairman of the Committee 

should be a Non-Executive Director, 

appointed by the Board.

D.3.1 7.10.6 (a.1),(a.2)

7.10.6 (c.1)

The Board Audit Committee of the Company comprises: 

03 Independent / Non-Executive Directors, and 02 Non 

Independent / Non-Executive Directors. 

Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section - 

1.2.1
Composition of the Board Audit Committee 

%

FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014
0

20

40

60

80

100

Independent/ Non- Executive Director

Non-Independent/ Executive Director

40% 40% 40%
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Terms of reference, duties and

responsibilities

D.3.2, D.3.3 7.10.6 

(b.1),(b.2),(b.3), 

(b.4), (b.5)

Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.2.1.

Disclosures

Annual Report should contain a 

report by the Board Audit Committee 

setting out, 

- The names of Directors comprising 

the Board Audit Committee

- Determination of the independence 

of the Auditors and the basis of 

such determination  

D.3.4 7.10.6 (c.1), (c.2), 

(c.3)

Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.2.1.

Code of Business Ethics

Availability of Code of Business 

Conduct and Ethics

D.4 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section 

- 1.4.1.

Corporate Governance Disclosure D.5 - The Company has complied with the Code of Best

Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri

Lanka.

Report on Corporate Governance D.5.1 - This report from pages 32 to 49 serves this

requirement.

Institutional Investors and Shareholder Voting

Encourage institutional shareholders

to translate their voting intentions 

into practice

E.1 - All shareholders are encouraged to participate and

vote at the AGM.

Regular and structured dialogue 

with shareholders

E.1.1 - The AGM is used to enable an effective dialogue with 

shareholders. Further the Board of Directors ensures the 

prompt release of material information to the public and 

the CSE. The Chairman ensures that views and queries of 

shareholders, as appropriate, are communicated to the 

Board as a whole, and addressed in a timely manner.

Evaluation of Governance Structure E.2 - Refer MTD Walkers PLC Corporate Governance Section of 

this Annual Report.

REPORT ON
 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Principle Reference to the 

Code of Best 

Practice issued 

by ICASL & SEC

Reference to the 

Section 7.10 of 

the Listing Rules 

of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Investing Divesting Decisions

Independent advice with regard to 

investing and divesting decisions

F.1 - The Annual Report is circulated to all shareholders

in a timely manner and includes sufficient

information to enable the shareholders to make

decisions relevant to their investment in the

Company. The following reports aim at providing an

overall evaluation of the Company activities and future 

prospects.

Description Reference Page

Chairman’s Message 12 to 13

Group Executive Deputy 

Chairman’s Message

14 to 17

Management Discussion and 

Analysis

52 to 93

Annual Financial Statements 100 to 105

Individual shareholders are encouraged to carry out

sufficient analysis or seek independent advice on 

investing, holding or divesting decisions.

Shareholder Voting

Encourage individual shareholders 

to participate in general meetings

F.2 - The Company circulates the Notice of Meeting within

the statutory timeline, thereby giving adequate time for 

shareholders to consider the matters to be taken up at all 

meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to participate at 

such meetings.

Sustainability Reporting

Disclosure on adherence to 

sustainability principles 

G.1 Please refer Sustainability Framework and Policies 

Section of this Annual Report.

Statement of Compliance under section 7.10 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) on Corporate Governance 

(Implemented on 1st April 2009 and includes amendments to date)

Principle Reference to the Section 7.10 of the 

Listing Rules of the CSE

Details of Compliance

Criteria for Defining Independence 7.10.4

Requirements for meeting the criteria 

to be an Independent Director

a. to h. Please refer Annual Report of the Board of

Directors on pages 96 to 98 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee 7.10.5

Statement of Remuneration policy c.2 Remuneration policy is decided by the Remuneration 

Committee.

Aggregate remuneration paid to EDs 

and NEDs

c.3 Decided by the Remuneration Committee and approved 

by the Board.
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We are proud to be 
the main contractor for 
the first concrete dam 
rehabilitation project in 
Sri Lanka. Our work at 
the Nalanda Dam will 
not only improve the 
livelihood of those who 
rely on it, but will also 
serve as the benchmark 
for similar World Bank 
projects.

Constructing
Success

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Resurfacing of the Nalanda Dam
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Sri Lankan Economy

Overview

The year 2013 was year of rebound for Sri Lanka. The economy accelerated to 7.3 percent 

from a marginal slowdown of 6.3 percent witnessed from the year 2012; subsequent to the 

growth momentum of above 8.3 percent seen in the preceding two years. The annual growth 

of 7.3 percent was achieved via positive contributions from all sectors of the economy. 

Strong growth in the industry sector, a recovery in the services sector, and a revival in the 

agriculture sector during the second half of the year made a significant impact on the GDP 

growth for 2013

The industry sector recorded a growth of 9.9 percent, slightly lower than the growth 

recorded in 2012 of 10.3 percent. The marginal decline in growth was due to a moderation 

in the construction sub-sector growth of 14.4 percent in 2013 vis-à-vis the significant 

expansion seen in the previous year of 21.6 percent. The Group outpaced the industry in 

2014 recording a growth of 37.0 percent from last year. 

Economic Indicators 

GDP

Movement Impact to MTD Walkers PLC

GDP growth increased to 7.3 percent in 

2013 compared to 6.3 percent in 2012.

Source: Annual Report 2013, Central Bank of Sri 

Lanka.

The industry sector was the main 

contributor to the annual GDP growth albeit 

in lesser proportion to 2012. The Group 

was well complemented in terms of volume 

and scope of projects and evidenced in the 

Group’s revenue growth of 37.0 percent 

year-on-year. 

Inflation

Movement Impact to MTD Walkers PLC

Colombo Consumers’ Price Index (CCPI) 

(2006/07=100) was 4.2 percent at the year 

end March 2014, compared to 7.5 percent 

at the year end March 2013. 

Source: www.cbsl.lk

Despite the decline in inflation, which 

was primarily the result of improved 

domestic food supply and soft global 

commodity prices, the Group saw its cost 

of construction rise in line with the price 

increases of raw materials and labour 

within the industry.

Interest Rates

Movement Impact to MTD Walkers PLC

AWLR decreased to 14.4 percent in March 

2014 compared to 16.4 percent in the 

previous financial year.

Source: www.cbsl.lk

The reduction in AWLR had a positive 

impact on term loans and overdraft facilities 

priced using AWLR. The Group took 

initiatives to negotiate down interest rates 

on other loans where possible.

Sri Lanka GDP Growth 

%
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MACRO ECONOMIC 
REVIEW
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Exchange Rate

Movement Impact to MTD Walkers PLC

The rupee depreciated to Rs. 132.2 as at 

31st March 2014 against the US Dollar 

compared to Rs. 126.8 as at 31st March 

2013.

Source: www.cbsl.lk

The depreciation of the Rupee had a 

positive financial impact on the Group’s 

subsidiary, Colombo Engineering Services, 

which has a Dollar denominated income 

stream. Nevertheless, given the Group’s 

reliance on imported construction 

equipment and crude oil, the movement of 

the exchange rate had a negative effect on 

the Group’s financials, as did the industry.

Operating Environment

As the island’s post-war nation building 

efforts continue to intensify, the overall aim 

has consistently been the development of 

a sustainable economy, minimizing income 

disparity and transforming Sri Lanka to a 

strategic regional hub. The hub concept 

entails positioning Sri Lanka, using the 

island’s geographical location, to be the 

regional powerhouse for: the maritime and 

aviation industries, commerce, knowledge 

and energy. Being located along the main 

trade routes of major shipping and air 

routes connecting the Far East with South 

Asia, Europe and the Middle East, Sri Lanka 

is strategically located as the gateway to 

key global markets, a position on which the 

country will soon capitalise.

The construction of world-class tourist 

accommodation by internationally 

renowned hoteliers and the development of 

recreational spaces in line with the overall 

beautification of Colombo, signals well for 

the future of Colombo as the regional hub 

for tourism. 

Further, the Government has undertaken an 

unprecedented Urban Regeneration Project 

implemented by the Urban Development 

Authority which aims at relocating 70,000 

households over the next 6 years in 

an effort to provide those families with 

upgraded living conditions, eliminate slums 

and allow the redevelopment of prime land 

around the city. 

Major Ongoing and Recently Completed Infrastructure Development Projects

Project Name Year

Completed To be completed

Power Projects

Norochcholai Coal Power Plant

Phase I 2011

Phase II: Unit 2 2014

Phase III: Unit 3 2014

Uma Oya Hydropower Plant 2015

Sampur Coal Power Plant 2017

Road Development Projects

Southern Expressway

Phase I 2011

Phase II 2014

Colombo –Katunayake Expressway 2013

Outer Circular Highway

Phase I 2014

Phase II 2015

Phase III 2017

Railway Development Projects

Northern Railway Line Reconstruction Project

Madawachchiya- Madu 2013

Madu- Thaleimannar 2014

Omanthai- Pallai 2014

Pallai- Kankasenthurai 2014

Signalling and Telecommunication System 2015

Matara- Kataragama Railway Line Project

Phase I: Matara- Beliatta 2016

Port Development Projects

Colombo South Harbour Project

South Container Terminal 2013

East Container Terminal 2014

Magam Ruhunupura Mahinda Rajapaksa Port

Phase I 2010

Phase II 2015

Oluvil Port Development Project 2013

Airport Development Projects

Mattala Rajapaksa International Airport 

Phase I 2013

Bandaranaike International Airport Expansion Project 2017

Source: Annual Report 2013, Central Bank of Sri Lanka
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The Government’s ambition and insistence 

on rapid development and implementation 

of international best practices, has 

attracted the interest of giants in the area 

of infrastructure from around the world, 

facilitating an increase in funded projects as 

well as the import of the latest technology 

in to Sri Lanka. 

What all of the above effectively translates 

into is the guarantee of a better Sri Lanka 

and a hugely encouraging future for the 

construction industry. There is no shortage 

of mega projects throughout the island and 

certainly enough rural development projects 

to keep the entire local construction 

industry in the green for the foreseeable 

future.

The year 2013 also saw the cost of 

construction increase by 7.2 percent as 

indicated by the cost of construction index 

compiled by the Institute of Construction, 

Training and Development (ICTAD), 

corresponding to the increase in industry 

wages and the price increase in raw 

materials. The rise in labour costs in the 

construction sub sector reflects the deficit 

of labour to meet the demand arising from 

the expansion in the industry. Similarly, 

the cost of raw materials has also risen 

during 2013 due to demand outplacing 

the supply in the market. This highlights a 

future challenge that the construction sub- 

sector would have to address through the 

introduction of new technologies along with 

improvements in raw materials and labour 

productivity.

Sri Lanka’s demand for power is expected to 

grow. While stable oil prices and favourable 

weather conditions saw Sri Lanka sail 

through 2013 avoiding disruption, we 

cannot rest on those assurances for the 

future. To meet the growing demand, 

increase in capacity by 35 percent to 4,591 

Megawatts is planned by December 2017.  

Economic Outlook 

As Sri Lanka continues to develop and 

grow on all fronts, the economy as a whole 

is expected to accelerate and continue to 

stay positive over the medium term. This 

upswing is largely fuelled by a conducive 

local environment allowing all sectors to 

have an appreciable contribution to the 

local economy. The end result of this overall 

trend was the growth rate of 7.3 percent 

recorded in 2013; an increase from the 6.3 

percent recorded in 2012, and is expected 

by Asian Development  Bank (ADB) to 

continue to 7.5 percent for 2014.

Core inflation has been maintained at single 

digit levels for over five years allowing 

stable interest rates in the medium term. 

The Central Bank’s projects inflation to 

continue to remain at mid-single digits 

in the medium term, facilitated through 

prudent monetary policy. The overall 

standard of living is expected to improve 

drastically with the Government’s active 

measures to minimize income disparity as 

well as aiming for a per capita income of 

USD 4,000 by 2016.

As per the Ministry of Finance, planned 

Government investment on infrastructure 

development over the three year period 

spanning 2013-2015 will amount to 

approximately Rs. 1.4 trillion, with a major 

focus on continued road development. 

According to Government sources, 

approximately 61 percent of the national 

road network has been developed while the 

development of the remaining network is 

scheduled for the immediate future. 

Overall, increased domestic consumption 

and increased foreign investment is 

expected to foster a more vibrant economy 

going forward which will sustain positive 
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The commissioning of the Mattala 

Rajapaksa International Airport, the 

South Container Terminal of the Colombo 

Harbour, the Katunayake Expressway 

and further expansion of the Southern 

Expressway are a resounding reaffirmation 

of the Government’s commitment to 

and understanding of the importance of 

internal infrastructure for when Sri Lanka 

reaches the status of a regional hub. 

While these mega projects are being done 

on a national scale, local  Government 

authorities are entrusted with the smaller 

rural development projects under the 

Maga Neguma program to implement rural 

electrification, irrigation projects, water 

supply and sanitation related projects, 

designed to facilitate rural development. 

Source: Annual Report 2013, Central Bank 

of Sri Lanka
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GDP growth through 2015. The potential for private investment, coupled with the national road development plan and continued urban 

development, is expected to push the local construction industry to attain new heights, while establishing Sri Lanka’s position as the new 

hub of the Indian subcontinent and immediate region.

Summary of National Road Master Plan Investment Program 2007 - 17

 Rs. billion 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Construction of Expressways 13.9 23 .0 29.3 25.3 30.3 24.6 18.0 18 .0 20 .0 22 .0 13.8

Widening of Highways 15.2 17.2 17.3 13.6 17 .0 21.3 21.8 21.7 25.7 27.1 17.2

Reduction of Traffic Congestions 0.4 0.8 0.9 2.2 3.9 3.8 4.4 5 .0 2.1 1.1 0.4

Road Maintenance 10.4 13 10.4 14.1 10.5 12.2 10.4 10.4 10.9 12.6 12.3

Bridge Rehabilitation & 

Reconstruction

4.1 3.4 3.7 3.2 1.2 1.1 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

Land Acquisition & Resettlement 1.3 1.5 2.8 7.6 5.9 4.9 6 .0 6.4 4.3 2.6 1.5

Total 45.3 58.9 64.4 66.0 68.8 67.9 61.2 62.1 63.6 66.0 45.8

Source: National Road Master Plan 2007 - 2017, Executive Summary and the Investment Plan, Road Development Authority  

Contribution to the National Economy

As Sri Lanka actively positions itself as a 

middle income nation, the need for quality 

infrastructure, on which the nation can 

build foundations for the future, becomes 

apparent. We at MTD Walkers PLC, together 

with your continued support, understand 

this, and have geared ourselves to meet Sri 

Lanka’s infrastructural needs.

As a new middle income economy, it is 

important that the people of the entire 

nation reap the benefits of this status, 

a position that we at MTD Walkers PLC 

firmly stand by. To make this objective 

a reality, we have worked hand in hand 

with the Government and local authorities 

island wide, to identify the immediate 

infrastructural needs of communities 

outside major cities. We have rebuilt and 

renovated fatigued and archaic bridges 

with those designed to last the test of 

time, linking our communities with the 

possibilities of tomorrow. We have built 

highways to allow goods to be transported 

across the island in record time, creating 

new markets and changing the economic 

landscape. We have built thousands 

of homes together with the Urban 

Development Authority, for the underserved 

communities of Colombo, giving quality 

built, low cost housing options to those 

who never had hope of owning their own 

homes.

With the end of civil conflict, foreign interest 

and funding, via donor agencies and FDI, 

in Sri Lanka has grown to new heights. 

As per the Central bank, FDI targeting 

infrastructure has grown approximately 

by 32 percent year-on-year from USD 597 

million in 2012 to USD 787 million in 2013 

As a premier infrastructure developer, 

with a history spanning 160 years, MTD 

Walkers PLC has worked with countless 

funding bodies and donors to execute 

projects designed to improve not only the 

infrastructure but the standard of living for 

all Sri Lankans. We have been engaged in 

over 5 major dam rehabilitation projects 

with the Mahawelli Authority and recently 

undertook the Nalanda Dam rehabilitation 

project. The Nalanda Dam rehabilitation 

project is funded by the World Bank and is 

the first concrete dam rehabilitation project 

in Sri Lanka. Its successful completion 

will not only to have an a beneficial social 

impact on the regional community but 

will also serve as a benchmark project for 

other World Bank funded concrete dam 

rehabilitation projects in the country.

We are also actively engaged in attracting 

foreign investors to carry out major 

development projects in Sri Lanka. As the 

pioneer pile foundation company in Sri 

Lanka, we have been at the forefront of 

introducing new technology to the country; 

as a result, our piled foundation work is 

what many iconic buildings of Colombo 

rest on. Being involved in infrastructure 

development at this pivotal point in Sri 

Lanka excites and motivates us; and as a 

Group, we share the common belief that our 

operations allow us to not only increase our 

shareholders value but  it enables us to be 

at the vanguard of  the development of our 

country.

Our effort in empowering Jaffna at the 

height of civil conflict is, in itself, a 

testament to our commitment to truly 
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serve the needs of the masses. It was 

MTD Walkers PLC, through its subsidiary, 

Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. that 

set up the only non-emergency power 

plant, which illuminated Jaffna through its 

darkest days. Today, we not only provide 

power to the Jaffna peninsula, but as a grid 

connected Independent Power Producer 

we generate power to meet the growing 

demand for power throughout the island.

We are also committed to empowering 

the youth and developing a skilled 

workforce, which we ensure through 

numerous internship programs offered 

at our workshops throughout the year. 

We regularly canvas local universities 

and technical colleges to identify the 

best and brightest students and provide 

them with an opportunity to get real life, 

hands on experience, through working on 

various projects beside some of the most 

experienced engineers in the country. We 

also take pride in being a merit based equal 

opportunity employer currently employing 

a permanent staff of over two thousand 

individuals. 

As a part of our CSR initiative, we have 

committed time and resources to a major 

initiative in a village in Anuradhapura, where 

we are working towards providing 30,000 

liters of safe drinking water on a daily basis 

to the community. This is being done in an 

effort to reduce the incidence of chronic 

kidney disease in rural Sri Lanka caused by 

the extensive use of low-quality fertilizer. 

This project is expected to save time and 

effort for those who previously had to travel 

far distances to obtain safe water, reduce 

medical expenditure on treatment of kidney 

disease.

MTD Walkers PLC has been a positive 

force in the Sri Lankan economy for over 

MACRO ECONOMIC
REVIEW

160 years; and as a member of the Ceylon 

Chamber of Commerce, for over 120 years, 

we have played a pivotal role in setting 

the tone of the engineering business in Sri 

Lanka. With you, our valued stakeholders’ 

support and continued commitment, we 

look forward to continue to contribute to 

our economy and community in the future.
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Graphical illustration is for core sectors only

GROUP FINANCIAL
REVIEW

Financial Performance

Revenue

During the financial year under review the 

Group revenue increased by 36.6 percent to 

Rs. 10.1 billion [FYE 2013: Rs.7.4 billion] 

with the primary contribution stemming 

from the Civil Engineering sector with a 

contribution of 79.3 percent. The Power 

Generation and Engineering Services 

sectors of the Group contributed 15.7 and 

3.8 percent respectively. Over the financial 

year 2014, the Civil Engineering sector and 

the Engineering Services sector witnessed 

a 65.3 percent and a 37.0 percent growth 

in revenue, respectively. However, the 

Power Generation sector recorded a decline 

in revenue by 25.0 percent against the 

previous financial year. 

The burgeoning infrastructure development 

in the country played a significant role in 

the revenue growth witnessed in the Civil 

Engineering sector and the Engineering 

Services sector of the Group. It was also the 

Group’s ability to gain a competitive edge 

in the industry, by managing resources 

effectively and enabling the sectors to 

offer timely response to the demands 

of the market, that secured its extensive 

order book. The decline in revenue of the 

Power Generation sector of the Group 

was primarily on the account of Ceylon 

Electricity Board (CEB) purchasing less 

volume in line with the merit order of 

private power plants, as favourable weather 

conditions which prevailed during the year 

helped to boost the share of hydropower 

generation. The revenue was also affected 

by the new power plant set up by CEB 

during the course of the financial year in 

Jaffna.

Gross Profit Margin

The Group recorded a Gross Profit (GP) 

margin of 20.9 percent compared to 22.5 

percent in the previous financial year. The 

table below illustrates the GP margins for 

each sector of the Group recorded in the 

financial year ended 2014 and previous 

financial year ended 2013.

GP margins (%) FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Civil Engineering 19.6 22.8

Power Generation 21.6 21.6

Engineering 

Services

42.0 37.3

Overall Group 20.9 22.5

Despite various cost saving initiatives 

carried out, the increased construction 

material cost  witnessed in the industry 

resulted in lower margins for the Civil 

Engineering sector against margins 

reported last financial year. Moreover, 

during the financial year under review, the 

Group subsidiary, Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. 

witnessed increased competition in its pile 

construction operations due to a number 

of new local pile contractors entry to the 

market, which also factored the marginally 

lower GP margins reported by the sector.  

Engineering Services sector reported an 

increased GP margin as a result of the 

increase of quantity of work handled and 

better cost management by the sector.  

Earnings Before Interest and Tax 

(EBIT)

During the financial year under review, 

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) 

increased by 24.8 percent to Rs. 1.3 

billion [FYE 2013: Rs 1.1 billion]. In terms 

of the composition of EBIT, the Civil 

Engineering sector of the Group was the 

primary contributor with an 85.8 percent 

contribution, followed by the Power 

Generation sector and Engineering Service 

sector with a contribution of 17.4 percent 

and 5.2 percent respectively. 

EBIT margins (%) FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Civil Engineering 14.3 15.1

Power Generation 14.7 21.8

Engineering 

Services

18.2 (11.2)

Overall Group 13.3 14.5
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The table presented in the previous page 

illustrates the EBIT margins for each sector 

of the Group recorded in the financial year 

2014 and previous financial year 2013. 

The reduction in EBIT margins of Civil 

Engineering sector is mainly the result 

of an increase in selling and distribution 

expenditure due to higher business 

promotions costs and the impairment for 

trade debtors seen in the current financial 

year. The EBIT margin increase in the 

Engineering Services sector is a resultant 

of the various operational efficiencies the 

sector initiated this financial year in lieu 

of the (11.2) percent reported in the last 

financial year.

Although the Power Generation sector of 

the Group maintained its GP margin, in 

the midst of rising cost of fuel in the world 

market, the sector’s EBIT margin declined 

to 14.7 percent from 21.8 percent reported 

in the previous financial year. The decline 

in EBIT margin is mainly attributable to the 

overhaul maintenance which took place in 

the current financial year, and the increased 

provision for doubtful debts due from the 

CEB.

Finance Income

During the period under review, finance 

income of the Group increased to Rs. 133.9 

million [FYE 2013: Rs. 87.3 million]. The 

finance income includes interest income 

of Rs. 121.2 million stemming from fixed 

deposits with commercial banks. Details 

on finance income can be found in Note 27 

to the Financial Statements in the Annual 

Report.

Finance Expenses

The finance expenses of the Group 

increased to Rs. 741.7 million [FYE 2013: 

Rs. 543.2 million] on account of an increase 

in interest bearing loans & borrowings to 

Rs. 2.7 billion up from Rs. 2.2  billion in the 

previous financial year, and an increase in 

bank overdrafts to Rs. 1.9 billion from Rs. 

1.0 billion in the previous financial year. 

The interest cover of the Group decreased 

marginally to 2.2 times from 2.4 times in 

the previous financial year due the increase 

in finance expenses.

Taxation

During the financial year under review, 

Group tax expense increased by 13.6 

percent to Rs. 129.6 million [FYE 2013: 

Rs 114.1 million]. The effective tax rate on 

Group profits decreased to 16.9 percent 

as against 18.0 percent in the previous 

year. The decrease of effective tax rate is 

mainly due to the proportionate increase of 

allowable tax expenses for deduction.

For further details on the tax impact of the 

Group refer to the Note 29 to the Financial 

Statements of the Annual Report.

Profit After Tax

Group profit after tax (PAT) increased 

by 19.5 percent to Rs. 600.8 million 

[FYE 2013: Rs. 502.6 million]. The Civil 

Engineering sector has been the main 

contributor to the Group PAT followed by 

the Power Generation sector. 

During the financial year the Civil 

Engineering sector of the Group recorded 

an 87.0 percent growth in PAT, increasing 

the sector’s contribution to the Group PAT 

to 103.3 percent from 66.0 percent in the 

previous financial year. Demonstrating a 

successful operational turnaround, the 

Engineering Services sector of the Group 

recorded a 235.6 percent increase year 

on year in PAT and its contribution to the 

Group PAT increased from (7.7) percent 

in the previous financial year to 8.7 

percent. On the contrary, PAT of the Power 

Generation sector has declined by 72.5 

percent compared to the previous financial 

year and its contribution to Group PAT 

declined to 15.5 percent from 67.6 percent 

in financial year 2013.

Profit Attributable to the Equity Holders of 

the Parent and Non – controlling Interest 

increased from Rs. 502.6 million to Rs. 

600.8 million when registering a 19.5 

percent growth. There has been no change 

in the non-controlling interest (9.22 

percent) of the Group from the previous 

financial year.

Net Profit Margin

The net profit (NP) margin of the Group 

declined marginally from 6.8 percent to 

6.0 percent. The table below illustrates the 

NP margins for each sector of the Group 

recorded in the financial year ended 2014 

and previous financial year ended 2013.

NP margin (%) FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Civil Engineering 7.8 6.9

Power 

Generation

5.9 16.0

Engineering 

Services

13.8 (13.9)

Overall Group 6.0 6.8

The decline in Power Generation sector NP 

margin as against to the previous financial 

year is as a mixed result of the increase in 

operating cost as explained earlier and the 

12.6 percent year on year increase in net 

finance cost of the sector. 
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Contribution to  the Sri Lankan 
Economy

The Sri Lankan economy grew by 7.3 

percent in real terms during 2013. The 

annual growth of 7.3 percent was positively 

contributed from all sectors of the economy, 

with a strong growth in the industry sector, 

a recovery in the services sector, and a 

revival in the agriculture sector during the 

second half of the year.

Economic Value Statement FYE 2014 FYE 2013

(Rs. Mn) (Rs. Mn)

Economic value generated 10,301.7 7,548.3 

Revenue  10,092.4  7,389.6 

Finance income  133.9  87.3 

Profit on sale of assets and other income  75.4  71.4 

Economic value distributed 9,161.9 6,582.3

Cost of material and services purchased  7,493.6  5,217.8 

Employee wages and benefits  796.9  707.1 

Payments to providers of capitals  741.7  543.2 

Payment to Government as Tax  129.6  114.1 

Economic value retained 1,139.8 966.0

Depreciation  539.0  463.4 

Economic value retained for future growth  600.8  502.6 

Linear with the economy the Group economic 

value generated and distributed increased Rs. 

7,548.3 million to

Rs. 10,301.7 million and Rs. 7,045.7 million 

to Rs. 9,161.9 million respectively in the 

financial year ended 2014. The table below 

provides details on Group’s economic value 

generated and distributed amongst various 

stakeholders. Economic Value retained 

pertains to the economic value generated less 

economic value distributed.

Return on Assets

For the financial year under review, Group 

return on assets (ROA) decreased to 

3.8 percent as against 4.3 percent in the 

previous year. This decline in ROA is a 

result of the 33.1 percent increase in Group 

assets, stemming from a capacity build 

up by the Group to prepare for delivery of 

projects of a strong order book. 

The table below illustrates the ROA for each 

sector of the Group recorded in the financial 

year 2014 and previous financial year 2013.

ROA (%) FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Civil Engineering 6.3 5.0

Power Generation 2.2 8.9

Engineering 

Services

8.9 (8.4)

Overall Group 3.8 4.3

Return on Capital Employed

During the financial year under review, 

the Group maintained its return on capital 

employed (ROCE) ratio at 13.8 percent, as 

reported in the previous financial year. 

The table below illustrates the ROCE for 

each sector of the Group recorded in the 

financial year 2014 and previous financial 

year 2013.

ROCE (%) FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Civil Engineering 22.1 17.7

Power Generation 7.0 15.4

Engineering 

Services

50.7 (32.1)

Overall Group 13.8 13.8

Return on Equity

The Group return on equity (ROE) increased to 11.8 percent from 11.0 percent recorded in 

the previous financial year. Despite the decline in Group NP margin (the reasons pertaining 

to the decline in NP margin are explained under the discussion on Net Profit Margin of this 

financial review), ROE increased as a result of maintaining the same equity base and earning 

a profit after tax of Rs. 600.8 million which is higher than the post tax profits earned for FYE 

2013. 

To facilitate Group expansion plans, during the financial year, the Group invested in 

upgrading their plant and machinery fleet, which resulted in higher debt. This is reflected in 

the Group’s financial gearing ratio increasing from 41.0 percent to 47.4 percent in FYE 2014. 

Nevertheless, the improved ROE  of the Group demonstrates that the Group has employed 

its assets at a higher return than its cost of debt.

ROE = NP 

Margin 

X Asset 

Turnover

X A/E

FYE 2014 11.8 = 6.0 x .645 x 3.1

FYE 2013 11.0 = 6.8 x .628 x 2.6
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The Group gearing level has increased to 

47.4 percent, from 41.0 percent in FYE 

2013. The increased gearing is as a result 

of the 44.8 percent increase in total debt 

amounting to Rs. 4.6 billion. [FYE 2013: 

Rs.3.2 billion], a calculated and conscious 

decision to obtain debt in order to increase 

Group operational capacity to deliver the 

pipeline of work in the Group’s growing 

order books.   

During the financial year, through cautious 

efforts the Group was successful in 

achieving a 4.1 percent year on year 

reduction in current interest bearing loans 

& borrowings. The Group will endeavour 

to continue managing its capital structure 

to ensure that it maintains the optimal 

capital ratios that support the growth of 

the business while maximizing shareholder 

value.
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Financial Position

Total Assets

Group’s assets stood at Rs. 15.7 billion  as 

at 31st March 2014 against Rs. 11.8 billion 

as at 31st March 2013, comprising of 37.7 

percent of Non-current assets and 62.3 

percent of  Current assets.

Total value of non-current assets value 

of Rs.5.9 billion as at 31st March 2014 

[FYE 2013: Rs.5.2 billion] is an increase 

of 12.9 percent against last financial year 

representing the growth of property, 

plant and equipment and finance lease 

receivables.

Current assets of the Group increased from 

Rs. 6.5 billion in 31st March 2013 to Rs. 

9.8 billion in 31st March 2014, the increase 

of Rs. 3.2 billion (49.2 percent) against 

reporting date is mainly attributed to the 

increase in trade and receivables and other 

current receivables.

Cash flow

Cash generated from Group’s operations 

before working capital changes stood at Rs. 

2.0 billion in FYE 2014 compared with Rs. 

1.5 billion reported in the previous financial 

year. Net cash generated from operations 

decreased due to negative working capital 

changes when compared with previous 

financial year.

Net cash used in investment activities 

was Rs. 1.1 billion during FYE 2014, as 

against Rs. 999.3 million in the previous 

financial year. This includes a total of Rs. 

497.5 million invested in the acquisition of 

property, plant & equipment as well as the 

purchase of firm lease receivables amount 

to Rs. 740.2 million. Net cash generated 

from financing activities stood at Rs. 228.2 

million compared to the negative Rs. 242.5 

million in FYE 2013. The cash generated 

from financing activities was utilized 

to finance the aforesaid investments in 

property, plant & equipment.

Net Assets Value per Share

Higher earnings by the Company in retained 

earnings, the net assets value per share of 

Group increased from Rs. 37.5 to 41.3 per 

share as at 31st March 2014.

Capital Structure

Assets were funded by shareholders funds 

(32.6 percent), non-current liabilities 

(8.9 percent) and current liabilities (58.5 

percent) as at the reporting date.
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Graphical illustration is for core sectors only
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GROUP OUTLOOK
The following is an overview of the 

economic outlook for Sri Lanka for the 

financial year 2015 and the foreseen 

impact on Group operations.

We expect the Sri Lankan economy to 

accelerate further over the medium term 

driven by improved domestic physical 

infrastructure, increased investment by 

public and private sectors, augmented 

tourist arrivals and the growth in foreign 

remittances. 

The positive macro-economic outlook, 

coupled with favourable Government 

policies, in order to position Sri Lanka as a 

commercial hub in the region, is expected 

to augur well for the Group. The Group 

is positioned to capitalise on the demand 

stemming from the Government’s efforts 

to ensure the capacity of major public 

utilities and infrastructure facilities are 

developed to meet the growing economy. 

Our scope in this regard is aimed at 

expanding capacity in areas ranging from: 

potable and storm water management, 

power generation, transport infrastructure 

and enhancing the engineering services. 

Given our proven track record, the Group 

is also expected to benefit from the 

Government’s rural development initiatives 

such as “Divi Neguma”, “Gama Neguma” 

“Maga Neguma” and other regional 

development initiatives.

Maintaining inflation at mid-single digits 

will remain the focus of monetary policy 

in 2014, however, input cost of the Group 

may still escalate depending on the price 

increase of local construction material, 

availability of labour in the industry, import 

duties on imported building materials and 

world crude oil prices. 

The money market continued to remain 

liquid through steps taken by the Central 

Bank to ease the monetary policy with 

a view to increase domestic investment 

and consumption activity.  The Group will 

continue to evaluate and re-finance its 

borrowing portfolio, where applicable and 

relevant, to take advantage of the attractive 

interest rate environment. 

In terms of the Group’s future expansion 

plans, we expect to expand our award 

winning marine engineering sector to 

provide a further array of services to 

compliment our current afloat repair 

operations. On the power generation front, 

the Group is exploring options to enter 

renewable power generation through the 

evaluation of several potential projects 

in the areas of hydro, solar and wind 

power. Furthermore, the Group looks to 

expand its operations into the real estate 

development sector, an area where the 

Group’s expertise in construction and 

engineering will allow it to maximize value 

engineering and guarantee work quality. 

Through our planned real estate venture, 

we expect to capitalise on the upward 

trend in demand for all forms of housing, 

as witnessed in the current market.

We understand that in a world of finite 

resources, sustainable development is key. 

Our outlook on sustainability will push the 

Group to further its endeavour to embed a 

culture of sustainability in all operations. 

With the support of our employees 

and partners through investment in 

management information systems for 

faster decision making, adopting green 

technology and taking steps to improve 

efficiency throughout all Group business 

activities, we look forward to sustainably 

constructing success in the years to come.

Financial Reporting

MTD Walkers PLC is committed to adopting 

best practices of financial reporting by 

conforming to the most updated financial 

reporting and disclosure requirements. 

The financial statements and notes on 

pages 100 to 147 have been prepared in 

compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards.

Our Achievement

The Group gives high priority to timely 

delivery of both quarterly and annual 

financial statements. Our comprehensive 

reporting has enabled shareholders and 

all other stakeholders to make a fair 

assessment of the Group’s performance. 

As a result, our Annual Report for FYE 

2013 titled “Engineering the future” was 

acclaimed with a “Silver Award”, in the 

construction sector. This award, aptly 

validates our commitment to accountability, 

transparency and quality of reporting, it 

redoubles our motivation to improve our 

reporting standards. 
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OUR STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES AND KPIs

In line with our vision is to be in the 

forefront of infrastructure development 

in Sri Lanka, implementing solutions to 

orchestrate its evolution, we have set our 

targets to be achieved by 2016 as given 

below;

Companies in Sri Lanka”

 With over Rs. 20 billion revenue an 

15 percent Net Profit Margin

Places to Work” in Sri Lanka.

We measure the Group’s strategic progress 

through a balanced set of key performance 

indicators (KPIs) that are both financial 

and non-financial and which help guide our 

thinking and development at every stage. 

Strategic Objectives:

1. Creating Shareholder Value

2. Growth

3. Deliver Greater Value to Clients

4. Improve Operational Performance and 

Cost Effectiveness

5. Continue to Show Leadership in Values 

and Behaviour

Creating Shareholder Value

The share price of MTD Walkers PLC ranged 

between Rs. 22.1 to Rs. 36.6, closing at Rs. 

30.1 as at 31st March 2014. 

The primary concern of shareholders is to 

ensure that they obtain adequate return on 

their investment. Even though a dividend 

was not declared during the financial year, 

the shareholders have been adequately 

compensated with an overall increase in 

share price approximating to 22.9 percent, 

closing at Rs. 30.10. 

The Group has aggressively pursued and 

secured new business, which has increased 

revenue and resulted in EBIT growth from 

FYE 2013 to FYE 2014 approximating to 

24.8 percent. This resulted in an increase in 

the EPS from Rs. 3.9 to Rs. 4.2.

Growth

In the short to medium term, our aim 

is to capitalise on growth opportunities 

presented by the Sri Lankan post-war 

infrastructure landscape. Our medium 

term strategy is to strengthen the Group 

by expanding its current engineering 

service portfolio by venturing into new 

fields of operations and new geographies. 

Our long term strategy is to continue 

to strengthen our presence in existing 

infrastructure sectors and increase the level 

of diversification.

How do we measure progress 
and our performance?

We focus on growth in revenue of each 

sector to measure our progress as a Group 

(Civil Engineering sector, Engineering 

Services sector and Power Generation 

sector) 

Amalgamating the revenue growth achieved 

by each sub sector, the Group recorded a 

Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 

39.2 percent over the last five years. 
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Deliver Greater Value to Clients

We commence our projects by defining 

and making sure we understand our 

clients’ requirements, challenges and 

goals, such as value engineering, cost 

reduction, productivity improvement 

and environmental impact reduction. 

Subsequently, drawing on our 160 years of 

engineering expertise spanning the entire 

infrastructure landscape, we create and 

deliver infrastructure solutions that fit their 

objectives.   

How do we measure progress and our 

performance?

Construction Ratings

CML-MTD Construction Limited

 C1 – Highways, Bridges, Dredging and 

Reclamation

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd

GP-B1 Contractor for piling

The ICTAD grading not only represents 

our national grading as a construction 

contractor but it also represents our track 

record and reputation with clients.

Walker Sons & Co. Engineers 
(Pvt.) Ltd

Having carried out many projects, the 

Company has achieved the preferred 

contractor status to Ceylon Electricity 

Board, Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, 

Ceylon Petroleum Storage Terminals 

Limited and the Urban Development 

Authority.

Improve Operational 
Performance and Cost 
Effectiveness

In the FYE 2014, the operating margin 

declined by 1.3 percent. This was brought 

on by a one-off cost incurred to implement 

an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 

tool aimed at strengthening our back end 

operations and improve communication and 

efficiencies across the Group. Operating 

margin was further eroded by heavy 

maintenance expenditure at the Groups 

Subsidiary, Northern Power Company (Pvt.) 

Ltd. (NPC) from the overhaul of machines 

and an increased provision at  NPC for 

doubtful debts (as noted in the Group 

Financial Review)mainly due to an increase 

in operational costs

How do we measure progress and our 

performance?

Continue to Show Leadership in 
Values and Behaviour
As the vanguard of the industry we continue 
to focus on securing a sustainable, long 
term future for the Group and providing 
a legacy to the communities in which we 
serve. To this end, it is critical we continue 
to focus our efforts and demonstrate 
exemplary leadership in the fields of 
business ethics, talent management, quality, 
safety and environment.

How do we measure progress and our 
performance?

Talent Management

At MTD Walkers PLC, we believe that 
talent management means selecting the 
right people, developing their potential and 
fuelling their enthusiasm. Sound talent 
management procedures facilitates the 
Group to create a solid foundation for its 
products and services enabling the Group 
to deliver greater value to its clients. 

For further details on our talent 
management endeavours, refer our Human 
Capital Management section on pages 88 to 
93 of this report. 

Quality Management

All three subsectors of the Group are 
compliant with International Organization 
for Standardization - Quality Management 
(ISO 9001:2008) that ensures the Group’s 
services consistently meet client’s 
requirements and are consistently improved.

Environmental Performance

Committed to reduce our impact on the 
environment, the Civil Engineering sector 
of the Group is compliant with International 
Organization for Standardization - 
Environment Management System (ISO 
14001: 2004).

Occupational Health and Safety 
Management (OH&S)

The Civil Engineering sector of the Group is 
compliant with International Organization 
for Standardization - Occupational Health 
and Safety Management (OHSAS 18001) 
which facilitates the sector by establishing 
an OH&S management system to eliminate 
or minimize risk to employees and other 
interested parties who may be exposed to 
OH&S risks associated with its activities.

Refer pages 84 to 87 for further details on 
our sustainability endeavours detailed in our 
Sustainability Framework and Policies. 
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SECTOR
OVERVIEW

Our three businesses sectors draw on more than 160 years of experience to deliver the 

highest level of quality, safety and technical expertise to our clients.

With proven expertise in delivering infrastructure critical to support communities and 

society, today and in the future, our key operational sectors focus on:

Civil Engineering Power Generation Engineering Services

As a C1 grade civil contractor, we 

undertake some of the biggest and 

most complex civil engineering 

projects, to enable the nation’s quest for 

development.    

The first IPP (Independent Power 

Producer) to venture to generate power for 

the Jaffna Peninsula at the height of the 

humanitarian operations. Currently running 

as a grid connected plant, empowering 

national development.

As the Group’s heritage sector, our 

Engineering Services division has served 

the nation for 160 years, successfully 

executing some of the Island’s most 

prestigious projects for the both, the 

public and private sectors. 

What we do What we do What we do

Northern Power PlantUma Oya Project Rantambe Dam Project
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Rs. 8,005 Mn Revenue

Rs. 1,148 Mn

Profits from operations

Rs. 1,588 Mn Revenue

Rs. 233 Mn

Profits from operations

Rs. 379 Mn Revenue

Rs. 69 Mn

Profits from operations
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Revenue contribution to the Group 

EBIT contribution to the Group 

Revenue contribution to the Group 

EBIT contribution to the Group 

Key highlights Key highlights Key highlights

with a confirmed order book till 2017.

assessed and certified to meet with ISO 

9001:2008, ISO 18001:2007 and ISO 

14001: 2004 international standards.

with a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). as a result of the surge in demand for 

major public utilities and infrastructure 

in Sri Lanka
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Vision and Scope

The Group’s vision is to be the premier 

infrastructure solutions provider in Sri 

Lanka. The sector encompasses two leading 

civil engineering companies, namely, CML-

MTD Construction Limited and Walkers 

Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. These two companies 

collectively contribute approximately 80 

percent of the Group’s revenue and are at 

the forefront of maintaining the Group’s 

competitive edge.

CML-MTD Construction Limited has a 

successful record of completing over 125 

large scale civil engineering projects over 

a period of 34 years consisting of projects 

pertaining to highways, bridges, buildings, 

dam construction & rehabilitation, 

irrigation, water supply & drainage, land 

reclamation and port construction. Further, 

the company has an in-house engineering 

design arm, operates seven quarry sites, 

and produces construction aggregate, 

asphalt and ready mix concrete. 

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. is the pioneer 

pile foundation company in Sri Lanka 

specialising in constructing bored 

cast in-situ reinforced concrete pile 

foundations. The company has completed 

over 160 projects over a period of 30 

years, comprising of piled foundations 

for high rise buildings, bridges and other 

infrastructure related projects. 

Key Financial Indicators

Rs. million FYE 2014 FYE 2013  Change (%)

Revenue  8,005.3  4,841.6 65.3

EBIT  1,148.1  728.9 57.5

PAT  620.6  331.9 87.0

Total assets  9,838.4  6,673.0 47.4

Total equity  2,028.0  1,466.7 38.3

Total debt  3,177.4  2,655.8 19.6

Capital employed  5,205.4  4,122.5 26.3

Operational Review

The financial year under review was a 

demanding year for the Group which saw 

the inclusion of an impressive number 

of large scale projects into this sector’s 

order books. Revenue grew in line with the 

growth in Sri Lanka’s construction industry, 

which grew by 14.4 percent year-on-year. 

and the Civil Engineering sector’s ability to 

bid for, execute and deliver on such large 

scale projects. The large scale projects are 

diversified into the following areas of the 

sector’s engineering capacities:

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
SECTOR

Capital Employed 
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Highways

Recognising the importance of road 

development to facilitate higher economic 

growth, progressive development and to 

reduce disparities between urban and rural 

areas, the Government has prioritised the 

development of road infrastructure in its 

development agenda. Over the past few 

years, a number of major development 

and rehabilitation projects have been 

implemented as outlined in the National 

Road Master Plan (2007-2017) of the Road 

Development Authority.

The much awaited Colombo - Katunayake 

Expressway was completed and opened for 

public use in October 2013. The Southern 

Expressway - Phase II from Pinnaduwa 

to Godagama, and Phase I of the Outer 

Circular Highway from Kottawa to Kaduwela 

linking with the Southern Expressway at 

Kottawa, were among the roads that were 

inaugurated last year.

Group subsidiary CML-MTD Construction 

Limited has been at the forefront of many 

road development projects in Sri Lanka and 

has successfully completed and handed 

over large scale projects during the financial 

year along with many medium scale road 

rehabilitation projects. 

Among the more prominent projects 

CML-MTD Construction Limited engaged in 

during the financial year under review, is the 

Meditale - Pathanawatta -Thennepanguwa - 

Kiriwehara road development project, which 

involved the rehabilitation and upgrading of 

a 28 KM stretch of road in the UVA province 

under World Bank funding. The total project 

value at the time of completion was Rs. 

635.0 million. The company also engaged 

in the rehabilitation and upgrading of the 

Dankotuwa – Giriulla – Narammala Road (B-

308) from  Narammala to Giriulla (Section 

0 to 16.03 KM), which provides access to 

Kuliyapitiya, Pannala, Alawwa, Mirigama 

and Chilaw town, and also facilitates 

access to the major towns of Gampaha 

, Kurunegala and Negombo. This was a 

strategic project of importance, which was 

funded by People’s Bank under the Local 

Bank Funded Projects - Phase I.

Moreover, during the financial year under 

review, CML-MTD Construction Limited 

worked in the capacity of a subcontractor 

to China Harbour Engineering Company, in 

the A 32 - rehabilitation and improvement of 

Navatkuli - Karaitivu - Mannar Road (A032) 

from section 44+000 to 57+100 kilo meters. 

The project consisted of improving the road 

network to the Northern Province, and the 

value of work executed was approximately 

Rs. 2.1 billion.

Rehabilitation and upgrading of  Giriulla – Narammala Road

Rehabilitation of Nalla Mirigama Road
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Bridges

The Government’s strategy to ease traffic 

congestion through the development 

and rehabilitation of bridges and flyovers 

continued throughout the financial year. To 

this end, CML-MTD Construction Limited 

completed the landmark Parliament 

bridge project- widening of bridge No. 

1/1 on the security access road to the 

parliament complex. This was an ICTAD 

Award winning project in the year 2013. 

CML-MTD Construction Limited was highly 

commended by the Road Development 

Authority and other ministries with 

regard to the speed of work and traffic 

management at a highly congested bridge 

junction.

CML-MTD Construction Limited was also 

awarded the widening of the Nawala Bridge 

on the Narahenpita - Nawala - Nugegoda 

Road. The widening of this bridge from its 

existing two lane configuration will greatly 

reduce the traffic congestion which currently 

exists between the towns of Nugegoda and 

Nawala. The company was also awarded the 

widening of the Cotta Road Bridge on the 

Borella - Rajagiriya Road (Cotta Road) near 

Ayurvedic Hospital. This bridge is expected 

to ease the traffic flow on the Cotta road 

leading to the Borella junction. The said two 

projects are scheduled to be completed in 

the following financial year.

Buildings

The Government has taken many steps in 

2013, in line with the ‘Mahinda Chintana’ 

to realize the national drive of ‘home 

ownership for all’ by the year 2020. In 

keeping with the Government’s urban 

development plans for Colombo, the 

Urban Development Authority has initiated 

an ambitious plan titled the “Urban 

Regeneration Project’, with the goal of 

constructing housing units in order to 

eliminate shanties and other dilapidated 

areas by resettling families currently living 

in such areas. 

Aimed at uplifting the living standards of 

300,000 low-income residents, the project 

undertakes construction of 70,000 housing 

units within a five year period to relocate 

these families in to well constructed 

complexes through a community 

development program. Green concepts have 

been incorporated into the design of the 

buildings in addition to enabling maximum 

levels of natural light and ventilation while 

reducing energy needs. Phase 1 of this 

project has commenced and approximately 

8000 units are currently being constructed. 

The new housing units will be constructed 

on 300 acres of land with electricity, water 

and sewage facilities.

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
SECTOR

As a result of the recognition of CML-MTD 

Construction Limited’s competence and 

expertise as a contractor, the company was 

awarded the construction of 5000 housing 

units at Madampitiya, Colombo 15 as well 

as 872 housing units at Ferguson Road, 

Colombo 15. These projects mark CML-

MTD Construction Limited’s entry into the 

building construction segment of the civil 

engineering industry. The construction of 

the 872 housing units at Ferguson Road, 

Colombo 15 commenced in the financial 

year under consideration and is scheduled 

to be completed in the following financial year.

Parliament Bridge Project- Kotte
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Quarry, Asphalt and Concrete 

Quarry operations of the Civil Engineering 

sector is carried out by CML-MTD 

Construction Limited There are seven 

quarries strategically located around Sri 

Lanka, which mainly provides aggregate 

and boulders in varying sizes to cater to 

in-house demand for projects completed 

by CML-MTD Construction Limited The 

company is in the process of gaining a 

competitive edge by strengthening its 

quarry operations in order to cater to 

projects that fall outside the company 

purview but are carried out within proximity 

to the quarry sites. The seven quarries 

produce a total of 60,000 m3 of aggregate 

products per month. 

Asphalt batching takes place in four asphalt 

batching plants, which are fully owned and 

operated under CML-MTD Construction 

Limited, with a combined capacity of 50,000 

MT per month. These plants help streamline 

the supply chain activities for road 

construction, enabling timely and efficient 

completion of road projects pertaining to 

civil engineering.

There are four concrete batching plants 

that are utilized at the relevant construction 

sites, which have a combined capacity of 

approximately 10,000 m3 per month, along 

with a fleet of concrete mixer trucks for 

transportation of ready mix concrete which 

can be mobilized as and when required. 

These plants also provide an essential 

service to the overall self sufficiency of the 

Group’s Civil Engineering sector. 

Water Supply and Irrigation

Availability of water for irrigation, access to 

quality drinking water and power generation 

are crucial for a rising agrarian economy 

and sustainable livelihood development. 

Therefore, rehabilitation of dams takes 

priority in the Nation’s development plans.

CML-MTD Construction Limited was able to  

competitively tender for dam rehabilitation 

projects, and was awarded the remedial 

work of Nalanda dam this financial year. 

This dam is the first concrete dam to 

have been constructed by the Irrigation 

Department of Sri Lanka since the 1960’s, 

incorporating a height of 35.66 M and a 

length of 124.05 M. The Nalanda dam is 

one of the first dams to be rehabilitated 

under the Dam safety and water resources 

planning project. This project is due for 

completion in the next financial year.

Further, in order to successfully bid for  

water supply projects, that come under the 

purview of CML-MTD Construction Limited, 

the company has strategically collaborated 

with foreign expertise in order to strengthen 

the company’s portfolio of products and 

technical expertise.

UDA Housing Project - Ferguson Road

Asphalt laying crusher - Nalla Mirigama
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Piling

The Civil Engineering sector’s piling 

operations are carried out by the Group’s 

subsidiary, Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. 

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. is the only piling 

company in Sri Lanka who has been 

assessed and certified to meet with ISO 

9001:2008, ISO 18001:2007 and ISO 

14001: 2004  international standards. This 

certification has been granted for: bored 

cast-in-situ piling, R.C, pre-cast piling, 

steel sheet and H piling, retaining structure 

contiguous piling, maintained load testing 

of piles, pile integrity-testing, design 

of pile foundation systems and for site 

investigation work.

The notable piling projects undertaken 

by Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd., during the 

financial year, have included work on the 

construction of 4,100 housing units for 

relocation of underserved settlements, 

Colombo (low cost housing project) 

at Maligawatta and Aluth Mawatha. 

both projects used 454 and 450 piles, 

respectively. The company also undertook 

the piling works of tower Block 2 and 4 

of the proposed Defence Headquarters 

Complex at Akuregoda, which utilised 181 

and 233 piles respectively. 

During the financial year, Walkers Piling 

(Pvt.) Ltd. also carried out piling work for 

the proposed six storey building complex 

for examination and lecture halls at 

University of Kelaniya , proposed Re-

Location of Railway Department (Blocks A 

and B),proposed office building for People’s 

Leasing Havelock Properties Ltd and 

proposed Commercial Building for M. N. 

Properties (Pvt.) Ltd At Katagewatta Road, 

Ragama.

Piling work for Defence Headquarters - Akuregoda

Piling work for Buddha statue - Mathugama

CIVIL ENGINEERING 
SECTOR
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Building

for Colombo include the construction of 70,000 low cost housing units in order to 

eliminate temporary shelters and other dilapidated areas by resettling families currently 

living in such areas. The resettlement plan is expected to be carried out in 2 phases, as 

below:

- Phase 1 – construction of 30,000 housing units within the next three years;

-  Phase 2 – construction of 40,000 housing units after the completion of phase 1.

Source: National Housing Policy

of high end residential and commercial buildings (e.g. tourism related infrastructure). 

The Central Bank forecasts the construction of 7,900 hotel rooms and 7,600 new 

apartments within the next 3 - 5 years.

Source: Annual Report 2013,Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Roads

expected to amount to Rs. 1.4 trillion. 

percent of the road network is yet to be developed.

Source: Ministry of Finance

Water supply & irrigation

piped sewerage coverage by 2020.

Source: Ministry of Finance

Strategic Initiatives 

Aligned with the industry trends, in the financial year under review, the Civil Engineering 

sector strategically positioned itself to increase its capacity to capitalise on the potential 

opportunities. To this end, the Group has engaged in employing high calibre technical 

employees to this sector, who are crucial in carrying out the assignments for optimal 

utilization of the sector’s expanding fleet of plant and machinery. In pursuit of increasing the 

sector capacity, Group’s piling subsidiary, Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. added two new piling 

rigs and other accessories to their fleet resulting in a total of 11 piling rigs being owned by 

the Company. During the financial year, CML-MTD Construction Limited also invested in 

upgrading their plant and machinery fleet, which included the addition of backhoe loaders, 

excavators, vibratory rollers, generators, wheel loaders, heavy trucks, truck mixes, skid 

loaders, air compressors, an asphalt mixing plant, lab equipment, formwork systems, a 

stationary concrete pump and support vehicles to their current fleet.

Future Focus

Key actions for FYE 2015

Financial Review

The Group’s Civil Engineering sector 

maintained its strong performance during 

the financial year and witnessed an overall 

revenue growth of 65.3 percent to Rs. 8.0 

billion [FYE 2013: Rs. 4.8billion], marking 

the highest revenue achieved in the last 

four years. This impressive revenue was 

achieved through the combination of 

increased number of projects and the 

broadened scope of serviced offered. 

Cost of sales increased by 72.2 percent, 

reflecting the increase in the price of raw 

materials and wages in the industry. (The 

cost of construction rose by 7.2 percent 

as indicated by the growth in the cost of 

construction index compiled by the Institute 

of Construction, Training and Development 

(ICTAD). As a result the sector witnessed 

its gross profit margin decline by 300 basis 

points to 19.6 percent from 22.8 percent in 

the previous financial year. Nevertheless, 

the sector EBIT recorded a growth of 57.5 

percent to Rs.1,148.1 [FYE 2013: Rs. 728.9 

million] driven by the surge in construction 

activities in the country and the sector’s 

operational efficiencies. Overall, the sector 

recorded a net profit of Rs. 620.6 million for 

the FYE 2014 depicting a striking growth in 

profits of 87.0 percent against the net profit 

of Rs. 331.9 million reported in the previous 

financial year. 
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POWER GENERATION 
SECTOR

Vision and Scope

The Group’s Power Generation sector’s vision is to be a reliable Independent Power 

Producer (IPP) contributing to the growing power demand in Sri Lanka. The Group’s Power 

generation operations are carried out at a thermal power plant in Chunnakam, Jaffna, by 

the Group’s subsidiary Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. (NPC). FYE 2014 has been 

a noteworthy year as NPC achieved the status of a commissioned independent power 

producer and achieved connectivity to the national grid, allowing power distribution island 

wide, with a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) valid till the year 2023. 

Key Financial Indicators  

Rs. million FYE 2014 FYE 2013 Change  (%)

Revenue  1,588.3  2,116.5 -25.0

EBIT  232.8  461.8 -49.6

PAT  93.3  339.6 -72.5

Total assets  4,275.4  3,810.6 12.2

Total equity  2,686.3  2,637.5 1.8

Total debt  640.8  359.7 78.1

Capital employed  3,327.1  2,997.2 11.0

Operational Review

The Power Purchase Agreement with the Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) requires the plant 

to be commissioned at 30 MW for a period of 10 years. The strategic focus throughout the 

financial year has been to consistently deliver the commissioned volume to the national grid. 

NPC expects a cessation in plant failures and unforeseeable maintenance issues, seen in 

previous periods, as these technical difficulties were inherent to operating in island mode 

which is the operation of a power plant supplying power to a very specific geographical area. 

In NPC’s case, power was supplied only to the Jaffna peninsula, exposing our machines 

to a series of technical difficulties. These difficulties or trippings, as they are known in the 

industry, were a result of the deteriorated transmission lines, which are systematically being 

upgraded.

Contribution to the Group

Northern Power Plant - Construction stage, 2008
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Strategic Initiatives and Future Focus

The Power Generation sector has 

established strategies and implementable 

goals to address the material issues 

identified. 

Key actions for FYE 2015

consistent volumes and reduction 

of fuel consumption.

new plant machinery to improve 

operational efficiency.

Standard - OHSAS 18001 

(Occupational Health and Safety 

Management System)

 The plant has a capacity of 36 

MW and the focus is to reliably 

produce 30 MW daily, avoiding any 

liquidated damages payable to the 

CEB. Meeting this strategic goal 

set will increase NPC’s operational 

efficiency and will also give the 

Group’s Power Generation sector a 

marked difference in their profits.

Industry Trends

Rising demand for power consumption 

accelerating and the country is grappling to meet the rising demand. 

in the manufacturing and industrial sector and the population movement to Colombo 

suburbs.

Government initiated developments

a vision to achieve an electrification level goal of 100 percent. ( Source: Ministry of 

Power and Energy) 

Increased private sector participation 

growing demand for power is expected to rise in the short-medium term

needs in 2012 against 37 percent in 2011. (Source: Generation performance in Sri 

Lanka, Public Utilities Commission of Sri Lanka)

Trends in Power Sector

Category 2005 2010 2012 2016 2020

Electrification Coverage (%) 75 88 100 100 100

Base Demand (MW) 1768 2517 2921 3943 5306

Installed Capacity (MW) 2409 2891 3470 4732 6367

System Losses (%) 16.7 14.5 14 13 12

Financial Review

Revenue of the Power Generation sector declined by 25.0 percent to Rs.1.6 billion [FYE 

2013: Rs 2.1 billion], primarily on the account of CEB purchasing less volume in line with 

the merit order of Private Power Plants, as favourable weather conditions that prevailed 

during the year helped to boost the usage of hydro-power. The revenue was also affected 

by the new power plant commissioned by the CEB in Jaffna in 2013 allowing the CEB to be 

stringent in purchasing power from NPC and other thermal power producers. The gross 

profit ratio remained at 21.6 percent from the last financial year as the cost of sales reduced 

linear to the decrease in volumes. Operating expenses increased to Rs. 121.2 million from 

Rs. 33.9 million in the last financial year. The increase in operating expenses is mainly 

attributable to the overhaul maintenance affected during the financial year and the increased 

provision for doubtful debts from CEB as per Group policy. The sector’s finance cost 

increased to Rs. 156.2 million in the current financial year from Rs. 134.1 million depicting 

an increase of 16.5 percent, which the Group expects to reduce in the next financial year 

linear to the low market rates prevailing in the country. The sector reported a post tax profit 

of Rs. 93.3 million compared to Rs. 339.6 million in FYE 2013. 

Dismanting of a crank shaft - Northern Power Plant
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ENGINEERING SERVICES 
SECTOR

Vision and Scope

With the vision to be Sri Lanka’s premier 

engineering service provider offering 

mechanical and building services, the 

Engineering Services sector of MTD 

Walkers PLC consists of two fully 

owned subsidiaries, Walker Sons & Co. 

Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd. (WENG) and Colombo 

Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd. (CES).

WENG is a specialist mechanical 

engineering company, which operates 

in three major business sectors; Project 

Engineering, Building Services and 

Plantation Engineering. As one of the oldest 

engineering companies in Sri Lanka with 

a history spanning 160 years, WENG has 

leveraged on its experience and has carried 

out large scale projects for both the public 

and private sectors. The installation of the 

first touch button passenger lift at Galle 

Face Hotel in 1911, the construction of the 

first cement factory in Kankesenthurai in 

1948 and the construction of penstocks 

for the Maskeliyaoya project in 1971 

and Mahaweli river scheme in 1974 

are a few projects that elaborates the 

illustrious history of  WENG. The plantation 

engineering division of WENG is also the 

premier manufacturer of tea and rubber 

manufacturing machinery in Sri Lanka in 

addition to supplying the local tea industry 

WENG exports machinery to Vietnam, 

Rwanda and Japan. To further enhance its 

building services and product offering, in 

the financial year 2014, WENG acquired 

Western Air Ducts (Pvt.) Ltd, a BOI venture, 

which manufactures air conditioning ducts, 

grills and diffusers.  

CES represents the Group’s marine 

engineering division; operating in the port 

of Colombo, the epicentre of Sri Lanka’s 

shipping industry, CES continues to fortify 

its position as the market leader of the 

afloat ship repair sector. Its range includes 

many specialized procedures, which 

necessarily take place under water, such as 

video inspections, welding, damage repair, 

polishing and cleaning of hulls, and steel 

structural repairs.

Key Financial Indicators

Rs. million

FYE 

2014

FYE 

2013

Change

(%)

Revenue  378.8  276.5 37.0

EBIT  68.9  (30.8) 323.6

PAT  52.3  (38.5) 235.6

Total 

assets 

 584.8  458.5 27.6

Total 

equity

 20.9  (8.5) 345.9

Total debt  115.1  104.7 10.0

Capital 

employed

 136.0  96.2 41.4

Ceylon Petroleum Corporation - Sapugaskanda

Contribution to the Group
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Operational Review

The infrastructure boom witnessed by Sri 

Lanka has created a surge in demand for 

major public utilities and infrastructure, 

such as water, electricity, sewerage and 

storm water drainage, fire protection 

in buildings, solid waste management 

and transportation infrastructure. In the 

light of the above and the expansion and 

development of the Colombo port that has 

taken place in the recent years, the Group’s 

Engineering Service sector has witnessed 

a 37.0 percent  year-on-year growth in 

revenue.

Heavy Engineering Projects

WENG carries out heavy engineering 

projects in the form of remedial work 

on dams, design and construction of 

oil tanks, construction and erection of 

telecommunication towers, fabrication and 

installation of structures and engineering 

work for the petroleum, cement and steel 

industries.

The upgrading of the cement manufacturing 

plant carried out for Holcim Lanka 

PLC stands as a testament to WENG’s 

engineering expertise in heavy engineering 

projects. The scope of  work included: 

erection of a coal grinding plant, structural 

steel work for the roller press building, 

replacement of the existing electrostatic 

precipitator with a new dust bag on line 

filter and clinker bins and hoppers for 

the cement plant in Palavi – Puttalam. 

The completion of the new dust bag on 

line filter ensured a clear “Blue Sky” in 

the surrounding area free of cement dust 

emission to the atmosphere.

Another distinctive heavy engineering 

project carried out by WENG is the 

reconstruction of the bottom and the 

floating roof of a 67 M diameter crude oil 

storage steel tank at Sapugaskanda for 

Ceylon Petroleum Corporation. The project 

was completed within due time, complying 

to the latest edition of the API standard 

codes 650/653. This challenging project 

epitomizes WENG’s extensive engineering 

capabilities and knowledge.

During the financial year under review, 

WENG concluded the remedial work of 

Maduruoya Dam for Mahaweli Authority 

under the Ministry of Irrigation and Water 

Management of Sri Lanka. The project 

scope included: maintenance of hydraulic 

system, replacement of hydraulic oil with 

biodegradable fluid in the entire system, 

installation of stop logs and replacement of 

corrosion protection of the trash racks, all 

of which WENG carried out successfully.

In addition to the above, WENG also 

concluded the remedial work of 

Chandrikawewa Dam for Mahaweli Authority 

under the Ministry of Irrigation and Water 

Resources Management of Sri Lanka. The 

project involved fabrication and installation 

of steel radial gate, replacement and the 

repair of  hoisting mechanism at the sluice 

tower, installation of access ladders at the 

sluice tower and replacement of the timber 

at the guard gates of the sluice tower.

WENG is currently carrying out remedial 

work at the Randenigala and Rantambe 

dams, and hopes to continue undertaking 

similar complex and integrated projects in 

the future. 

Mechanical, Electrical and 
Plumbing (MEP)

The MEP division of WENG provides 

maintenance and upgrade services for 

effluent treatment plants, elevators and 

escalators, telecommunications, lightning 

protection systems and generator backup 

systems. 

During the financial year under review, the 

MEP division carried out electrical work at 

the Maduruoya Dam for Mahaweli Authority 

under the Ministry of Irrigation and Water 

Management of Sri Lanka. The electrical 

work carried out involved the refurbishment 

of all electrical equipment associated with 

the operation of sluice gates, trash rack 

machine including supply and installation of 

new equipment, testing and commissioning 

of the refurbished operating systems.

Building Services

WENG’s building services include the 

maintenance and upgrade services of 

electrical power distribution systems,  

lighting systems, storm water discharge 

systems, sewage and waste water disposal 

systems, cold/hot water supply systems 

and water disposal systems. In addition, the 

division also carries out the manufacture 

and supply of grilles & diffusers, spiral duct 

work and associated fittings. 

Rehabilitation of Randenigala Dam
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Industry Trends

Industrial boom

The Government’s drive to continually improve infrastructure is promoting growth in 

the engineering services sector, as demonstrated over the growth in the past three 

years, signalling immense potential for the future.

Government’s diversified approach to economic development

of Sri Lanka has been assessing and looking into areas that have not 

been developed for over half a century, which are the areas of specialization of the 

Group’s Engineering Services sector:

- Improving the quality of drinking water,

- Rehabilitation of power plants

- Dam Rehabilitation (Funded by the World Bank)

- Rehabilitation of reservoirs

- Dam safety & water resources planning

- Port refurbishing projects 

Curbing the trend of skilled  youth migration

The growth of the engineering sector is creating more job opportunities for skilled 

workforce to work in Sri Lanka.

Innovation

sponding to the growing demand for engineering services, the sector will 

continue to import technology from our partners around the world and innovate new 

technologies to execute projects. 

Government’s initiative to make Sri Lanka a global maritime hub

o the Government’s initiative, development and expansion of the Hambantota 

Port and the Colombo Port is currently in progress, which will result in increased 

number of vessels calling over in Sri Lanka.

ENGINEERING SERVICES
 SECTOR

Machinery Manufacturing 

The central workshop, situated at 

Sapugaskanda, is the nerve centre of WENG 

comprising a machine shop, which is one of 

the largest mechanical engineering facilities 

in the country, carrying out an array of 

jobs from the lightest to the heaviest. The 

workshop continues to meticulously carry 

out WENG’s oldest line of business, the 

production of tea machinery. The shift from 

manual to automated production  at the tea 

factories were enabled by WENG through 

the innovative production of the automated 

tea roller, one of latest contributions to the 

tea industry. In addition to tea machinery, 

WENG’s standard production lines include 

machinery for rubber processing and the 

refurbishment of sugar cane processing 

machinery. WENG is the only company 

in Sri Lanka that can re-shell large sugar 

rollers to meet the needs of the sugar cane 

industry. 

The central workshop is also equipped 

with an assembly bay and a fabrication 

plate workshop, supporting projects 

and building services offered by WENG 

from construction of pressure vessels, 

general fabrication of work, machining of 

components, manufacture of radial gates 

for hydro projects and steel segments for 

tank farms.

Ship Repairs

During the financial year under review, CES 

was continually  called on for repair work 

on major container lines. Among them 

was Maersk Line, Leonhard & Blumberg 

Schiffahrtsgesellschaft of Germany and 

V Ships of USA. CES’s ability to promptly 

administer on-board afloat repairs to 

vessels drives demand for its services in the 

ship repair market.

Financial Review

The Group’s Engineering Service sector 

reported revenue of Rs. 378.8 million 

depicting an encouraging 37.0 percent 

growth [FYE 2013:Rs. 276.5 million]. The 

revenue was driven by the increased volume 

of work handled by both WENG and CES. 

Despite input cost pressure and increased 

competition faced by WENG, the sector 

is proud to report a gross profit margin 

of 42.0 percent against 37.3 reported in 

the previous financial year. Operating cost 

of the sector declined by 19.5 percent 

to Rs.107.9 million [FYE 2013:Rs.134.0 

million], demonstrating significant 

improvement in cost control measures 

of the sector. As a result of the above, 

the sector was successfully reported an 

earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) and 

net profit margin of 18.2 percent and 13.8 

percent respectively compared to the (11.2) 

percent and (13.9) percent margin achieved 

in the previous financial year.  Overall, the 

sector recorded a net profit of Rs. 52.3 

million compared to the loss of Rs. (38.5) 

million reported in the previous financial 

year. 
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Strategic Focus and Initiatives

Engineering Services sector is engaged 

in providing skilled services. As such we 

believe it is fundamental for the Group’s 

Engineering Service sector to have multi-

skilled technicians and proficient engineers 

to deliver exceptional turnkey solutions 

exceeding the diverse requirements of our 

clients. Furthermore, businesses in this 

sector depend on competitive bidding, 

hence, to remain competitive in the 

engineering landscape companies have to 

be innovative and meticulous in reducing 

their operational costs and increasing 

efficiency.

The sector endeavoured to employ 

multitalented workforce who are equally 

skilled with engineering and management 

who can manage workshops and projects 

independently to support the growing order 

book of the sector.

The ability of WENG to contain costs is 

amply demonstrated by the considerable 

number of contracts the company has 

competitively secured from Ceylon 

Electricity Board, Ceylon Petroleum 

Corporation, Ceylon Petroleum Storage 

Terminals Limited and Urban Development 

Authority, thereby, achieving the status of a 

preferred contractor.  

Future Focus

Key actions for FYE 2015

employment of engineers and 

specialists with high grade of skill and 

experience to undertake more complex 

and integrated projects

broader range of ship repairs

marketing endeavours

Welding work - Randenigala
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ENTERPRISE RISK
MANAGEMENT 

Overview

MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries believes in good 

Corporate Governance practices 

with effective controls enabling risks 

to be identified, and strategically 

managed to meet obligations towards 

stakeholders.

The Group firmly believes that sound risk 

management practices are critical for long 

term growth. As such, the Group’s objective 

is to add maximum sustainable value to all 

organisation activities, taking in to account 

the potential positive and negative factors 

that can affect the operations as a going 

concern. Risk Management at MTD Walkers 

PLC and its subsidiaries is a continuous and 

evolving process, playing a pivotal role in 

corporate strategy and its implementation. 

The Group takes a systematic approach to 

managing risks by identifying, assessing 

and handling both, core and non-core risks, 

through a structured system of monitoring, 

controlling adverse impacts and finding 

opportunities therein to maximize returns.

Responsibility for Risk 
Management

The Group endeavours to inculcate, in all 

its employees, the importance of managing 

risk in day to day operations. All business 

decisions and related activities within the 

Group and our individual business units are 

governed by a structured risk management 

system, which is validated and monitored 

by the Internal Audit Department, to assist 

the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 

responsibilities. 

Risk Governance

Risk governance applies the principles 

of good governance to the identification, 

assessment, management and 

communication of risk. It incorporates such 

criteria as accountability, participation and 

transparency within the procedures and 

structures by which risk-related decisions 

are made and implemented.

The Group manages risks under an overall 

strategy determined by the Board of 

Directors, supported by the Board Audit 

Committee, Internal Audit Department 

and the Corporate Management team who 

review and augment the effectiveness 

of the Group’s risk management plans, 

systems and procedures. Acting within 

the authority delegated by the Board, the 

Group subsidiary CEO’s identify and  rate 

specific risk profiles. They receive regular 

reports on risk management from the 

respective subsidiaries, including project/ 

site performance reports, system of internal 

controls, infrastructure and regulatory 

compliance. 

Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer

The Group Chief Financial Officer (GCFO) at 

MTD Walkers PLC serves as the Group Risk 

Officer (GRO). The GCFO serves as a bridge 

between business units, management and 

the Board, providing necessary information 

and experience.

Risk responsibilities of the Group Chief 

Financial Officer is two fold and can be 

summarized as below;

Core risk responsibilities

The primary contribution of the GCFO is to 

manage strategic risk by ensuring relevant 

information is available for evaluating and 

monitoring strategic decisions. Moreover, 

GCFO brings objectivity and informed 

thinking to the strategic planning process 

by contributing to the:

business cases

warning signs

Extended risk responsibilities

The GCFO along with the respective CEOs 

are responsible for the coordination of 

strategic planning and the business plan, 

and for:

and updating risk tolerances

status of risk management issues to 

the Senior Management Team and the 

Audit Committee

Role of Treasury Department

The Group has already established a 

dedicated department with independent 

reporting lines to manage treasury related 

liquidity risks and interest rate risk with 

a better focus. The initial objective of the 

Treasury Department is to raise funds at 

the right time at the right rate. All treasury 

related regulatory and management 

reporting functions are carried out by the 

department.

The Group Treasury Department closely 

monitors the cash flow position of 

the Group and its subsidiaries. The 

Department also monitors economic and 

other operating conditions to forecast 

potential liquidity needs. It reports the cash 

flow requirement for each new project 

undertaken and projects at hand. Depending  

on the requirement of the funding needs of 

the Group and risk involved, the Treasury 

Department proposes necessary changes to 

the Group’s capital and financing structure, 

including the availability of alternative lines 

of funding. Ultimately, it attempts to ensure 

the availability of liquidity and cash to meet 

obligations as and when they fall due and 

obtain funds at competitive rates to fulfill 

any deficiency in liquidity.

The Treasury Department, reports to the 

head of Corporate Finance Department and 

GCFO who assesses factors embracing the 

liquidity risk and market risk in response, 

implement necessary risk mitigating actions 

changes as corrective measures.
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Role of Internal Audit 
Department

The Group’s Internal Audit Department 

focuses on providing an independent risk 

based oversight of the processes and 

controls within each of the business units 

and thereby helping to mitigate identified 

weaknesses. The Internal Audit Department 

is responsible for an independent, 

objective assurance on internal control 

mechanism in order to systematically 

evaluate and propose improvements for 

more effective internal control processes 

and governance. Further, the Internal 

Audit Department carries out independent 

reviews of compliance with risk policies and 

procedures to ensure the risk management 

processes are effectively applied.

At MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries, 

we follow an integrated approach to risk 

management that combines a top-down 

strategic view with a complementary 

bottom-up operational process. The top-

down approach involves a review of the 

external environment in which we operate 

in order to guide the individual subsidiaries’ 

assessment of the risks which the Group 

as a whole is comfortable exposing 

the business to. Individual subsidiaries 

shall identify, manage and monitor risk 

accordingly. This process complements the 

risk management procedure of the Group 

by ensuring that operational risks are fully 

considered and principal risks are informed 

to the corporate management and are 

fully incorporated in determining the risk 

appetite and the corresponding strategy of 

the business.

Identification of Risk:

As reiterated above, risk identification at 

MTD Walkers PLC is conducted at the 

operational level of each subsidiary of 

the Group. Thus, the risk identification 

process encompasses the identification 

of influencing factors , which could 

negatively impact the cost schedule or 

quality objectives of projects and the 

Group as whole. MTD Walkers PLC 

employs two methods to determine risks, 

namely qualitative and quantitative. The 

quantitative approach relies on statistics 

while qualitative approach is based on 

the expertise and judgment of the senior 

management. 

Assessment of Risk: 

To assess the risk associated with the 

Group, a risk map depicting the severity and 

frequency of each risk element is prepared 

as shown below. Each risk identified is rated 

according to their impact and probability 

of occurrence. The risk mapping approach 

adopted assists the management to 

prioritise their risk management decisions. 

Risk Monitoring 

Risk monitoring is a continuing process. 

New risks will emerge whilst existing 

risks will disappear. Risks that have been 

already acknowledged may become more 

or less frequent, severe or irrelevant to 

the organisation. The risk management 

strategy is a fluid document that is regularly 

updated to take account of changes in the 

organisation and the Group’s operating 

environment. 

Understanding the above, the Group has 

given due prominence to monitor risk 

periodically. The Group has established a 

process to monitor and continually assess 

the effectiveness of the Group’s current risk 

mitigation procedures.  Further, timelines 

are set to ensure the most urgent risks are 

dealt with immediately. 

Reporting of Risk

Reporting or recording of risk provides the 

Group with a document trail, in case the 

Group needs to justify its actions. It also 

helps the Group to avoid similar incidents 

happening again. 

Records the Group maintains:

decisions and the reasons for them

conversations in person or on the 

phone

any training undertaken by staff or 

volunteers

completed in the event of any injury or 

incident

Risk

Identification

Risk

Monitoring

Risk

Assessment

Risk

Management

Reporting

High 3 4 5

Moderate 2 3 4

Low 1 2 3

Low Moderate High

F
re

q
u
e
n
cy

Severity

Risk Map



80

A
n
n
u
al R

ep
o
rt 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Risk Profile of the Group

Management of Risk

Risk Category: Financial Risk

Credit Risk 

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low Moderate 2

Description 

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party 

to a transaction will fail to discharge an 

obligation, resulting in a financial loss. The 

credit risk for MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries arise from two sources, the 

possibility of non-payment or late payment 

because of client’s financial circumstances 

and circumstances related to failure to meet 

client specifications.

Assessment

The clientele of MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries is very well balanced between 

the Government and corporate clients. The 

Group also has competent project managers 

and procedures to ensure that each project 

is carried out to meet client specifications. 

Therefore, payment risk is given a moderate 

risk position of 2 at MTD Walkers PLC and 

its subsidiaries. Performance of local bank 

funded projects has significantly reduced 

credit risk seen in previously years. 

Control measures

An effective credit policy is implemented 

across all sector clients and they are 

evaluated on their credit worthiness by 

giving due consideration to financial, 

factual and qualitative behaviour. Regular 

reviews of the client’s creditworthiness are 

performed to mitigate payment risk. Further 

to these mitigating measures, contractual 

agreements are drawn up with clients and 

material payments are also backed by 

guarantees. Debtor age analysis is regularly 

reviewed and continuously monitored.

To mitigate payment risk arising from the 

second source as mentioned above, the 

project managers ensure that each project 

is carried out subsequent to detailed 

planning.  Thus, for each project undertaken 

by MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries, 

a contract is drawn up stipulating detailed 

scope of the services to be rendered and the 

required quality standards. Regular project 

progress review meetings are conducted 

for conformity. Usually, this is accompanied 

by a written description of the expected 

performance, including detailed plans. 

Liquidity Risk

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

Description

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group does 

not have sufficient financial resources to 

meet its obligations as and when they fall 

due, or will have to do so at an excessive 

cost. 

Assessment 

Liquidity risk is given a medium position of 

3 at MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

as unutilised bank lines are available for the 

Group as a safety cushion to meet all cash 

outflow commitments as and when they fall 

due.

Control Measures

MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

is anxious to retain its ability to produce 

sufficient cash to meet debts as and 

when they are due. The risk of liquidity is 

intensified during periods of rapid growth. 

ENTERPRISE RISK
MANAGEMENT 

Financial Risks

Credit Risk Business Risk

Legal & Regulatory Risk

Strategic Risk

Environmental Risk

Project Delivery

Business Risk

Human Resources

Corporate Social Responsibility Evolving 

Contracting 

Environment

Health & Safety of Employees

Project Management

Reputational Risk

Dependence on Sub-contractors

Government 

Policy  
Non Compliance Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Non-Financial Risks

Liquidity Risk
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Extensive cash flow forecasting and 

planning is incorporated into each stage of 

the Group’s operations. The Group conducts 

weekly cash flow meetings to ensure cash 

sufficiency. Liquidity is also ensured by 

receipt of timely payments from clients. 

Since a considerable amount of Group 

capital is tied up in equipment needed 

for operations, flexibility through bank 

relationships and lines of credit is a must 

for MTD Walkers PLC.

The Group’s Treasury Department is 

entrusted with the task of monitoring the 

above payment process for each project of 

the Group. Further, the role of the treasury 

is expanded to ensure the Group enters into 

agreements for debtors and creditors to 

prevent maturity mismatch and to monitor 

cash inflows and outflows of each project to 

ensure cash sufficiency for operations. 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible 

for managing and controlling the overall 

liquidity of the Group and reviews the 

impact of strategic decisions on Group 

liquidity. 

Interest Rate Risk

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Moderate Moderate 3

Description 

Interest rate fluctuations can affect the 

earnings of the Group, due to finance costs 

increasing.

Assessment

Interest rate risk is given a moderate risk 

position of 3 as the gearing of the Group is 

relatively high.  

Control Measures

Funds at MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries mainly consist of direct bank 

facilities, overdrafts, term loans and leases. 

The Group obtains funds at both fixed and 

floating rates, and therefore the interest 

costs are is subject to volatility, due to 

changes in market rates. The Treasury 

Department focuses on obtaining funds 

at favourable rates. Interest rate risk is 

scrutinized by monitoring movements in 

indices such as Prime Lending Rate (PLR), 

Sri Lanka Inter Bank Offered Rate (SLIBOR) 

and rates of Government Securities.

Risk Category: Business Risk

Business Risk

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low Medium 2

Description 

The possibility that a Group subsidiary will 

have lower than anticipated profits, or that it 

will experience a loss rather than a profit.

Assessment

As a premier infrastructure company 

in Sri Lanka MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries evaluates its margins on all 

projects before acceptance and ensures 

that risk factors are considered to ensure 

that thresholds of return are met before 

accepting certain risks. The diversity of 

operating an Independent Power Producer 

(IPP) and managing varying clients from 

Government and the private sector ensures 

that there is the ability to withstand lower 

profitability of any sector. Business risk is 

given a risk position of 02.  

Control Measures

The Group places a heavy emphasis 

on cultivating and nurturing long-term 

relationships with its clients in order to 

ensure repeat business. Moreover, the 

Group has diversified its focus to create 

a better balance between private sector 

and public sector projects and it conducts 

regular examinations of potential new 

products/service lines within its fields of 

operation. 

Risk Category: Operational Risk

Project Delivery 

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

 

Description 

Project delivery is the Group been able to 

deliver its projects within the stipulated 

time period in conformance with agreed 

technical specifications, design and quality 

standards.

Assessment

Project delivery is given a moderate risk 

position of 3 at MTD Walkers PLC and its 

subsidiaries as it is crucial for the Group to 

meet the deadlines and quality standards 

specified in our contracts with clients in 

order to ensure their satisfaction. Failure to 

do so will result in reduced future orders 

and consequently lower revenue.

Control Measures

The project managers ensure that each 

project is carried out following detailed 

planning. This means that the deadlines 

agreed on with the clients are based on 

realistic predictions and continuously 

monitored. 

Please refer to pages 158 to 159 for details 

of Group’s accreditations 

Project Management

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

Description 

Project management is the process 

of initiating, planning, executing and 

controlling resources to achieve specific 

goals. The primary challenge of project 

management is to achieve all of the project 

goals and objectives.
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Assessment 

Insufficient project management could 

lead to financial losses and reputational 

risks. Hence, project management has been 

given a moderate risk position of 3 at MTD 

Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries.

Control Measures

Those who manage the Group’s projects 

are selected based on many years of 

experience. In an effort to augment their 

skill levels, those managing projects are 

also provided with training programs on 

contract and project management.

In addition, twice a month project 

management meetings are held with the 

respective CEOs, project managers and 

operational managers to review progress on 

projects performance.

Risk Category: Legal and 
Regulatory Risk

Health & Safety of Employees

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

High High 5

Description 

Risk in the area of health and safety is 

inherent to the business environment 

in which we operate. It is the Group’s 

responsibility to take every precaution to 

mitigate these risks to ensure the well being 

of our employees and those affected by our 

work.

Assessment

Managing the health and safety of 

workers is a complex state of affairs in 

the construction industry due to outdoor 

operations, work-at heights, complex site 

plants and perilous equipment that is used 

in operations. Therefore, health and safety 

risk is given a high risk position of 5.

Control Measures

Despite advances in health and safety 

legislations and management techniques, 

construction remains one of the most 

dangerous sectors to work in. Safety 

management on site has to be tailored to 

respond to the individual hazards that each 

project presents. Furthermore, management 

strategies must be tailored to the unique 

combination of individual employees 

working on the project.

Those who work at MTD Walkers PLC 

and its subsidiary sites face health and 

safety risks. The Group has always laid 

heavy emphasis in mitigating occupational 

hazards and therefore built a safety culture. 

In addition MTD Walkers PLC ensures 

employee safety is an integral part of the 

job process by providing the correct attire, 

safety helmets, safety shoes and safety nets 

as a pre requisite. 

Furthering this effort, the civil construction 

sector of the group has acquired OSHAS 

18001 (Occupational Health and Safety) 

certification to further enhance their safety 

measures and training programs relating 

to safety conducted at each site. The Group 

has implemented an insurance scheme for 

all the workers at all company sites.

Government Policy

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

Description 

Risk of the Government policy changes on 

the infrastructure spending.

Assessment 

The industry is prone to fluctuations in 

Government policy and adverse changes 

of policy can lead to difficulties in project 

planning and execution. Therefore, 

Government policy risk is given a moderate 

risk position of 03.

Control Measures

MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

maintains a close connection with relevant 

Government authorities in order to gain a 

better insight into policy trends.

Non Compliance Risk

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low Low 1

Description 

Non compliance with applicable laws and 

contracts could lead to fines and a negative 

impact on corporate image.

Assessment

Legislation and regulations preclude 

clients from working in certain locations 

or carrying out specific activities. Violating 

regulations or legislation can result in fines 

and reputational damage. Only Projects with 

clear contractual and legal approvals are 

accepted ensuring this risk is not taken on 

by MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries. 

Hence, the risk is given a low risk position 

of 1.

Control Measures

MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

seeks external advice on new and/or 

changing trade restrictions. Consequently, 

the Group is well aware of the risks of 

violating the regulations and conducts 

consistent monitoring of regulatory trends. 

In addition the Group adheres to corporate 

governance practices and ethical business 

practices and invests considerable time 

reviewing agreements. 

Risk Category: Strategic Risk

Human Resources

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

Description 

Ensuring adequate human resources to 

meet the operational plans and strategic 

goals of the Group to ensure we have the 

right people with the right skills at the right 

time.

Assessment

Human resources risk is given a moderate 

risk position of 3. MTD Walkers PLC 

ENTERPRISE RISK
MANAGEMENT 
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and its subsidiaries derives its success 

from recruiting and retaining the finest 

professionals among its workforce. 

Control Measures 

MTD Walkers PLC has recognized the 

importance of training and retaining the 

skilled workforce for projects and support 

functions. To this end, MTD Walkers PLC 

expends much of its management effort 

and resources on motivating their staff 

through incentive schemes and effective 

staff planning.

Reputational Risk

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low High 3

Description 

Reputation risk is the risk that an event or 

incident could damage the corporate brand 

name of the Group.

Assessment

MTD Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries 

has had a reputational damage previously 

and was considered as a non operational 

Group by many. MTD Walkers PLC and 

its subsidiaries started turning this image 

around during the last seven years. Hence, 

reputational risk is given a moderate risk 

position of 3.

Control Measures

The Board of Directors and the Senior 

Management continuously review strategic 

moves in order to have a competitive edge 

over the other players in the industry. In 

order to protect the Group reputation, 

measures have been taken to ensure 

compliance with laws and regulations. 

Risk Category: Environment 
Risk

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Moderate Moderate 3

Description 

Corporate Social Responsibility is achieving 

a balance of economic, environmental and 

social imperatives, while at the same time 

addressing the expectations of shareholders 

and our stakeholders.

Assessment

The Group’s CSR is given a moderate risk 

position of 03.

Control Measures

During the planning process of each project, 

the Group reviews its potential impact on 

the natural environment and ensures that 

work is carried out in the most sustainable 

manner possible 

See our Sustainability Policies and 

Framework section for further information.

Evolving Contracting Environment 

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Moderate High 4

Description 

Non-standard contract documentation 

or lack of understanding of contractual 

agreements.

Assessment 

The operation of each project encompasses 

a number of complex contractual 

arrangements with third parties, thus, the 

risk is given a high risk position of 4 at MTD 

Walkers PLC and its subsidiaries.

Control Measures

Employees are given appropriate training to 

equip them to understand the contractual 

arrangements and requirements. Also, the 

group takes initiative to seek expert legal 

advice on complex issues and standard 

contracts are drawn when dealing with third 

parties. 

Dependence on Sub- contractors

Frequency Severity Risk 

Position

Low Low 1

Description 

Sub-contracting can lead to defective 

design, unmet specifications, quality issues 

and unfavourable terms in contracting.

Assessment 

A marginal proportion of projects 

undertaken by the Group are sub-contracted. 

Hence the dependence on sub- contractors 

risk is given a low risk position of 1.

Control Measures

One of the biggest inherent risks general 

contractors and construction managers 

face as they build projects is the risk of a 

subcontractor default. A sub-contractor’s 

failure to perform can add cost, delay a 

project and damage the reputation of the 

main contractor. 

First and foremost, selecting the right 

subcontractor for the work gives the 

Group the best chance for success. MTD 

Walkers PLC involves prescreening sub-

contractors across a wide variety of criteria, 

namely, financial solvency, capability and 

experience, historical performance and 

aggregate exposure.

Future Outlook

The Management believes it is paramount 

to have the Group risk management 

process open so that everyone within 

the organisation feels part of the 

continual process of risk management, 

in its development, implementation and 

evaluation. This will go in hand with 

effective communication which includes 

sections that invite feedback from the 

members on the effectiveness of the risk 

management strategy. The Group firmly 

believes, often it will be people “on the 

ground” who are best able to see what 

works and what doesn’t, and who will be 

the first to notice any changes in the nature 

of risks faced by the organisation.
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Providing
value to our
customers

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK
AND POLICIES

Objective

Sustainability, to us at MTD Walkers PLC, 

means that we not only continuously meet 

the needs of our clients, but also to conduct 

business in a socially, economically, and 

environmentally responsible manner to the 

benefit of future generations. Our practices 

create fundamental value for MTD Walkers 

PLC and all of our stakeholders, clients and 

the communities in which we operate.

From a business perspective, the Group 

believes in a close linkage between 

sustainability and risk management, as both 

functions serve to  create opportunities 

to bring new value, services, improved 

delivery systems and technologies to our 

stakeholders. We infuse  sustainability 

inspired principles, knowledge, 

technologies, tools and methods that lead 

to the better management of our Group 

which in turn will allow us to provide better 

long-term solutions to our clients, whilst 

responding to critical environmental and 

social issues.

Our Approach to Sustainability 

Our approach to sustainability is 

underpinned by our six corporate 

objectives. We believe that, through 

committing to deliver these objectives, 

MTD Walkers PLC can achieve the correct 

balance between meeting the inevitable 

compromises between meeting economic 

objectives and fulfilling its duty towards our 

community and environment.

Our six corporate objectives are as 

illustrated by the diagram to the right:

Delivering value to our clients through economically 

efficient services is the corner stone on which we at 

MTD Walkers PLC build our values and strategy.

We pride ourselves on developing and executing 

projects with engineering excellence for over 160 

years. 

As an organisation we will always have a 

responsibility to be financially sound, prudent and 

ethical in our business practices in order to ensure 

long-term sustainability. In order to achieve this, 

we adhere to corporate best practices and monitor 

and assess the impact of our operations on both the 

environment and community.

We truly believe in the merits of empowering 

employees who with their skills, dedication, vitality 

and professionalism remain the mainstay of our 

operations. As such we strive to be an employer of 

choice by embodying a culture that is performance  

centric, which does not concede to any form of social 

prejudice.

We believe that the health and safety of our employees, 

subcontractors, clients and the communities in which 

we work is non-negotiable. We have a long-standing 

positive health and safety record that has been 

underpinned by our corporate objective of keeping 

people safe every day. The Group strives to emulate 

industry best practices whilst seeking continuous 

improvements to its health and safety policies.

We fully acknowledge and recognize that companies 

are no longer judged by profitability alone; thus, our 

social responsibility strategy has been aligned to the 

theme of “Giving Back to the Community”. The Group 

continuously challenges itself to do more and be more 

effective in our community support endeavours. 

We recognise that our construction operations have 

a direct impact on the environment, as such we are 

committed to a proactive environmental policy that 

promotes the practice of sustainable development that 

meets our needs today, while taking into account the 

needs for tomorrow. 

Achieving
sustainable

growth

Investing
in people
and skills

for the
future

Keeping
people safe,

every day

Supporting
communities

Protecting and
enhancing the
environment
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Our Corporate Sustainability 
Framework

As the only total infrastructure solutions 

provider in Sri Lanka we aspire to lead the 

way for the industry to conduct business 

sustainably. Our pledge to implement 

long term strategies towards building a 

sustainable business is demonstrated in 

our economic, social and environmental 

endeavours as depicted in our corporate 

sustainable framework below. 

Our Sustainability Policies

To support the delivery of our six corporate 

objectives, MTD Walkers PLC operates 

under a number of policies, which include,

Economic Policy

We are committed to building and 

sustaining an economically sound business 

model centred around an integrated and 

focused approach; constructed on a 

platform of sound governance, ethics, 

transparency and accountability, while 

enhancing stakeholder value and being 

a true partner in sustainable national 

economic development.

Since inception, the Group has been 

at the vanguard of engineering and 

infrastructure development, contributing 

directly to the economic development 

of the country. The Group continues to 

contribute to the national economy by 

providing the community, businesses 

and the Government of Sri Lanka with 

engineering expertise via the execution of 

varied infrastructure projects including: 

road construction projects, dam safety 

and water resources planning projects and 

engineering projects in the form of repairs 

of crude oil storage tanks and construction 

of tower foundations.

The Group’s contribution to the national economy with respect to power generation was 

evident in 2007, when the Group commenced operations at Northern Power Company in 

Jaffna, in order to cater to the energy requirement of the region in the midst of the civil 

conflict.

Furthermore, the Group contributed towards sustainable national economic development 

and wealth generation through the revenues and returns of its sustainable business 

activities. The following Economic Value Distribution Statement depicts the distribution 

of wealth creation among the stakeholders and the amounts retained for growth and 

development of operations.

Economic Value Distribution Statement

FYE 2014 FYE 2013

Stakeholder Amount

(Rs. Mn)
%

Amount

(Rs. Mn)
%

To Suppliers  7,493.6 72.7  5,217.8 69.1

To employees  796.9 7.7  707.1 9.4

To providers of capital  741.7 7.2  543.2 7.2

To the Government  129.6 1.3  114.1 1.5

Depreciation  539.0 5.2  463.4 6.1

To expansion and growth  600.8 5.8  502.6 6.7

Total  10,301.7 100.0  7,548.3 100.0

Environment Policy

MTD Walkers PLC in its role as an infrastructure solutions provider acknowledges that the 

Group and its activities have a significant impact on the environment. We have identified our 

key areas of impact as energy, waste, transport, hazardous materials, and health. We aim to 

protect and improve the environment by in-depth analysis, identification and measurement 

of these environmental impacts and setting achievable targets to minimize any adverse impact.

P
L
A

N
E

T

P
R

O
F
IT

PEOPLE

Protect

the natural

environment

Minimise climate

change impact

Manage meterials

responsibly

Invest in people

and skills Support local

communities

Keep people
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Provide value

for money

Run an ethical

business

Recieve a

fair return
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Our Commitment is to:

requirements of environmental 

legislation, standards and code of best 

practices that relates to the Group’s 

activities 

environmental performance and 

integrate environmental best practices 

into our business operations 

consumption of resources 

business operations based on the 

principles of reduction, re-use and 

recycling 

performance through effective 

communication, staff training and 

adoption of best practices

minimize pollution 

change criterias are taken into account 

in the procurement of goods and 

services 

biodiversity on sites and premises 

where we hold responsibility or can 

influence those who do 

and our designers to provide solutions 

that benefit the environment 

The Environment Management System

Aligned to the Group’s environment 

policy and ISO standard (International 

Organisation for Standardisation) 

14001:2004, an Environment Management 

System (EMS) was put in force facilitating 

the consistent monitoring and control of the 

Group’s operations. 

Environmental Accreditation 

The Civil Engineering sector of the Group (CML-MTD Construction Limited and Walkers 

Piling (Pvt.) Ltd.) is compliant with ISO standard 14001:2004 ensuring its impact on 

the environment is kept to a bare minimum. Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd. is the first piling 

company to be awarded with this accreditation. The Group’s engineering sector subsidiary, 

Walker Sons & Co. Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd., is currently in the process of applying for the 

aforementioned accreditation. 

ISO 14001: 2004  requires the sub-sectors to establish an environmental management 

system that complies with the standard, identifies its environmental aspects, controls 

environmentally significant operations, establishes an emergency management process, 

performs internal environmental management audits, and assess opportunities to improve 

the environmental management system.

We believe in not only a top down policy of managing the environmental impact of our 

Company but also a bottom up policy, whereby we empower our employees to take 

responsibility towards their environment. Towards this goal, we have ensured that the 

environment policy is communicated to all employees, at all levels, of MTD Walkers PLC, 

with the intent that they are made aware of their individual obligations and responsibilities 

for the environment and that these are no less important than any other duties that they 

undertake. We further encourage transparency through dialog with our employees, in order 

to best implement, practice and enforce sustainable environmental practices. 

Accreditation CML- MTD 

Construction Limited

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) 

Ltd.

Walker Sons & Co. 

Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd.

ISO 14001: 2004  

(Environment 

Management 

System/Standard)

In the process of 

applying for the 

accreditation

Human Resources Policy

Our approach to managing our employees include policies, procedures and practices 

that support our commitment to human rights and fair labour practices. In addition, our 

approach creates a safe and secure working environment that provides opportunities for 

every employee to be productive, earn a fair income and develop professionally; regardless 

of race, gender, nationality, religion or any other factor.  

Detailed report on Human Capital Management can be found in pages 88 to 93 in this 

Annual Report.

Health and Safety Policy

MTD Walkers PLC believes that proper attention to health and safety of its employees, 

subcontractors, clients and the community within which the Group operates, is a key 

element of effective business management. We believe the majority of injuries and 

occupational illnesses can be prevented through the adoption of sound risk management 

principles and safety conscious behaviour by employees. Thus, the Group has developed 

systems to ensure compliance with Company safety standards and to continually improve 

our performance. 

Please refer page 91 in the human capital management section of the Annual Report for a 

detailed guide to the Group’s health and safety procedure.

SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK
AND POLICIES
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 In today’s business context 

knowledgeable, dynamic and skilled 

employees have become a critical 

resource for national development 

and the success of any company. 

Considering the above, MTD Walkers 

PLC has taken appropriate measures to 

provide training for different local and 

international university, institute and 

technical college students. The Group 

has provided training opportunities for 

119 students during the financial year 

under review.

 A special training program on effective 

road traffic control for those directing 

traffic at our road projects was held 

in support of the community. This 

allowed us to minimize inconvenience 

caused during road construction. 

This programme has already proved 

to be effective in minimizing traffic 

congestion, accidents and fuel wastage.

    

Community Development Policy

Our aim is to have a lasting positive impact on the communities among which we work. 

To this end, we undertake a wide range of programs to improve communities access to 

education, sanitation and essential infrastructure. 

Our project management teams are strongly encouraged to engage with local community 

interest groups to identify potential development opportunities. When engaging with local 

communities, education and health are two top prime areas of focus. The Human Resources 

Department plays the lead role in maintaining equity and transparency in all community 

development projects through a process of continuous review and communication. 

Community Development Projects Carried Out in FYE 2014

 Diviya Aruna program was initiated by the Group’s subsidiary, CML- MTD 

Construction Limited, to conduct eye and medical camps with an objective to assist 

senior citizens in project operational areas. This venture was established with the 

assistance of Help Age Sri Lanka, a voluntary social services organisation that works 

with vulnerable senior citizens, providing them with services such as eye and health 

care. It is our aim to conduct similar projects in all operational areas in the ensuing 

years to enrich the lives of our senior citizens.

 During the financial year ended 2014, eye clinics and medical camps was conducted at 

Hambantota, Medawachchiya and Mirigama operational areas.

Operational Area Number of Beneficiaries

Ophthalmological Medical

Hambantota 120 57

Medawachchiya (Ethakada) 177 126

Mirigama 220 122

 Group subsidiary, CML- MTD Construction Ltd. engaged in the distribution of school 

stationery and vouchers to purchase school shoes for 28 underprivileged students at 

Delwala Srimath Olcott MahaVidyalaya, Kithalawalana, Mirigama.
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HUMAN CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

Overview

At MTD Walkers PLC, we truly believe in 

the merits of empowering employees who, 

with their skills, dedication, vitality and 

professionalism, remain the mainstay of our 

operations, and have enabled us to reach 

the myriad milestones we have achieved 

in our 160 year old corporate journey. 

Thus, we seek to embody a work culture 

that develop employee skills, creates equal 

opportunities and nurture their wellbeing 

to bring out the full potential of our 

employees, for the long term sustainability 

of the Group. 

Human Resources (HR) 
Structure

The HR function at MTD Walkers PLC is 

centralized across the entire network of 

companies operating under the Group. 

This centralized HR management structure 

has enabled effective Group synergies, not 

only in terms of operating cost but also 

in terms of making all aspects of the HR 

function more accessible to employees, 

thereby allowing more timely responses 

and problem resolution. Furthermore, 

we have also enabled talent sharing and 

coordination within and between the Group 

companies. This cross functional talent 

sharing enables the Group to inculcate 

operational excellence in every division of 

its Group companies, and opens an avenue 

for each employee to reach their fullest 

potential. The HR division is headed by the 

Group HR and Administration Manager 

who reports directly to the Group Executive 

Deputy Chairman. Within the centralized 

structure, vital labour aspects such as new 

hires and attrition are continuously tracked 

and monitored at subsidiaries and project 

sites by the HR department heads of each 

subsidiary in line with the Group HR Policy.

Group HR Policy

The Group HR policy at MTD Walkers PLC 

is based on the viewpoint that human 

resource managers are business partners 

with line-management and employees, 

who work towards ensuring business 

success, through the hiring, training and 

development of high-caliber individuals.

Hence, the Group HR policy:

best-demonstrated HR practices at 

subsidiary level and implements these 

across the organisation

consistent policies, effective tools and 

systems that ensure fair employment 

practices

necessary to select, retain and develop 

qualified employees

the organisation

all employees

fostering employee diversity

Employee Composition

Employee Strength

MTD Walkers PLC’s cadre, represented by 

a diverse group of employees, has reached 

a total strength of 2,803 as at the reporting 

date, (a 45 percent growth as compared 

to the  last financial year). The increase in 

employee numbers was warranted by the 

Group’s expansion plans and an increase in 

project volume.

Tracking performance

Tracking attrition

Recommending new hires

Recommending 

employees for training

Subsidiary 

HR divisions

Approving new hires

Enabling internal job 

placements

Introducing training 

programs

Perform annual 

performance appraisals

Setting Group HR policy

Approving senior 

management 

remuneration

Succession planning 

for CEO and senior 

management

Ensuring compliance with 

regulatory practises

BOD/ Remuneration 

committee

Group HR

Employee Category Growth (YoY) %

Managers 20

Executives 48

Non Executives 12

Casual 59

Group Overall 45
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The staff strength at MTD Walkers 

PLC comprises: casual employees (63 

percent), technical staff (37 percent) and 

non technical staff (14 percent). As at 

the reporting date the Group employs the 

largest engineering and technical team 

in the country. The employee structure 

is well balanced between operational and 

management grades giving greater stability 

and effectiveness in terms of executing 

corporate strategy.

Employees by Category Employee Diversity

At MTD Walkers PLC, we understand that 

talent and skill are not defined by race, 

colour, religion, gender, age, nationality, 

disability or background; we aspire to 

recruit and retain top talent by ensuring the 

recruitment process is carried out without 

conceding to any form of prejudice. We 

believe in nurturing talent and engaging 

all employees in providing our clients with 

engineering excellence. 

Provincial Representation  

MTD Walkers PLC follows a regional 

employment policy in all spheres of 

operation. The Group has created many 

job opportunities for the populations of 

Hambantota, Bandarawela, Galle and 

Vavuniya districts via its geographical 

spread of construction and engineering 

projects. We are proud to be one of the 

largest equal opportunity, private sector 

employers in the Jaffna district through our 

subsidiary, Northern Power Company (Pvt.) 

Ltd. 

Jaffna Power Plant

Nalanda Dam 

Randenigala Dam 

Rantambe Dam 

Eng.Branch - Bandarawela 

Eng. Branch - Rathnapura  

Kalutara Awittawa

Levundara Road   Chandrika Wewa – Embilipitiya 

Hambantota  - 

HR 1 and HR 16 Roads Eng. Branch - Galle 

Toppuwa Dankotuwa Road

Sapugaskanda 

Piling and Bridge projects –

Colombo    

A 32 Road Project

Ethakada Quarry Project

Present branches and

 project sites

210

45
15

278

101

1772

Employee Skills Analysis

Engineers

Surveyors

Quantity surveyors 

382

Technical staff

Other professionals

Non-technical

Casual

421

52

1772

Employee Category Analysis

Managers

Executives

Non-executives

Casual

558
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Gender Representation

Given the scope and nature of Group 

operations that require extensive field 

work, the workforce continues to be 

skewed towards male employees. Thus, the 

male- female ratio stood at 80:20 as at the 

reporting date. 

Recruitment and Promotions 

As reiterated under employee diversity, 

MTD Walkers PLC’s recruitment policy is 

set on the principles of equal opportunity 

and performance. The recruitment 

and selection of staff is conducted in a 

professional, timely and responsive manner 

in compliance with current employment 

legislation. The Group will also endeavour 

to continuously develop its recruitment and 

selection practices to allow new ideas and 

approaches to be incorporated.

The Group employs a mix of formal 

and informal internal hiring practises, 

minimizing the timeframe for integration. 

The Group only resorts to an external 

candidate when the right candidate cannot 

be found within MTD Walkers PLC or 

its subsidiaries. This policy is set with 

the objectives of providing employees 

with defined long term career paths. 

Post selection, both external recruits and 

internally promoted staff are provided with 

induction and training to ensure a proper fit. 

Employee Turnover and 
Retention

Retention strategy is of paramount 

importance at MTD Walkers PLC. Operating 

in a complex engineering environment, the 

Group finds it critical to retain its skilled 

and experienced staff, be it technical or non 

technical. 

The Group’s approach to retention includes 

a structured succession plan that extends 

opportunities to employees to advance 

within the Group, ensuring person-job 

fit which will in turn allow greater job 

satisfaction, employee empowerment, 

employee engagement and organisational 

commitment, thus building a culture that 

enables and rewards performance.

As a result of the Groups structured training 

and career development programmes, the 

Group maintains its staff turnover at low 

levels with minimum implications due to 

resignations of experienced and trained 

staff. The Group’s staff turnover ratio for the 

financial year was a low of 5 percent.

Performance Evaluation

As reiterated above, MTD Walkers PLC 

strives to build a culture that enables 

and rewards performance. Hence, a well 

structured and transparent performance 

evaluation process was initiated during the 

financial year, with the goal of enhancing 

employee performance management. The 

newly implemented annual performance 

review at MTD Walkers PLC is a fair and 

balanced assessment of an employee’s 

performance, which gives the staff and their 

supervisors an open platform to: 

improvement

the division’s mission

accomplishments

supervisor and team

This process effectively enables 

management to structure training, map 

career paths and enable succession 

planning, thereby motivating employees 

individually as well as collectively towards 

Group goals.

Training and Development

Training and development with due 

precedence to skills training, in order 

to improve productivity and enhance 

individual development, plays a central role 

in organisational success. MTD Walkers 

PLC invests in training and development 

programs for the workforce that not only 

develops individual technical skills but soft 

skills, thereby facilitating the achievement 

of both individual and organisational 

objectives.  

For the financial year, a total of 46 

internal and external training programs, 

including overseas training programs, 

were conducted; benefiting 975 employees 

across various employee categories. Details 

HUMAN CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

Employee-Job Fit

individual’s personal 

characteristics and 

cognitive abilities

individual’s occupational 

interests 

challenging, interesting 

and meaningful work 

Career Development

appraisals 

Development

going education

Culture 

management style

for work

with personal values

Employee Retention Strategy
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of the training programs and employees 

benefited can be seen above Apart from 

these internal and external training 

programs, professional career development 

programs for all qualifying civil engineers 

were carried out in order for them to receive 

the “Chartered Engineers” status at the 

Institute of Engineers of Sri Lanka. 

Further, reinforcing the commitment to 

enhance employee knowledge and skills, 

the Group provides financial support to 

obtain and renew memberships from 

professional bodies.

Occupational Health and Safety

The construction industry places an 

enormous burden on the health and safety 

of employees; in recognition of this, the 

Group has taken specific initiatives to 

mitigate such impacts and risks.

Towards this end, two subsidiaries of the 

Group, Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd and CML-

MTD Construction Limited are compliant 

with Occupational Health and safety 

Management System (OHSAS18001), 

an internationally recognized standard, 

enabling us to measure and demonstrate 

our commitment to occupational safety and 

health. OHSAS 18001 provides a framework 

to the effectively manage occupational 

health and safety of the organisations 

employees. 

Moreover, the Group has formulated a 

health and safety manual, taking into 

account the significant hazards and risks 

that the organisation is confronted with, and  

applicable legislative requirements, in order 

to protect its employees and others, whose 

health and safety may be affected by the 

activities of the organisation.

0 100 200 300 400 500

7

17

2

207

53

25

11

28

70

8

24

82

20

8

413

Training on technical expertise improvements

Technical training 

Taxation

Soft skills

Health and Safety

Procurement training 

Positive thinking

Overseas training

Management of claims, dispute resolution

Improving efficiency & effectiveness/ innovativeness

Improving efficiency & effectiveness

Good practices in Asphalt paving & new industry knowledge 

Environmental sustainability & green building

Environmental sustainability

Construction insurance claims

Piling Project - Akuregoda 

Types of Training Programs and No. of Employees Benefited
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HUMAN CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

The Group’s occupational health and safety 

manual presents safety responsibilities 

of the senior management, project 

manager and employees, new employee 

training procedure, subcontractor safety 

compliance, accident investigation 

procedure, project site safety specifications 

and safety observation standards which 

ensures that all projects are carried out 

ensuring the maximum safety and health of 

employees. 

Further to the manual, the Group takes a 

hands-on approach to safety, by ensuring 

that proper safety training is provided for all 

employees, prior to deployment to site. 

Thus, MTD Walkers PLC is firmly dedicated 

to promote awareness on the importance 

of health and safety and to continuously 

improve health and safety management 

by periodical review and making changes 

necessary to meet internationally accepted 

best practices standards.

Employee Wellbeing 

Work-life Balance 

The Group places great importance and 

encourages its employees to create a work-

life balance by taking steps to improve the 

working environment through effective, 

flexible and sensitive management. In 

addition, the Group creates opportunities 

to realize this balance through its sports 

program, CSR activities and annual Group 

level get-togethers. 

Towards this end, in the financial year, 

a cricket tournament, a Christmas party 

and an annual trip was organized at the 

Group level by the Group HR Division. 

The annual cricket tournament, which was 

introduced in 2011, brought together over 

2,000 employees comprising 56 teams with 

participants coming from across the island. 

UDA Housing Project - Modara
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Future Outlook

The many functions of the human resources 

department serve in a supportive capacity 

to the Group, providing everything 

from a skilled and talented workforce, 

to management training services and 

employee enrichment opportunities. 

Going forward, the HR department at MTD 

Walkers PLC will implement a HRIS system, 

enabling the Group to improve productivity 

of the HR department and respond to 

employee needs on a real time basis.

Death Donation Scheme

mother/ spouse/ mother in law/ father 

in law of employee and death of the 

employee 

Medical Insurance Scheme

management, executives and non 

executive staff 

Welfare and Sports Society

Welfare at Project Sites

sites

Welfare Measures

Comprehensive welfare measures are in 

place for employees advocating better life 

styles both, physically and mentally. The 

Group spent Rs. 22.6 million in the financial 

year for employee welfare measures -inter 

alia on 

Annual Cricket Tournament and Christmas Party



94

A
n
n
u
al R

ep
o
rt 2

0
1
3
/1

4



95

M
T
D

 W
alkers P

L
C

For the first time, our 
company has crossed 
the threshold of a Rs. 
10 billion revenue, 
a reaffirmation of 
our commitment and 
ability to growth from 
strength to strength.

Constructing
Success

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Ship repairs at Colombo Port
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors of MTD Walkers 

PLC take great pleasure in presenting their 

Annual Report, together with the Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the Company and its subsidiaries for the 

financial year ended 31st March 2014.

Principal Activities

MTD Walkers PLC manages a portfolio of 

business operations covering a range of 

sectors from civil engineering, engineering 

services and power generation. Refer note 

1.2 to the financial statements for a brief 

description of the principal activities of the 

Company and its subsidiaries. This report, 

together with the financial statements, 

reflects the state of affairs of the Company 

and its subsidiaries. 

There was no significant change in the 

nature of the business during the year that 

may have an impact on the state of the 

Company’s affairs.

Review of Performance

The review of the overall performance of 

the Group during the year is given in the 

Chairman’s message of this Annual Report. 

Further reviews of subsidiary operations 

are given on pages 66 to 77 of this Annual 

Report.

Future Developments

MTD Walkers PLC is actively pursuing 

entry into the real estate sector, further 

investment into energy sector and 

expansion to the marine engineering 

business.

Turnover

The consolidated Group turnover generated 

by the three business segments amounted 

to Rs. 10.1 billion. Further details of 

the business segments are given in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

section of this Annual Report on pages 64 

to 76.

Civil Engineering Engineering 

Services

Power generation 

and other

Revenue 8,005,303,427 378,780,560 1,708,286,625

Operating profit 1,148,053,982 68,935,263 121,285,856

Asset allocation 9,838,433,565 584,775,445 5,227,628,386

Property, Plant and Equipment

Extents, locations, valuations of land and 

buildings of the entity’s holdings, are 

discussed in detail under note 03 to the 

financial statements.

The book value of property, plant and 

equipment for the Group amounted to Rs. 

2.6 billion, as per the statement of financial 

position dated 31st March 2014. Majority of 

property, plant and equipment comprised 

of plant and machinery which accounted 

for approximately 42.4 percent of total 

property, plant and equipment. 

Capital expenditure for the reporting period 

amounted to Rs. 696.2 million of which the 

majority of the additions were attributable to 

plant and machinery and other equipment 

approximating to 61.3 percent and 16.4 

percent respectively.   

Investments

Details of investment held by the Company 

are disclosed in notes 06 to 07 to the 

financial statement.

Stated Capital

The stated capital of the MTD Walkers 

PLC as at 31st March 2014 was 

Rs.3,659,428,479 which comprised 

114,357,140 ordinary shares.

Share Information

Information pertaining to split of individual 

and institutional shareholding, split of 

residential and non residential shareholding 

as well as the distribution schedule of 

the number of shareholders and their 

percentage holding as per the number 

of shares are given in the “Shareholder 

Information” section of this Annual Report.

Information relating to net assets per 

share and market value per share are also 

presented under “Shareholder Information” 

section of this Annual Report.

Further, the top twenty shareholders names, 

number of shares held and the percentage 

held by them are also presented under 

“Shareholder Information” Section of this 

Annual Report. 

Ratios and Market Price 
Information

Details on ratios and market price 

information is presented under the sections 

“Financial highlights” and “Shareholder 

information” of this Annual Report. 

Board Committees

The following members serve on the Board 

Audit and Remuneration committees; 

Board Audit 

Committee

Remuneration 

Committee

Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah – Chairman X X

Mr. Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga X

Mr. Keith George Cowling X

Mr. Leong Yow Lee X

Mr. Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva-Aditya X X

Mr. Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne X X
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Issue of Shares and Debentures

No shares or debentures were issued for 

the 12 months period ending 31st March 

2014.

Financial Statements

The financial statements, which include the 

Statement of Financial Position, Statement 

of Comprehensive Income, Statement of 

Changes in Equity,Statement of Cash Flows 

and Notes to the financial statements of 

the Company for the year ended 31st March 

2014 are given on pages 100 to 147 of this 

Annual Report.

Auditors Report

The Report of the Independent Auditors on 

the financial statements of the Company is 

included on page 100 of the Annual Report.

Accounting Policies

The Accounting Policies adopted in the 

preparation of the financial statements are 

given on note 2 to the financial statement.

Financial Results

Year ended 31 

March 2014

Rs.

Year ended 31 

March 2013

Rs.

The net profit/(loss) incurred by the Company and 

its subsidiaries after all expenditure and known 

liabilities amounts to:

        600,796,200        502,596,743

To which must be added the balance of profit and 

loss account brought forward from previous years 

after making prior year adjustments:

4,580,831,751 4,076,186,389

5,181,627,951 4,578,783,132

Directors’ Remuneration and other 
Benefits

The directors’ remunerations and / or other 

benefits during the accounting period 

under review are given under note 28 to the 

financial statement.

Donations

The Company did not make any donations 

during the year other than the amount 

disclosed on note 28 to the financial 

statement. 

Dividends and reserves

No dividends were declared during the 

year. Detailed information on reserves 

are available under Statement of Changes 

in Equity on page 104 of the financial 

statements, respectively.

Directors

The directors of MTD Walkers PLC as at 

date were:

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid

Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga

Keith George Cowling

Leong Yow Lee

Albert Rasakantha Rasiah

Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva -Aditya

Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal 

Wijeratne

In terms of Article 84 of the Articles of 

Association of the Company Messrs. 

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid, 

Albert Rasakantha Rasiah, Hewawasamge 

Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne are to retire by 

rotation and are eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Shareholding and their 
Interest

None of the directors of the Company, their 

spouses, or dependents held any shares 

in the Company during the year ended 31st 

March 2014 except those disclosed on note 

36.1 to the financial statement

Employee Share Ownership Plans 
and Profit Sharing Plans

Employees of MTD Walkers PLC are not 

presented with any stock options or profit 

sharing schemes.

Interest Register

An interest register is maintained by the 

Company in terms of the Companies Act 

No. 07 of 2007 and is kept in the custody of 

Group Human Resources Manager.

Corporate Governance

The corporate governance practices 

adopted by the Group are disclosed on 

pages 32 to 49 of this Annual Report.

Environmental Protection

The Company has not been engaged in any 

activities which has caused detriment to the 

environment. A summary of activities in the 

aforementioned area are disclosed on pages 

85 to 86 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts 
with the Company

The directors have no direct or indirect 

interest in any other contract or proposed 

contract of the Company, other than what 

is disclosed in note 36.2 to the financial 

statement

Going Concern

Given the fact that the directors are satisfied 

that Group has the resources to continue 

its business for the foreseeable future, 

the financial statements continue to be 

prepared on a going concern basis.  
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Statutory Payments

Directors have declared that to the best 

of their knowledge all statutory payments 

payable by the Group to the Government 

and to our employees were paid as at 

balance sheet date 31st March 2014.

Financial Ratios

Earnings per share is given in note 30 to 

the financial statements on page 137 and 

other financial ratios are given in financial 

highlights on page 10 of this Annual Report.

Risk Factors

Details of the foreseeable exposure to risk 

factors are given under “Risk Management” 

on pages 78 to 83 of this Annual Report.

Events Occurring after the 
Reporting Period

There have been no subsequent events 

after the reporting period, which require 

adjustments or disclosures to the financial 

statements; other than those with their 

details disclosed in note 33 to the financial 

statements on page 144 of this Annual 

Report.

Directors’ Declaration on 
Corporate Governance

The Directors of MTD Walkers PLC declare 

that;

1. The Group has complied with all 

applicable laws and regulations in 

relation to conducting the business 

operations in Sri Lanka.

2. The business is operating on a 

going concern basis with supporting 

reasonable assumptions.

3. Have conducted a review of internal 

controls covering financial and 

operational aspects of the business 

together with a review of risk 

management and have obtained 

a reasonable assurance of their 

effectiveness and adherence.

The Report on Corporate Governance is 

given under the Governance section on 

pages 32 to 49 of the Annual Report. 

Auditors

The accounts of the year under review 

have been audited by Messrs Ernst & 

Young, Chartered Accountants, who offer 

themselves for reappointment. Fees paid 

to the Auditors are disclosed in note 28 to 

the financial statements on page 135 of 

this Annual Report. As far as the directors 

are aware, the Auditors do not have 

any relationship (other than as external 

auditors) with the Company other than 

those disclosed above.

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid

Chairman

Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga

Group Executive Deputy Chairman

Prashanie Saroja Attygalle

Company Secretary

25th August 2014

Colombo

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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STATEMENT OF 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Directors’ Responsibilities 

In terms of the Companies Act No.07 of 

2007, the directors have prepared the 

financial statements for the financial year 

ended 31st March 2014, giving a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company, and of the profit or loss for the 

financial year. In preparing the financial 

statements, appropriate accounting policies 

have been selected and applied consistently, 

reasonable and prudent judgment and 

estimates have been made and applicable 

accounting standards have been followed.

The financial statements comprise of:

income of the Company and its 

subsidiaries, which present a true and 

fair view of the profit and loss of the 

Company and its subsidiaries for the 

financial year.

which presents a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company 

and its subsidiaries as at end of the 

financial year.  

Since the directors are satisfied that the 

Company has the resources to continue 

its business for the foreseeable future, the 

financial statements continue to be prepared 

on a going concern basis. Directors 

have maintained sufficient accounting 

records that they are able to disclose with 

reasonable accuracy the financial position 

of the Company; these also empower them 

to ensure that the financial statements 

comply with the Companies Act No.07 of 

2007.

Directors have also taken responsibility for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for that purpose have put in place 

internal controls, with a view to detect and 

prevent fraud, amongst other irregularities.

The directors are of the view that they have 

discharged their responsibilities as set out 

in this statement. 

Compliance Report

The directors confirm that to the best of 

their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies 

payable by the companies in the Group and 

its subsidiaries, all contributions, levies and 

taxes payable on behalf of and in respect 

of the employees of the Group subsidiaries 

and its subsidiaries, and all other known 

statutory dues as were due and payable 

by the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31st 

March 2014 have been paid, and where 

relevant provided for, except as disclosed in 

note 32 to the financial statements covering 

contingent liabilities.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

MTD WALKERS PLC

Prashanie Saroja Attygalle 

Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ 
REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MTD 
WALKERS PLC 

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying 

Financial Statements of MTD Walkers PLC 

(“Company”), the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Company and its 

subsidiaries which comprise the Statement 

of Financial Position as at 31 March 2014, 

and the Income Statements, the Statements 

of Comprehensive Income, Statements 

of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow 

Statements for the year then ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the 

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of 

these Financial Statements in accordance 

with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. 

This responsibility includes: designing, 

implementing and maintaining internal 

control relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of Financial Statements 

that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, selecting and 

applying appropriate accounting policies, 

and making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances. 

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these Financial Statements based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing 

Standards. Those standards require 

that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance whether the 

Financial Statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts 

and disclosures in the Financial Statements. 

An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting policies used and significant 

estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall Financial Statement 

presentation.

We have obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for 

the purposes of our audit. We therefore 

believe that our audit provides a reasonable 

basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears from our 

examination, the Company maintained 

proper accounting records for the year 

ended 31 March 2014 and the Financial 

Statements give a true and fair view of the 

financial position of the Company as at 31 

March 2014 and its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial 

Statements give a true and fair view of the 

financial position as at 31 March 2014 and 

financial performance and cash flows for 

the year then ended, in accordance with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the 

Company and its subsidiaries dealt with 

thereby, so far as concerns the shareholders 

of the Company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements

These Financial Statements also comply 

with the requirements of Sections 151(2) 

and 153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act 

No. 7 of 2007.

22 August, 2014

Colombo.
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STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

 Group Company 
  2014 2013 2014 2013
 Note  (Restated)  (Restated)
   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 
ASSETS     
Non-current assets     
Property, plant & equipment 3  2,604,047,287   2,450,629,587   20,765,043   25,376,057 
Intangible assets 4  511,858,012   449,129,584   -     -   
Finance lease receivables 5  2,779,157,111   2,322,249,637   -     -   
Investment in subsidiaries 6  -     -     3,579,773,888   3,579,773,888 
Other non current financial assets 7  3,259,066   3,172,468   15,250   17,640 
Amount due from related parties 11  -     -     1,127,185,084   606,696,801 
   5,898,321,476   5,225,181,276   4,727,739,265   4,211,864,386 
Current assets     
Inventories 8  609,975,933   463,841,550   -     -   
Finance lease receivables 5  177,028,081   -     -     -   
Trade and other receivables 9  7,383,289,099   4,689,650,939   29,811,291   6,705,563 
Other current assets 10  500,412,902   345,994,382   23,095,104   830,000 
Amount due from related parties 11  16,718,231   39,511,095   249,990,258   170,379,104 
Other current financial assets 7  968,475,776   896,785,754   61,016,546   64,234,469 
Cash and cash equivalents 12  96,615,897   100,799,037   373,295   43,854 
   9,752,515,919   6,536,582,757   364,286,494   242,192,990 
Total assets   15,650,837,395   11,761,764,033   5,092,025,759   4,454,057,376 
     
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Capital and reserves     
Stated capital 13  3,659,428,479   3,659,428,479   3,659,428,479   3,659,428,479 
Capital reserves 14  118,997,286   118,997,286   -     -   
Other reserves 15  4,648,661   4,648,661   1,804,100   1,804,100 
Retained earnings   936,224,983   500,678,233   (205,172,608) (162,431,626)
Equity attributable to equity holders of parent   4,719,299,409   4,283,752,659   3,456,059,971   3,498,800,953 
Non controlling interest 16  382,649,657   297,078,912   -     -   
Total shareholders’ funds and non controlling interest   5,101,949,066   4,580,831,571   3,456,059,971   3,498,800,953 
     
Non-current liabilities      
Interest bearing loans & borrowings 17  1,235,901,298   697,748,271   659,347,651   8,513,611 
Other non current liability 18  2,300,000   2,300,000   -     -   
Deferred tax liabilities 19  96,481,130   91,125,460   -     -   
Retirement benefit obligation 20  60,924,729   62,306,550   3,436,564   3,298,357 
   1,395,607,157   853,480,281   662,784,215   11,811,968 
Current liabilities      
Trade and other payables 21  4,482,163,903   2,542,714,497   19,317,577   39,916,246 
Other current liabilities 22  46,886,917   165,705,013   522,000   522,000 
Amounts due to related parties 23  1,155,544,344   1,064,992,891   922,097,320   863,083,060 
Interest bearing loans & borrowings 17  1,463,443,668   1,526,067,394   2,113,808   1,757,822 
Income tax liabilities   101,343,542   73,768,999   22,700,032   10,579,176 
Bank overdrafts 12  1,903,898,798   954,203,387   6,430,836   27,586,151 
   9,153,281,172   6,327,452,181   973,181,573   943,444,455 
Total equity and liabilities   15,650,837,395   11,761,764,033   5,092,025,759   4,454,057,376 

It is certified that the financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 
 
 
  
 Viraj de Silva
 Chief Financial Officer  
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the board by, 
 

    
 Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga Keith George Cowling
  Director  Director 
 
The accounting policies and notes on page 106 to 147 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.  

22 August, 2014 
Colombo

As at 31 March
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STATEMENT OF
INCOME

 Group Company 

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   (Restated)  (Restated)

 Note  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

      

Revenue 24 10,092,370,612  7,389,640,196  54,000,000  55,757,998

Cost of sales  (7,986,003,768) (5,727,680,177) -    -   

Gross profit  2,106,366,844  1,661,960,019  54,000,000  55,757,998

Other income 25 75,433,570  70,971,503  1,189,451  -   

Administrative expenses  (806,655,969) (639,515,690) (129,456,798) (74,954,914)

Selling & distribution expenses  (36,869,344) (20,701,361) (2,127,440) (1,054,136)

Results from operating activities  1,338,275,101  1,072,714,471  (76,394,787) (20,251,052)

Finance cost 26 (741,745,218) (543,235,053) (57,060,107) (36,500,893)

Finance income 27 133,888,926  87,254,319  104,661,727  60,441,899 

Net finance income/(cost)  (607,856,292) (455,980,734) 47,601,620  23,941,006 

Profit/(loss) before tax 28 730,418,809  616,733,737  (28,793,167) 3,689,954 

Tax expense 29 (129,622,609) (114,136,994) (14,897,755) (10,426,170)

Profit/(loss) for the year  600,796,200  502,596,743  (43,690,922) (6,736,216)

Attributable to  

Equity holders of the parent  479,662,407  447,576,866  (43,690,922) (6,736,216)

Non-controlling interest  121,133,793  55,019,877  -    -   

  600,796,200  502,596,743  (43,690,922) (6,736,216)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share  30 4.19     3.91   (0.38)    (0.06) 

    

The accounting policies and notes on page 106 to 147 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 

deductions.      

      

Year ended 31 March
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013

  (Restated)  (Restated)

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

    

Profit/(loss) for the year  600,796,200  502,596,743 (43,690,922) (6,736,216)

Other comprehensive income    

Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefit obligation (note 20.2)   8,400,559   2,230,298   949,940   758,221 

Income tax on other comprehensive income (note 19)  515,265   (181,858)  -     -   

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  8,915,824   2,048,440   949,940   758,221 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  609,712,024   504,645,183   (42,740,982) (5,977,995)

Attributable to:    

Equity holders of the parent 487,702,433 449,579,359 (42,740,982)  (5,977,995)

Non-controlling Interest  122,009,591   55,065,824   -     -   

 609,712,024   504,645,183 (42,740,982) (5,977,995)

  

The accounting policies and notes on page 106 to 147 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate 

deductions.    

    

Year ended 31 March
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STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY

  Attributable to equity holders of the Company      

 Group   Stated   Revaluation   Capital   Other   Retained     Non controlling Total

  capital   reserve   reserves   reserves   earnings  Total interest equity

  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

Balance As at 1 April, 2012 

 - As previously stated  3,659,428,479   118,100,129   897,157   4,648,661   66,098,874   3,849,173,300   242,013,088   4,091,186,388 

        

Prior year adjustment- Note 34  -     -     -     -     (15,000,000)  (15,000,000)  -     (15,000,000)

        

Balance as at 1 April, 2012 - Restated  3,659,428,479   118,100,129   897,157   4,648,661   51,098,874   3,834,173,300   242,013,088   4,076,186,388 

        

Profit for the year  -     -     -     -     447,576,866   447,576,866   55,019,877   502,596,743 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - -  2,002,493   2,002,493   45,947   2,048,440 

Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -     -     -     -     449,579,359   449,579,359   55,065,824   504,645,183 

        

Balance as at 31 March, 2013  3,659,428,479   118,100,129   897,157   4,648,661   500,678,233   4,283,752,659   297,078,912   4,580,831,571 

        

Profit for the year  -     -     -     -     479,662,407   479,662,407   121,133,793   600,796,200 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -     -     -     -     8,040,026   8,040,026   875,798   8,915,824 

Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -     -     -     -     487,702,433   487,702,433   122,009,591   609,712,024 

Effect of acquisitions of subsidiaries  -     -     -     -     -     -     (2,560,878)  (2,560,878)

Effect of further acquisitions and percentage

 change in subsidiaries  -     -     -     -     (52,155,683)  (52,155,683)  (32,844,317)  (85,000,000)

Dividends paid to equity holders  -     -     -     -     -     -     (1,033,651)  (1,033,651)

Balance as at 31 March 2014  3,659,428,479   118,100,129   897,157   4,648,661   936,224,983   4,719,299,409   382,649,657   5,101,949,066 

        

Company      Stated   General   Retained   Total 

      capital   reserves   earnings  

      Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

        

Balance As at 1 April, 2012 -As previously stated       3,659,428,479   1,804,100   (138,168,214)  3,523,064,365 

Prior year adjustment- Note 34      -     -     (18,285,417)  (18,285,417)

Balance as at 1 April, 2012 - Restated      3,659,428,479   1,804,100   (156,453,631)  3,504,778,948 

Net loss for the year      -     -     (6,736,216)  (6,736,216)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax      -     -     758,221   758,221 

Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax      -     -     (5,977,995)  (5,977,995)

Balance as at 31 March 2013      3,659,428,479   1,804,100   (162,431,626)  3,498,800,953 

Net loss for the year      -     -     (43,690,922)  (43,690,922)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax      -     -     949,940   949,940 

Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax      -     -     (42,740,982)  (42,740,982)

Balance as at 31 March 2014      3,659,428,479   1,804,100   (205,172,608)  3,456,059,971 

        

Revaluation reserve is related to the revaluation surplus of land and buildings 

Capital reserves include a sum Rs. 733,863 which is the effect on change of ownership took place in the year 2004/2005 

Other reserves includes a sum of Rs. 3,741,718 which was transferred from accumulated profit in the year 2004/2005 

 

The accounting policies and notes on page 106 to 147 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Year ended 31 March 2014
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 Group Company 

 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 

Profit/(loss) from operating activities before tax 730,418,809 616,733,737 (28,793,167) 3,689,954 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation of  property, plant & equipment 539,605,268 465,391,504 7,608,313 2,517,029 

Interest income (121,159,259) (86,744,637) (81,855,796) (60,441,899)

Dividend income (1,520,569) (330,215) - -   

Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (86,598) (179,467) - -   

Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment (22,536,806) (3,272,821) - -   

Finance costs 712,018,627 543,235,052 57,060,107 36,500,893 

Provision for retirement benefit plans - gratuity 14,102,702 10,099,977 1,088,147 771,161 

Reversal of over provision in respect of doubtful debtors - (31,383,073) (1,189,451) -   

Impairment for bad and doubtful debts 88,413,374 16,244,693 - -   

Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow moving inventories (4,227,392) - - -   

Creditors & customers advances written back (1,656,776) - - -   

Net unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss 18,604,091 - (11,122,500) -   

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 1,951,975,471 1,529,794,750 (57,204,347) (16,962,862)

 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (132,571,933) (156,629,759) - -   

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (2,934,268,858) (1,406,431,675) (23,105,728) (981,968)

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related companies 23,186,087 (29,550,311) (600,099,437) (450,340,216)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,806,772,771 757,694,953 (39,643,460) 158,081,790 

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related companies 48,110,755 725,584,956 59,014,260 709,178,140 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 763,204,293 1,420,462,914 (661,038,712) 398,974,884 

Finance cost paid (712,018,627) (543,235,052) (57,060,107) (36,500,893)

Income tax paid (96,177,130) (15,559,841) (2,776,898) (799,640)

Employee benefit paid (7,404,514) (1,807,445) - -   

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (52,395,978) 859,860,576 (720,875,717) 361,674,351 

 

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 

Acquisition of subsidiary (55,198,464) (259,500,164) - (275,000,000)

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment (497,548,191) (369,791,652) (3,538,181) (20,150,321)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 32,938,952 22,403,321 - -   

Purchase of the finance lease receivables (740,199,587) (4,525,119) - -   

Net receipts on the finance lease receivables 76,537,442 - - -   

Purchase of equity and debt securities - (1,000,000) - -   

Acquisition/(disposal) of  bank deposits (68,871,542) (473,988,102) 3,220,312 3,737,921 

Dividend received 1,520,569 330,215 - -   

Interest received 121,159,259 86,744,637 81,315,054 60,441,899 

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (1,129,661,562) (999,326,864) 80,997,185 (230,970,501)

 

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 

Repayment of interest bearing borrowings (4,154,716,411) (3,648,956,988) - (151,236,073)

Long term loan obtained during the year 4,714,742,072 3,602,888,463 664,597,000 -   

Principal payment under finance lease liabilities (245,813,021) (196,457,848) (3,233,714) 5,549,998 

Acquisition of non-controlling interest (85,000,000) - - -   

Subsidiary dividend to non-controlling interest (1,033,651) - - -   

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 228,178,989 (242,526,373) 661,363,286 (145,686,075)

 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (953,878,551) (381,992,661) 21,484,754 (14,982,225)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (853,404,350) (471,411,689) (27,542,297) (12,560,072)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 12) (1,807,282,901) (853,404,350) (6,057,541) (27,542,297)

The accounting policies and notes on page 106 to 147 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.  

   

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOW 

Year ended 31 March
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General

 MTD Walkers PLC (“the Company”) 

is a public limited liability 

Company, listed on the Colombo 

Stock Exchange, incorporated 

and domiciled in Sri Lanka.  The 

registered office of the Company is 

located at No. 18, St. Michaels Road, 

Colombo 03, Sri Lanka.

 The Consolidated Financial 

Statements of MTD Walkers PLC 

for the year ended 31 March 2014 

comprise of the company and 

its subsidiaries, Walker Sons & 

Company Ltd, Walker Sons & 

Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd, 

MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd(Formerly 

Known as Walker Sons & Company 

(Distributors) Ltd), Walkers Piling 

(Pvt.) Ltd, MTD Walkers Projects 

Ltd, CML-MTD Construction Limited, 

Special Projects Company (Pvt.) Ltd, 

Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) 

Ltd,Northern Power Company (Pvt.) 

Ltd and Western Airducts Lanka 

(Pvt.) Ltd.

1.2 Nature of Operations and 

Principal Activities of the 

Company and the Group 

 During the year, the principle 

activities of the company and group 

were as follows: 

 MTD Walkers PLC

 Investment Holding

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd

 The Board of Directors of the 

company decided to temporarily 

cease all activities, and transferred 

operations to its subsidiary company 

Walker Sons & Company Engineers 

(Pvt.) Ltd.

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Walker Sons & Company Engineers 

(Pvt.) Ltd

 Civil & Mechanical Engineering.

 MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd (Formerly 

known as Walker Sons & Company 

(Distributors) Ltd)

 The Board of Directors of the 

company decided to temporarily 

cease all activities, and transferred 

operations to its fellow subsidiary 

company Walker Sons & Company 

Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd.

 MTD Walkers Projects Ltd

 Facilitates projects which focuses 

on Infrastructure development and 

construction projects.

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd

 Piling of foundations and other 

related earthwork.

 CML-MTD Construction Limited

 Construction of roads and highways 

and providing other engineering 

services.

 Special Projects Company Ltd

 Selling of metal items, drilling quarry 

and metal crushing.

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd

 Owner and Operator of a 30 MW 

HFO power plant in Jaffna Peninsula 

supplying power to the Ceylon 

Electricity Board.

 Colombo Engineering Services 

 Pvt.) Ltd

 Provide ship repairing & marine 

engineering services.

 Western Air ducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd

 Manufacturing of spiral wound 

ductwork and associated fittings for 

exports.

1.3 Parent Enterprise and Ultimate 

Parent Enterprise

 The company’s parent undertaking 

is MTD Capital Bhd In the Directors’ 

opinion, the Company’s ultimate 

parent undertaking and controlling 

party is MTD Capital Bhd, which is 

incorporated in Malaysia.

1.4 Date of Authorization for Issue

 The Financial Statements of MTD 

Walkers PLC, for the year ended 31 

March 2014 were authorized for issue 

in accordance with a resolution of 

the Board of Directors on 22 August, 

2014.

2    ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance

 The Financial Statements which 

comprises the Statements of 

Financial Position, Income 

Statements, Statements of 

Comprehensive Income, Statements 

of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow 

Statements together with accounting 

policies and notes have been 

prepared in accordance with the Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standards laid 

down by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri 

Lanka) and the requirements of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

 The Consolidated Financial 

Statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis, except for 

the following material items in the 

Statement of Financial Position.

the time of the acquisition and 

subsequently lands are revalued

through profit or loss is measured 

at fair value.

are measured at fair value.
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 Where appropriate, the specific 

policies are explained in the 

succeeding Notes.

 No adjustments have been made 

for inflationary factors in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.3 Going Concern

 The Directors have made an 

assessment of the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern and they 

do not intend either to liquidate or to 

cease business operations.

 Walkers Sons & Company Engineers 

(Pvt.) Ltd

 The company incurred an 

accumulated losses of Rs 

273,548,016/- as at 31 March 

2014, the company’s total liabilities 

exceeded its total assets by Rs 

108,685,716/-. These factors rise 

doubt that the company will be 

able to continue as a going concern 

without the continued support of its 

parent. 

 Walkers Sons & Company Ltd

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd booked 

an impairment provision amounting 

to Rs. 209,467,736/- in respect of the 

investments in subsidiaries Walkers 

Sons& Company Engineers (Pvt.) 

Ltd and MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd 

(Formally Known as Walker Sons & 

Company (Distributors) Ltd) which 

had temporarily ceased operations 

and transferred all operations to 

a fellow subsidiary company on 

account of losses made during the 

previous financial periods.

 However, this provision did not have 

any impact on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the Group 

as the losses were consolidated to 

the Group in the respective financial 

periods or accounted at the point 

of acquisition of the company as 

applicable.

 The directors are of the opinion 

that the continuous financial 

support received from the parent 

company MTD Walkers PLC that 

will mitigate this position and these 

subsidiaries will be able to continue 

as a going concern, in the future, on 

which assumption these financial 

statements have been prepared.

2.4 Comparative Information

 The accounting policies have been 

consistently applied by the Group 

and, are consistent with those used 

in the previous year. Previous year’s 

figures and phrases have been 

re-arranged whenever necessary to 

conform to current presentation.

2.5 Materiality and Aggregation

 Each material class of similar items 

is presented separately in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Items of a dissimilar nature or 

function are presented separately 

unless they are immaterial.

2.6 Functional and Presentation 

Currency

 The Financial Statements are 

presented in Sri Lankan Rupee, which 

is the Group’s functional currency.

2.7 Basis of Consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements 

comprise the financial statements 

of the Group and its subsidiaries 

as at 31 March 2014. The financial 

statements of the subsidiaries are 

prepared in compliance with the 

Group’s accounting policies unless 

otherwise stated. 

 Subsidiaries are those enterprises 

controlled by the parent. Control 

exists when the parent holds more 

than 50% of the voting rights or 

otherwise has a controlling interest.

 Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 

from the date of acquisition, being 

the date on which the Group 

obtains control, and continue to be 

consolidated until the date when 

such control ceases. The financial 

statements of the subsidiaries are 

prepared for the same reporting 

period as the parent company, using 

consistent accounting policies. All 

intra-group balances, transactions, 

unrealised gains and losses resulting 

from intra-group transactions and 

dividends are eliminated in full.

 The financial statements of the 

subsidiaries are prepared for the 

same reporting period as the parent 

Company, which is 12 months 

ending 31 March, using consistent 

accounting policies.

 Losses within a subsidiary are 

attributed to the non-controlling 

interest even if that results in a deficit 

balance.

 A change in the ownership interest 

of a subsidiary, without a loss of 

control, is accounted for as an equity 

transaction. 

 If the Group loses control over a 

subsidiary, it:

(including goodwill) and liabilities 

of the subsidiary

of any non-controlling interest

translation differences, recorded 

in equity

consideration received

investment retained

in profit or loss

components previously recognised 

in other comprehensive income to 

profit or loss or retained earnings, 

as appropriate
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 The following subsidiaries have been incorporated in Sri Lanka.

Company Name Year of Incorporation  Holding %

Walker Sons & Company Ltd 1975 99.80

Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd 1992 99.67

MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd 1991 92.55

(Formerly Known as Walker Sons & Company (Distributors) Ltd)

MTD Walkers Projects Ltd 1936 86.39

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd 1981 100

CML-MTD Construction Ltd 1980 78.59

Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd 2007 100

Special Projects Company (Pvt.) Ltd 2009 78.59

Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd 2010 100

Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd  2004  79.74

2.7.1 Transactions with Non - Controlling Interests

 The profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests that 

are not owned by the parent, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, is disclosed 

separately under the heading “Non- controlling  Interest”. 

 The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as 

transactions with parties external to the Group. 

 Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that 

results in a deficit balance.

2.7.2 Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses 

arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated 

Financial Statements. 

2.8  Significant Accounting Policies

 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods 

presented in the Consolidated Financial, unless otherwise indicated.

 Accounting policies of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the 

Group.

2.8.1 Business Combinations and Goodwill

 Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.  The cost 

of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, 

measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest 

in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures 

the non-controlling interest in the acquire either at fair value or at the proportionate 

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed 

and included in administrative expenses.

 When the Group acquires a business, 

it assesses the financial assets and 

liabilities assumed for appropriate 

classification and designation in 

accordance with the contractual 

terms, economic circumstances 

and pertinent conditions as at the 

acquisition date. This includes the 

separation of embedded derivatives 

in host contracts by the acquiree.

 If the business combination is 

achieved in stages, the acquisition 

date fair value of the acquirer’s 

previously held equity interest in the 

acquire is remeasured to fair value at 

the acquisition date through profit or 

loss.

 Any contingent consideration to 

be transferred by the acquirer will 

be recognised at fair value at the 

acquisition date. Subsequent changes 

in the fair value of the contingent 

consideration which is deemed to be 

an asset or liability, will be recognised 

in accordance with LKAS 39 either 

in profit or loss or as a change to 

other comprehensive income. If the 

contingent consideration is classified 

as equity, it will not be remeasured. 

Subsequent settlement is accounted 

for within equity. In instances where 

the contingent consideration does 

not fall within the scope of LKAS 39, 

it is measured in accordance with the 

appropriate SLFRS.

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, 

being the excess of the aggregate 

of the consideration transferred 

and the amount recognised for 

non-controlling interest over the 

net identifiable assets acquired 

and liabilities assumed. If this 

consideration is lower than the 

fair value of the net assets of the 

subsidiary acquired, the difference is 

recognised in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 After initial recognition, goodwill 

is measured at cost less any 

accumulated impairment losses. 

For the purpose of impairment 

testing, goodwill acquired in a 

business combination is, from the 

acquisition date, allocated to each of 

the Group’s cash-generating units 

that are expected to benefit from the 

combination, irrespective of whether 

other assets or liabilities of the 

acquire are assigned to those units.

 Where goodwill forms part of a 

cash-generating unit and part of the 

operation within that unit is disposed 

of, the goodwill associated with the 

operation disposed of is included in 

the carrying amount of the operation 

when determining the gain or loss on 

disposal of the operation. Goodwill 

disposed of in this circumstance 

is measured based on the relative 

values of the operation disposed of 

and the portion the cash-generating 

unit retained.

2.8.2 Foreign Currency Translations

 The Group’s consolidated financial 

statements are presented in Sri 

Lankan rupees, which is also 

the parent company’s functional 

currency. Each entity in the Group 

determines its own functional 

currency and items included in the 

financial statements of each entity 

are measured using that functional 

currency. The Group has elected 

to recycle the gain or loss that 

arises from the direct method of 

consolidation, which is the method 

the Group uses to complete its 

consolidation.

 Transactions and Balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies 

are initially recorded by the Group 

entities at the functional currency 

rates prevailing at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are retranslated at the 

functional currency spot rate of 

exchange ruling at the reporting date.

 All differences are taken to the 

income statement with the exception 

of all monetary items that forms 

part of a net investment in a foreign 

operation. These are recognised in 

other comprehensive income until 

the disposal of the net investment, 

at which time they are reclassified to 

profit or loss. Tax charges and credits 

attributable to exchange differences 

on those monetary items are also 

recorded in other comprehensive 

income. Non-monetary items that are 

measured in terms of historical cost 

in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates as at the 

dates of the initial transactions. 

Non-monetary items measured at 

fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates 

at the date when the fair value is 

determined. The gain or loss arising 

on translation of non-monetary 

items is recognised in line with the 

gain or loss of the item that gave 

rise to the translation difference 

(translation differences on items 

whose gain or loss is recognised in 

other comprehensive income or profit 

or loss is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or profit or 

loss respectively).

2.8.3 Taxes

 Current income tax

 Current income tax assets and 

liabilities for the current period are 

measured at the amount expected 

to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities. The tax rates 

and tax laws used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted 

or substantively enacted, at the 

reporting date in the countries where 

the Group operates and generates 

taxable income.

 Current income tax relating to items 

recognized directly in Statement 

of Other Comprehensive Income 

are also recognized in Statement 

of Other Comprehensive Income 

and not in the Income Statement. 

Management periodically evaluates 

positions taken in the tax returns 

with respect to situations in which 

applicable tax regulations are subject 

to interpretation and establishes 

provisions where appropriate.

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd

 Pursuant to agreement dated 31 

August 2007, entered into with Board 

of Investments of Sri Lanka under 

section 17 of the Board of Investment 

Law No. 04 of 1978, the provision 

of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 

of 2006 relating to the imposition, 

payment and recovery of income tax 

in respect of the profit and income 

of the Company shall not apply for 

a period of eight (8) years reckoned 

from the year of assessment as may 

be determined by the Board (“the tax 

exemption period”). 

 For the above purpose the year of 

assessment shall be reckoned from 

the year in which the Company 

commences to make profits or any 

year of assessment not later than two 

(02) years reckoned from the date 

of commencement of commercial 

operations whichever comes first, 

as may be specified in a certificate 

issued by the Board. This exemption 

period commence from 01 April 2011 

and expires on 31 March 2019.

 Deferred Tax

 Deferred tax is provided using 

the liability method on temporary 

differences at the reporting date 

between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts 

for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised 

for all taxable temporary differences, 

except:
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arises from the initial recognition 

of goodwill or of an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not 

a business combination and, at 

the time of the transaction, affects 

neither the accounting profit nor 

taxable profit or loss.

differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries, 

associates and interests in joint 

ventures, where the timing of 

the reversal of the temporary 

differences can be controlled and 

it is probable that the temporary 

differences will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised 

for all deductible temporary 

differences, carry forward of unused 

tax credits and unused tax losses, 

to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary 

differences, and the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax 

losses can be utilised, except:

relating to the deductible 

temporary difference arises from 

the initial recognition of an asset 

or liability in a transaction that is 

not a business combination and, 

at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither the accounting 

profit nor taxable profit or loss

differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries, 

associates and interests in joint 

ventures, deferred tax assets are 

recognised only to the extent that 

it is probable that the temporary 

differences will reverse in the 

foreseeable future and taxable 

profit will be available against 

which the temporary differences 

can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax 

assets is reviewed at each reporting 

date and reduced to the extent that it 

is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow 

all or part of the deferred tax asset 

to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred 

tax assets are reassessed at each 

reporting date and are recognised 

to the extent that it has become 

probable that future taxable profits 

will allow the deferred tax asset to 

be recovered. Deferred tax assets 

and liabilities are measured at the 

tax rates that are expected to apply 

in the year when the asset is realised 

or the liability is settled, based on tax 

rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at 

the reporting date.

 Deferred tax relating to items 

recognised outside profit or 

loss is recognised outside profit 

or loss. Deferred tax items are 

recognised in correlation to the 

underlying transaction either in other 

comprehensive income or directly 

in equity. Deferred tax assets and 

deferred tax liabilities are offset if 

a legally enforceable right exists to 

set off current tax assets against 

current income tax liabilities and the 

deferred taxes relate to the same 

taxable entity and the same taxation 

authority. Tax benefits acquired as 

part of a business combination, 

but not satisfying the criteria for 

separate recognition at that date, 

would be recognised subsequently 

if new information about facts 

and circumstances changed. The 

adjustment would either be treated 

as a reduction to goodwill (as long 

as it does not exceed goodwill) if it 

is incurred during the measurement 

period or in profit or loss.

 Sales Tax

 Revenues, expenses and assets are 

recognised net of the amount of sales 

tax, except:

purchase of assets or services is 

not recoverable from the taxation 

authority, in which case the sales 

tax is recognised as part of the cost 

of acquisition of the asset or as part 

of the expense item as applicable

stated with the amount of sales tax 

included. The net amount of sales 

tax recoverable from, or payable to, 

the taxation authority is included as 

part of receivables or payables in 

the statement of financial position.

 Tax on Dividend

 Tax on dividend income from 

subsidiaries are recognized as an 

expense in the Consolidated Income 

Statement.

2.8.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Basis of Measurement

 Property, Plant and equipment is 

stated at cost, net of accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such 

cost includes the cost of replacing 

component parts of the property, 

plant and equipment and borrowing 

costs for long-term construction 

projects if the recognition criteria 

are met. When significant parts of 

property, plant and equipment are 

required to be replaced at intervals, 

the Group derecognises the replaced 

part, and recognises the new part 

with its own associated useful life and 

depreciation. Likewise, when a major 

inspection is performed, its cost is 

recognized in the carrying amount 

of the plant and equipment as a 

replacement if the recognition criteria 

are satisfied. All other repair and 

maintenance costs are recognized in 

the income statement as incurred. 

The present value of the expected 

cost for the decommissioning of 

the asset after its use is included 

in the cost of the respective asset 

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



111

M
T
D

 W
alkers P

L
C

if the recognition criteria for a 

provision are met. Refer to significant 

accounting judgments, estimates 

and assumptions and provisions 

for further information about the 

recorded decommissioning provision.

 The carrying value of property, 

plant and equipments are reviewed 

for impairment when events or 

changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation is calculated by using a 

straight-line method on the cost of all 

property, plant and equipment, other 

than freehold land, in order to write 

off such amounts over the estimated 

useful economic life of such assets.

 The estimated useful life of assets;

Assets Years

Buildings 50

Plant and machinery 05-15

Furniture and fittings 08-10

Component assets 03

Office equipments 08-10

Motor vehicles 04-05

Tools & Equipment 10

Computer & Accessories 04

 An item of property, plant and 

equipment and any significant part 

initially recognized is derecognised 

upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected 

from its use or disposal. Any gain or 

loss arising on derecognition of the 

asset (calculated as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset) 

is included in the income statement 

when the asset is derecognised. 

 The assets’ residual values, useful 

lives and methods of depreciation 

are reviewed at each financial year 

end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate.

2.8.5 Current Assets

 Assets classified as current assets 

on the Balance Sheet are cash and 

bank balances and those which are 

expected to be realised in cash during 

the normal operating cycle or within 

one year from the reporting date, 

whichever is shorter.

2.8.6 Leases 

 The determination of whether an 

arrangement is, or contains, a lease 

is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception date, 

whether fulfilment of the arrangement 

is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets or the arrangement 

conveys a right to use the asset, even 

if that right is not explicitly specified 

in an arrangement. 

 Group as a Lessee

 Finance leases which transfer to the 

Group substantially all the risks and 

benefits incidental to ownership of 

the leased item, are capitalised at 

the commencement of the lease at 

the fair value of the leased property 

or, if lower, at the present value of 

the minimum lease payments. Lease 

payments are apportioned between 

finance charges and reduction of 

the lease liability so as to achieve 

a constant rate of interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. 

Finance charges are recognized 

in finance costs in the income 

statement.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the 

useful life of the asset. However, if 

there is no reasonable certainty that 

the Group will obtain ownership by 

the end of the lease term, the asset 

is depreciated over the shorter of the 

estimated useful life of the asset and 

the lease term.

 Operating lease payments are 

recognized as an operating expense 

in the income statement on a 

straight-line basis over the lease 

term.

 Determining Whether an 

Arrangement Contains a Lease

 At the inception of an arrangement, 

the Group determines whether such 

an arrangement is a lease or contains 

a lease.

 This will be apparent if the following 

two criteria are met:

is dependent on the use of a 

specific asset or assets; and

to use the asset(s).

 At the inception or on reassessment 

of the arrangement, the Group 

separates payments and other 

consideration required by such an 

arrangement into those in respect 

of the lease and those for other 

elements, on the basis of their 

relative fair values. In respect of a 

finance lease, if the Group concludes 

that it is impracticable to separate 

the payments reliably, then an asset 

and a liability are recognised at an 

amount equal to the fair value of the 

underlying asset. Subsequently as 

payments are made the liability is 

reduced and imputed finance cost on 

the liability is recognised using the 

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

2.8.7 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable 

to the acquisition, construction 

or production of an asset that 

necessarily takes a substantial 

period of time to get ready for its 
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intended use or sale are capitalised 

as part of the cost of the respective 

assets. All other borrowing costs are 

expensed in the period they occur. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest 

and other costs that an entity incurs 

in connection with the borrowing of 

funds. 

 Finance Income and Finance Costs

 Finance income comprises interest 

income on funds invested (including 

available-for-sale financial assets), 

dividend income, changes in the 

fair value of financial assets at fair 

value through Statement of Income. 

Interest income is recognised as it 

accrues in Statement of Income.

2.8.8 Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets acquired separately 

are measured on initial recognition 

at cost. The cost of intangible assets 

acquired in a business combination is 

fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Following the initial recognition, 

intangible assets are carried at cost 

less any accumulated amortization 

and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Internally generated 

intangible assets, excluding 

capitalised development costs, are 

not capitalised and expenditure is 

reflected in the income statement in 

the year in which the expenditure is 

incurred.

 The useful life of intangible asset is 

assessed as either finite or indefinite.

 Intangible assets with finite lives are 

amortized over the useful economic 

life and assessed for impairment 

whenever there is an indication that 

the intangible asset may be impaired. 

The amortization period and the 

amortization method for an intangible 

asset with a finite useful life is 

reviewed at least at each financial 

year end. 

 Changes in the expected useful life or 

the expected pattern of consumption 

of future economic benefits 

embodied in the asset is accounted 

for by changing the amortization 

period or method, as appropriate, 

and treated as changes in accounting 

estimates. The amortization expense 

on intangible assets with finite lives is 

recognized in the income statement 

in the expense category consistent 

with the function/nature of the 

intangible asset. Amortization was 

commenced when the assets were 

available for use.

 Intangible assets with indefinite 

useful lives are not amortized, but are 

tested for impairment annually either 

individually or at the cash generating 

unit level. The useful life of an 

intangible asset with an indefinite life 

is reviewed annually to determine 

whether indefinite life assessment 

continues to be supportable. If 

not, the change in the useful life 

assessment from indefinite to finite is 

made on a prospective basis.

 Gains or losses arising from 

derecognition of an intangible asset 

are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the 

asset and are recognized in the 

income statement when the asset is 

derecognised.

2.8.9 Financial Instruments – Initial 

Recognition and Subsequent 

Measurement

i)  Financial assets

 Initial Recognition and 

Measurement

 Financial assets within the scope of 

LKAS 39 are classified as financial 

assets at fair value through profit or 

loss, loans and receivables, held-to-

maturity investments, available-for-

sale financial assets, or as derivatives 

designated as hedging instruments 

in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

The Group determines the 

classification of its financial assets at 

initial recognition.

 All financial assets are recognized 

initially at fair value plus transaction 

costs, except in the case of financial 

assets recorded at fair value through 

profit or loss.

 Purchases or sales of financial 

assets that require delivery of assets 

within a time frame established 

by regulation or convention in the 

market place (regular way trades) 

are recognized on the trade date, i.e., 

the date that the Group commits to 

purchase or sell the asset. 

 The Group’s financial assets include 

cash and short-term deposits, 

trade and other receivables, loans 

and other receivables, quoted and 

unquoted financial instruments.

 Subsequent Measurement

 The subsequent measurement of 

financial assets depends on their 

classification as described below:

a) Financial Assets at Fair Value 

through Profit or Loss

 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss include 

financial assets held for trading 

and financial assets designated 

upon initial recognition at fair 

value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets are classified 

as held for trading if they are 

acquired for the purpose of selling 

or repurchasing in the near term. 

 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss are carried 

in the statement of financial 

position at fair value with net 

changes in fair value recognized 

in the income statement. Financial 

assets designated upon initial 

recognition at fair value through 
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profit and loss are designated at 

their initial recognition date and 

only if the criteria under LKAS 39 

are satisfied. 

 The Group evaluates its financial 

assets held for trading, other than 

derivatives, to determine whether 

the intention to sell them in the 

near term is still appropriate. 

When in rare circumstances the 

Group is unable to trade these 

financial assets due to inactive 

markets and management’s 

intention to sell them in the 

foreseeable future significantly 

changes, the Group may elect to 

reclassify these financial assets. 

The reclassification to loans and 

receivables, available-for-sale 

or held to maturity depends on 

the nature of the asset. This 

evaluation does not affect any 

financial assets designated at 

fair value through profit or loss 

using the fair value option at 

designation.

b) Loans and Receivables

 Loans and receivables are 

non-derivative financial assets 

with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted 

in an active market. After initial 

measurement, such financial 

assets are subsequently measured 

at amortized cost using the 

effective interest rate method, less 

impairment. Amortized cost is 

calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that 

are an integral part of the EIR. 

The EIR amortization is included 

in finance income in the income 

statement. The losses arising 

from impairment are recognized 

in the income statement in finance 

costs.

(i) Derecognition

 A financial asset or a part of a 

financial asset or part of a Group 

of similar financial assets is 

derecognised when:

from the asset have expired

rights to receive cash flows from 

the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash 

flows in full without material delay 

to a third party under a ‘pass-

through’ arrangement; and either 

(a)  The Group has transferred 

substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or

(b) The Group has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the 

risks and rewards of the asset, 

but has transferred control of the 

asset.

 When the Group has transferred 

its rights to receive cash flows 

from an asset or has entered into 

a pass-through arrangement, it 

evaluates if and to what extent 

it has retained the risks and 

rewards of ownership. When 

it has neither transferred nor 

retained substantially all of the 

risks and rewards of the asset, 

nor transferred control of the 

asset, the asset is recognized 

to the extent of the Group’s 

continuing involvement in the 

asset. In that case, the Group also 

recognizes an associated liability. 

The transferred asset and the 

associated liability are measured 

on a basis that reflects the rights 

and obligations that the Group has 

retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes 

the form of a guarantee over the 

transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset 

and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the Group could 

be required to repay.

 ii)  Impairment of Financial Assets

 The Group assesses, at each 

reporting date, whether there 

is any objective evidence that 

a financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is impaired. A 

financial asset or a group of 

financial assets is deemed to be 

impaired if, and only if, there is 

objective evidence of impairment 

as a result of one or more events 

that has occurred after the initial 

recognition of the asset (an 

incurred ‘loss event’) and that 

loss event has an impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of 

the financial asset or the group 

of financial assets that can be 

reliably estimated. 

 Financial Assets Carried at 

Amortized Cost

 For financial assets carried at 

amortized cost, the Group first 

assesses whether objective 

evidence of impairment exists 

individually for financial assets 

that are individually significant, 

or collectively for financial 

assets that are not individually 

significant. If the Group 

determines that no objective 

evidence of impairment exists for 

an individually assessed financial 

asset, whether significant or not, 

it includes the asset in a group of 

financial assets with similar credit 

risk characteristics and collectively 

assesses them for impairment. 

Assets that are individually 

assessed for impairment and 

for which an impairment loss is, 
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or continues to be, recognized 

are not included in a collective 

assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that 

an impairment loss has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss 

is measured as the difference 

between the asset’s carrying 

amount and the present value 

of estimated future cash flows 

(excluding future expected credit 

losses that have not yet been 

incurred). The present value of 

the estimated future cash flows is 

discounted at the financial asset’s 

original effective interest rate. 

 The carrying amount of the asset 

is reduced through the use of 

an allowance account and the 

amount of the loss is recognized 

in the income statement. Interest 

income continues to be accrued 

on the reduced carrying amount 

and is accrued using the rate 

of interest used to discount the 

future cash flows for the purpose 

of measuring the impairment loss. 

The interest income is recorded 

as part of finance income in 

the income statement. Loans 

together with the associated 

allowance are written off when 

there is no realistic prospect of 

future recovery and all collateral 

has been realized or has been 

transferred to the Group. If, in a 

subsequent year, the amount of 

the estimated impairment loss 

increases or decreases because 

of an event occurring after the 

impairment was recognized, the 

previously recognized impairment 

loss is increased or reduced by 

adjusting the allowance account. 

If a future write-off is later 

recovered, the recovery is credited 

to finance costs in the income 

statement.

iii)  Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and 

Measurement

 Financial liabilities within the 

scope of LKAS 39 are classified 

as financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss, 

loans and borrowings, or as 

derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments in an effective 

hedge, as appropriate. The Group 

determines the classification of 

its financial liabilities at initial 

recognition. All financial liabilities 

are recognized initially at fair value 

plus, in the case of loans and 

borrowings, directly attributable 

transaction costs.

 The Group’s financial liabilities 

include trade and other payables, 

bank overdrafts and loans and 

borrowings.

 Subsequent Measurement

 The measurement of financial 

liabilities depends on their 

classification as described below:

 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value 

through Profit or Loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss include 

financial liabilities held for trading 

and financial liabilities designated 

upon initial recognition as at 

fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified 

as held for trading if they are 

acquired for the purpose of selling 

in the near term. This category 

includes derivative financial 

instruments entered into by the 

Group that are not designated as 

hedging instruments in hedge 

relationships as defined by 

LKAS 39. Separated embedded 

derivatives are also classified as 

held for trading unless they are 

designated as effective hedging 

instruments.

 Gains or losses on liabilities held 

for trading are recognized in the 

income statement. 

 Financial liabilities designated 

upon initial recognition at fair 

value through profit and loss so 

designated at the initial date of 

recognition, and only if criteria of 

LKAS 39 are satisfied. The Group 

has not designated any financial 

liability as at fair value through 

profit or loss.

 Loans and Borrowings

 After initial recognition, interest 

bearing loans and borrowings 

are subsequently measured 

at amortized cost using the 

EIR method. Gains and losses 

are recognized in the income 

statement when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through 

the EIR amortization process.

 Amortized cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount 

or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an 

integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortization is included in finance 

costs in the income statement.

 Derecognition

 A financial liability is derecognised 

when the obligation under the 

liability is discharged or cancelled 

or expires. When an existing 

financial liability is replaced by 

another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms  or 

the terms of an existing liability 

are substantially modified, such 

an exchange or modification 

is treated as the derecognition 
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of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective 

carrying amounts is recognized in 

the income statement.

 Financial Guarantee Contracts

 Financial guarantee contracts 

issued by the Group are those 

contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the 

holder for a loss it incurs because 

the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment in accordance with 

the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts are 

recognized initially as a liability at 

fair value, adjusted for transaction 

costs that are directly attributable 

to the issuance of the guarantee. 

Subsequently, the liability is 

measured at the higher of the 

best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the present 

obligation at the reporting date 

and the amount recognized less 

cumulative amortization.

iv) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial 

liabilities are offset and the 

net amount reported in the 

consolidated statement of 

financial position if, and only if:

legal right to offset the recognized 

amounts and

on a net basis, or to realize the 

assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously

v) Fair value of Financial Instruments

 The fair value of financial 

instruments that are traded in 

active markets at each reporting 

date is determined by reference 

to quoted market prices or dealer 

price quotations (bid price for 

long positions and ask price for 

short positions), without any 

deduction for transaction costs.

 For financial instruments that do 

not have a quoted market price 

in and active market and whose 

fair value cannot be reliability 

measured are carried at cost.

2.8.10 Inventories

 Inventories are valued at the lower 

of cost and net realizable value, after 

making due allowances   for obsolete 

and slow moving items. Net realizable 

value is the price at which inventories 

can be sold in the ordinary course of 

business less the estimated cost of 

completion and the estimated cost 

necessary to make the sale.

 The cost incurred in bringing 

inventories to its present location and 

condition, are accounted using the 

following cost formulae:-

a) Raw Material – at actual cost on first-

in-first-out (FIFO) basis.

b) Finished Goods & Work in Progress 

– at the cost of direct material, direct 

labour and appropriated proportion of 

fixed production overheads.

2.8.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalent are 

defined as cash in hand, demand 

deposits and short term highly liquid 

investments, readily convertible to 

known amounts of cash and subject 

to insignificant risk of changes in 

value.

 For the purpose of the statement 

of cash flows, cash and cash 

equivalents consist of cash and 

short-term deposits as defined above, 

net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

2.8.12 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognized when the 

Group has a present obligation (legal 

or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, where it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required 

to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount 

of the obligation. When the group 

expects some or all of a provision to 

be reimbursed, the reimbursement 

is recognized as a separate assets 

but only when the reimbursement 

is virtually certain. The expense 

relating to any provision is presented 

in the income statement net of any 

reimbursement. If the effect of the 

time value of money is material, 

provisions are determined by 

discounting the expected future cash 

flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the 

time value of money and, where 

appropriate, the risks specific to the 

liability. Where discounting is used, 

the increase in the provision due to 

the passage of time is recognized as 

a finance expense. 

2.8.13 Capital Commitments and 

Contingencies 

 Capital commitments and contingent 

liabilities of the Group are disclosed 

in the respective Note 32 to the 

Financial Statements.

2.8.14 Stated Capital 

2.8.14.1 Ordinary Shares

 Ordinary shares are classified as 

equity. Incremental costs directly 

attributable to the issue of ordinary 

shares and share options are 

recognised as a deduction from 

equity, net of any tax effects.

2.8.15 Retirement Benefit Obligations

a)  Defined Contribution Plans – 

Employees’ Provident Fund & 

Employees’ Trust Fund

 Employees are eligible for Employees’ 

Provident Fund Contributions and 

Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions 

in line with the respective statutes 
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and regulations in Sri Lanka. The 

Group contributes 12 % and 3% of 

gross emoluments of employees 

to Employees’ Provident Fund and 

Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

b)  Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity 

 A defined benefit plan is a post-

employment benefit plan other than a 

defined contribution plan. The defined 

benefit is calculated by independent 

actuaries using Projected Unit Credit 

(PUC) method as recommended 

by LKAS 19 – “Employee benefits”. 

The present value of the defined 

benefit obligation is determined by 

discounting the estimated future cash 

outflows using interest rates that are 

denominated in the currency in which 

the benefits will be paid, and that 

have terms to maturity approximating 

to the terms of the related liability.   

 The present value of the defined 

benefit obligations depends on 

a number of factors that are 

determined on an actuarial basis 

using a number of assumptions. Key 

assumptions used in determining the 

defined retirement benefit obligations 

are given in note 20. Any changes in 

these assumptions will impact the 

carrying amount of defined benefit 

obligations.

 The Group’s accounting policy for 

defined benefit plans is to recognise 

actuarial gains and losses in the 

period in which they occur in full 

in other comprehensive income in 

accordance with LKAS 19. 

 The gratuity liability is not funded.

 The Group carried out an actuarial 

valuation of its retirement benefit 

obligations for the following 

subsidiaries as required by LKAS 19 

-“Employee Benefits”,

I. MTD Walkers PLC

II. Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd

III. Walker Sons & Company 

Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd

IV. CML - MTD Construction Ltd

V. Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd

VI. Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd

VII. Special Projects Company (Pvt.) Ltd

2.8.16 Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

 The Group assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is an indication 

that an asset may be impaired. If 

any such indication exists, or when 

annual impairment testing for an 

asset is required, the Group makes 

an estimate of the asset’s recoverable 

amount. An asset’s recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset’s or 

cash-generating unit’s fair value less 

costs to sell and its value in use and 

is determined for an individual asset 

or cash-generating unit, unless the 

asset or cash-generating unit does 

not generate cash inflows that are 

largely independent of those from 

other assets or cash-generating 

units. Where the carrying amount 

of an asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to its 

recoverable amount. In assessing 

value in use, the estimated future 

cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks specific to the 

asset. In determining fair value less 

costs to sell, an appropriate valuation 

model is used. 

 Impairment losses of continuing 

operations are recognized in the 

income statement in those expense 

categories consistent with the 

function of the impaired asset, except 

for property previously revalued 

where the revaluation was taken to 

equity. In this case the impairment 

is also recognized in equity up to the 

amount of any previous revaluation.

 For assets excluding Goodwill, an 

assessment is made at each reporting 

date as to whether there is any 

indication that previously recognized 

impairment losses may no longer 

exist or may have decreased. If such 

indication exists, the Group makes 

an estimate of recoverable amount. 

A previously recognized impairment 

loss is reversed only if there has 

been a change in the estimates used 

to determine the asset’s recoverable 

amount since the last impairment 

loss was recognized. If that is the 

case the carrying amount of the 

asset is increased to its recoverable 

amount. That increased amount 

cannot ‘’exceed’’ the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net 

of depreciation, had no impairment 

loss been recognized for the asset 

in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognized in the income statement 

unless the asset is carried at revalued 

amount, in which case the reversal 

is treated as a revaluation increase. 

Impairment losses recognized in 

relation to Goodwill are not reversed 

for subsequent increases in its 

recoverable amount.

 The following criteria are also applied 

in assessing impairment of specific 

assets:

 Goodwill

 Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, 

annually or more frequently if events 

or changes in circumstances indicate 

that the carrying value may be 

impaired.

 Impairment is determined for 

Goodwill by assessing the 

recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit (or group of 

cash-generating units), to which 

the Goodwill relates. Where the 
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recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit (or group of 

cash-generating units) is less than 

the carrying amount of the cash-

generating unit (or group of cash-

generating units) to which Goodwill 

has been allocated, an impairment 

loss is recognized. Impairment 

losses relating to Goodwill cannot be 

reversed in future periods. 

 Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets with indefinite 

useful lives are tested for impairment 

annually either individually or at 

the cash generating unit level, as 

appropriate.

2.8.17 Income Statement

 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue is recognized to the extent 

that it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Group and 

the revenue can be reliably measured, 

regardless of when the payment is 

being made. Revenue is measured 

at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable, taking into 

account contractually defined terms 

of payment and excluding taxes or 

duty. The Group assesses its revenue 

arrangements against specific criteria 

in order to determine if it is acting 

as principal or agent. The following 

specific recognition criteria must also 

be met before revenue is recognized. 

a) Sale of Goods

 Revenue from the sale of goods is 

recognized when the significant risk 

and rewards of ownership of the 

goods have passed to buyer with the 

Group retaining neither continuing 

managerial involvement to the degree 

usually associated with ownership, 

nor an effective control over the 

goods sold.

b) Rendering of Services

 Revenue from rendering of services 

is recognized in the accounting 

period in which the services are 

rendered or performed.

c) Construction Income

 When the outcome of the contract 

can be measured reliably, contract 

revenue is recognized by reference 

to the stage of completion of the 

contract activity at the reporting 

date. Any expected losses on specific 

contract are recognized immediately 

by a corresponding reduction in their 

revenue.  

d) Interest Income

 For all financial instruments 

measured at amortized cost and 

interest bearing financial assets 

classified as available for sale, 

interest income or expense is 

recorded using the effective interest 

rate (EIR), which is the rate that 

exactly discounts the estimated 

future cash payments or receipts 

through the expected life of the 

financial instrument or a shorter 

period, where appropriate, to the 

net carrying amount of the financial 

asset or liability. Interest income is 

included in finance income in the 

income statement.

e) Dividends

 Dividend income is recognized on a 

cash basis (net of dividend tax) when 

the shareholder’s right to receive 

payment is established’.

f) Rental Income

 Rental income is recognized on an 

accrual basis.

g) Gains and Losses

 Net gains and losses of a revenue 

nature on the disposal of Property, 

Plant & Equipment and other 

noncurrent assets including 

investments are accounted for in the 

income statement, after deducting 

from proceeds on disposal, the 

carrying amount of the assets and 

related selling expenses.

 Gains and losses arising from 

activities incidental to the main 

revenue generating activities and 

those arising from a group of similar 

transactions which are not material, 

are aggregated, reported and 

presented on a net basis.

h) Other Income

 Other income is recognized on an 

accrual basis.

2.8.18 Segment Reporting

 An operating segment is a 

component of the Group that engages 

in business activities from which 

it may earn revenues and incur 

expenses, including revenues and 

expenses that relate to transactions 

with any of the Group’s other 

components. All operating segments’ 

operating results are reviewed 

regularly by the senior management 

to make decisions about resources 

to be allocated to the segment and 

assess its performance, and for 

which discrete financial information 

is available.

 Segment results that are reported to 

the senior management and board 

of directors include items directly 

attributable to a segment as well 

as those that can be allocated on a 

reasonable basis. 

 Segment capital expenditure is 

the total cost incurred during the 

period to acquire property, plant and 

equipment. 

2.9 Significant Accounting 

Judgments, Estimates & 

Assumptions

 The preparation of the financial 

statements of the group require the 

management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions, which 

may affect the amounts of income, 

expenditure, assets , liabilities and 
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the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 

at the end of the reporting period. 

In the process of applying the 

group’s accounting policies, the key 

assumptions made relating to the 

future and the sources of estimation 

at the reporting date together with 

the related judgments that have a 

significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities within the 

next financial year are discussed 

below.

a) Deferred Tax Assets

 Deferred tax assets are recognised 

for all unused tax losses to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profit 

will be available against which the 

losses can be utilised. Significant 

management judgment is required to 

determine the amount of deferred tax 

assets that can be recognised, based 

upon the likely timing and level of 

future taxable profits together with 

future tax planning strategies.

b)  Defined Benefit Plans

 The cost of the retirement benefit 

plan of employees is determined 

using an actuarial valuation. The 

actuarial valuation is based on 

assumptions concerning the rate 

of interest, rate of salary increase, 

special premium,   retirement age 

and going concern of the Company. 

Due to the long term nature of the 

plan, such estimates are subject to 

significant uncertainty. 

c) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 An impairment exists when the 

carrying value of an asset or cash 

generating unit exceeds its recoverable 

amount, which is the higher of its fair 

value less costs to sell and its value in 

use (VIU). The fair value less costs to 

sell calculation is based on available 

data from an active market, in an 

arm’s length transaction, of similar 

assets or observable market prices 

less incremental costs for disposing of 

the asset. The value in use calculation 

is based on a discounted cash flow 

model.

d)       Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 Where the fair value of financial 

assets and financial liabilities 

recorded in the statement of financial 

position cannot be derived from 

active markets, their fair value 

is determined using valuation 

techniques including the discounted 

cash flow model. The inputs to these 

models are taken from observable 

markets where possible. Where 

this is not feasible, a degree of 

judgment is required in establishing 

fair values. The judgments include 

considerations of inputs such as 

liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these 

factors could affect the reported fair 

value of financial instruments.

2.10 General

 Events Occurring After the Reporting 

Date

 All material post Balance Sheet 

events have been considered and 

where appropriate adjustments or 

disclosures have been made in the 

respective notes to the Financial 

Statements.

 Earnings Per Share

 The Group presents basic and 

diluted earnings per share (EPS) 

for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 

is calculated by dividing the profit 

or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Group by the 

weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding during the 

period. Diluted EPS is determined 

by adjusting the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and the weighted average number 

of ordinary shares outstanding for 

the effects of all potential ordinary 

shares. 

 Cash Flow Statement

 The Cash Flow Statement has been 

prepared using the “indirect method”.

 Interest paid is classified as an 

operating cash flow. Grants received, 

which are related to purchase and 

construction of Property, Plant and 

Equipment are classified as investing 

cash flows. Dividend and interest 

income are classified as cash flows 

from investing activities.

 Dividends paid are classified as 

financing cash flows and Dividends 

received are classified as investing 

cash flows.  

2.11 Standards Issued but not yet 

Effective

 The following SLFRS have been 

issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka that have an 

effective date in the future and have 

not been applied in preparing these 

financial statements. Those SLFRS 

will have an effect on the accounting 

policies currently adopted by the 

Group and may have an impact on 

the future financial statements.

(i)  SLFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: 

Classification and Measurement

 SLFRS 9, as issued reflects the first 

phase of work on replacement of 

LKAS 39 and applies to classification 

and measurement of financial assets 

and liabilities. 

 This standard was originally effective 

for annual periods commencing on 

or after 01 January 2015. However 

the effective date has been deferred 

subsequently. date is yet to be 

announced. 

(ii)  SLFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

 SLFRS 13 establishes a single source 

of guidance under SLFRS for all fair 

value measurements. 
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 This standard will be effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 

01 January 2014.  

 However use of fair value 

measurement principles contained 

in this standard are currently 

recommended.

 In addition to the above, following 

standards will also be effective for 

annual periods commencing on or 

after 01 January 2014.  

 SLFRS 10 -  Consolidated Financial  

      Statements

 SLFRS 11 -  Joint Arrangements 

 SLFRS 12 -  Disclosure of Interests in  

      Other Entities 

 The above package of three 

standards will impact the recognition, 

measurement and disclosures 

aspects currently contained in 

LKAS 27-Consolidated and separate 

financial statements, LKAS 28- 

Investments in associates, LKAS 

31-Interest in joint ventures and 

Standards Interpretation Committee 

(SIC) -12 and 13 which are on 

consolidation of special purpose 

entities(SPEs) and jointly controlled 

entities respectively.

 Establishing a single control model 

that applies to all entities including 

SPEs and removal of the option to 

proportionate consolidate jointly 

controlled entities are the significant 

changes introduced under SLFRS 10 

and SLFRS 11 respectively.

 SLFRS 12, establishes a single 

standard on disclosures related 

to interests in other entities. This 

incorporates new disclosures as well 

as disclosures currently required 

under (as per ones previously 

captured in earlier versions of) LKAS 

27, LKAS 28 and LKAS 31.

 The Group will adopt these standards 

when they become effective. Pending 

the completion of detailed review, 

the financial impact is not reasonably 

estimable as at the date of publication 

of these financial statements.  
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT    

3.1 Group As at Additions/    On acquisition  Disposal/   As at

  01.04.2013 Transfers     of subsidiary    Transfers   31.03.2014

 Gross carrying amounts Rs.  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.  Rs.

     

 At cost or valuation     

 Land & buildings  366,549,788   -     35,277,470   -     401,827,258 

 Plant & machinery  2,062,718,568   328,643,538   60,405,477   -     2,451,767,583 

 Furniture & fittings  76,358,322   1,723,998   661,295   -     78,743,615 

 Office equipment  58,748,444   21,160,030   1,656,603   (268,000)  81,297,077 

 Other equipment  94,899,295   114,015,535   370,000   -     209,284,830 

 Motor vehicles  265,594,397   45,481,912   84,300   (32,322,500)  278,838,109 

   2,924,868,814   511,025,013   98,455,145   (32,590,500)  3,501,758,472 

 Assets on finance leases     

 Motor vehicles  218,057,259   87,069,820   -     (16,874,643)  288,252,436 

 Plant & machinery  773,022,913   98,142,516   -     (16,670,000)  854,495,429 

   991,080,172   185,212,336   -     (33,544,643)  1,142,747,865 

 Total value of depreciable assets  3,915,948,986   696,237,349   98,455,145   (66,135,143)  4,644,506,337  

    

 

  As at    On acquisition     As at

  01.04.2013 Additions     of subsidiary    Disposal   31.03.2014

 In the course of construction Rs.  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.  Rs.

     

 Building work in progress  1,985,021    -     -     1,985,021 

   1,985,021   -     -     -     1,985,021 

     

3.2  Company  As at    Disposal/  As at

   01.04.2013 Additions   Transfers   31.03.2014

   Rs.  Rs.   Rs.  Rs.

     

 Office equipment   1,342,285   2,315,369   -     3,657,654 

 Furniture & fittings   14,487,743   1,222,812   -     15,710,555 

 Total gross carrying amount   15,830,028   3,538,181   -     19,368,209 

     

 Assets on finance leases     

 Motor vehicle   12,690,000   -     (594,643)  12,095,357 

    12,690,000   -     (594,643)  12,095,357 

 Total value of depreciable assets   28,520,028   3,538,181   (594,643)  31,463,566 

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 March



121

M
T
D

 W
alkers P

L
C

3.3 Depreciation-Group As at Charge for   On acquisition   Disposal/  As at

  01.04.2013 the year   of subsidiary     Transfers  31.03.2014

  Rs. Rs.  Rs.   Rs.  Rs.

 At cost or valuation 

 Buildings  8,949,032   1,309,619   11,166,028   -     21,424,679 

 Plant & machinery  990,011,281   306,139,151   52,164,630   -     1,348,315,062 

 Furniture & fittings  11,840,883   5,653,666   564,021   -     18,058,570 

 Office equipment  22,918,021   6,749,193   982,097   -     30,649,311 

 Other equipment  22,284,017   16,308,035   77,083   -     38,669,135 

 Motor vehicles  135,607,216   42,455,360   63,520   (25,381,318)  152,744,778 

   1,191,610,450   378,615,024   65,017,379   (25,381,318)  1,609,861,535 

 

 Assets on finance leases 

 Motor vehicles  85,224,072   47,440,729   -     (8,711,100)  123,953,701 

 Plant & machinery  190,469,898   124,586,050   -     (6,427,114)  308,628,834 

   275,693,970   172,026,779   -     (15,138,214)  432,582,535 

 Total depreciation  1,467,304,420   550,641,803   65,017,379   (40,519,532)  2,042,444,070

      

3.4 Depreciation-Company As at Charge for   On acquisition   Disposal/  As at

  01.04.2013 the year   of subsidiary     Transfers  31.03.2014

  Rs. Rs.  Rs.   Rs.  Rs.

      

 Office equipment  229,747   713,879   -     -     943,626 

 Furniture & fittings  119,511   3,870,595   -     -     3,990,106 

   349,258   4,584,474   -     -     4,933,732 

 Assets on finance leases 

 Motor vehicles  2,794,713   3,023,839   -     (53,762)  5,764,790 

   2,794,713   3,023,839   -     (53,762)  5,764,790 

 Total depreciation  3,143,971   7,608,313   -     (53,762)  10,698,522

 

      

3.5 Net book value -Group    2014 2013

     Rs. Rs.

 At cost or valuation 

 Land & buildings  380,402,579   357,600,756 

 Plant & machinery  1,103,452,521   1,072,707,287 

 Furniture & fittings  60,685,045   64,517,439 

 Office equipment  50,647,766   35,830,422 

 Other equipment  170,615,695   72,615,279 

 Motor vehicles  126,093,331   129,987,181 

   1,891,896,937   1,733,258,364 

 Assets on finance leases 

 Motor vehicles  164,298,734   132,833,187 

 Plant & machinery  545,866,595   582,553,015 

   710,165,329   715,386,202 

 In the course of construction

 Building work in progress  1,985,021   1,985,021 

   1,985,021   1,985,021 

 Total carrying amount of property, plant & equipment  2,604,047,287   2,450,629,587

As at 31 March
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT - (Contd.) 

3.6 Net book value -Company  2014  2013

     Rs.  Rs.

     

 At cost or valuation

 Office equipment   2,714,028   1,859,149 

 Furniture & fittings   11,720,448   13,621,621 

    14,434,476   15,480,770 

 

 Assets on finance leases   

 Motor vehicles   6,330,567   9,895,287 

    6,330,567   9,895,287 

 Total carrying amount of property, plant & equipment   20,765,043   25,376,057  

     

3.7 During the financial year, the group acquired property, plant & equipment for cash to the aggregate value of Rs. 497,548,191/- (2013 

Rs 369,791,652/-)      

       

3.8 Value of land and ownership at the year end - Group      

       

 Information on the freehold lands of the group is as follows;

    2014

Carrying Value 

Company  Location  Extent   Rs. 

CML-MTD Construction Ltd No.428/1,Samurdi Mawatha ,Heyanthuduwa   388.00 Perches   68,380,000 

Kirwanawatha,Hamanawatha,Giriulla   758.08 Perches   6,250,000 

Walker Sons & Company 

Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd 

Mahahena Road,Siyambalape South, Siyambalape   260.10 Perches   11,300,000 

Akuressa Road,Wanchawala, Galle   112.30 Perches   500,000 

Karamadala,Gelioya   173.50 Perches   3,147,084 

Walker Sons & Company Ltd No. 18, St. Michael’s Road, Colombo 03    40.00 Perches   180,000,000 

Walden Place, Welimada Road, Bandarawela   444.90 Perches   15,250,000 

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd 5/A, Thuduwa Road, Madapatha   101.51 Perches   16,241,600 

Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd Mahane Road, Siyamabalape  32.86 Perches 2,200,000

 Group

     2014 2013

      Rs. Rs. 

4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Goodwill

 At the beginning of the year 449,129,584 289,069,326 

 Goodwill on acquisition during the year 62,728,428 160,060,258 

 At the end of the year 511,858,012 449,129,584 

As at 31 March
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4.1 Goodwill

 Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to cash generating units (CGU’s) for impairment testing as 

follows;

  Group

  2014 2013

   Rs. Rs. 

 

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd 289,069,326 289,069,326 

 Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd 160,060,258 160,060,258 

 Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd 62,728,428 -   

   511,858,012 449,129,584 

 The recoverable amount of all CGU’s have been determined based on the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use (VIU) 

calculation.

 

4.2 Key assumptions used in the VIU calculations 

 Gross margins 

 The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the gross margins achieved in the year preceding 

the budgeted year adjusted for projected market conditions. 

 

 Discount rates 

 The discount rate used is the risk free rate, adjusted by the addition of an appropriate risk premium. 

 

 Inflation 

 The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted cost inflation, is the inflation rate, based on projected economic 

condition. 

 

 Volume growth 

 Volume growth has been budgeted on a reasonable and realistic basis by taking into account the growth rates of one to five years 

immediately subsequent to the budgeted year based on industry growth rates. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated 

using 5% growth rate.

5 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

 Upon recognition of the power plant owned by Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd, under IFRIC 4 the arrangement was accounted as 

a finance lease where Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd is treated as the lessor. 

 Group

  2014 2013

   Rs. Rs. 

 Balance at the beginning of the year  2,322,249,637   2,317,724,518 

 Addition during the year  740,199,587   4,525,119 

 Less: Settlements during the period  (76,537,441)  -   

 Less: Adjustments for exchange difference  (29,726,591)  -   

 Balance at the end of the year  2,956,185,192   2,322,249,637 

 

 Current portion of finance lease receivables   177,028,081   -   

 Non current portion of finance lease receivables   2,779,157,111   2,322,249,637

As at 31 March
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5.1 Ageing of gross finance lease receivables and present value of lease receivables

    Gross Unearned Present 

    investment income value

    Rs. Rs. Rs. 

 Not later than one year  740,598,988   563,570,907   177,028,081 

 One to five years  3,582,567,104   2,062,325,654   1,520,241,450 

 Over five years  1,749,101,609   490,185,948   1,258,915,661 

   6,072,267,701   3,116,082,509   2,956,185,192

6 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY

  2014 2013

 Non - Quoted Holding  Holding  

  % Rs. % Rs.

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd  99.80   76,999,860   99.80   76,999,860 

 Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd  99.60   26,132   99.60   26,132 

 MTD Walkers Projects Ltd  86.38   399,940   86.38   399,940 

 MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd  92.55   34,650   92.55   34,650 

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd  99.99   224,999,000   99.99   224,999,000 

 CML- MTD Construction Ltd  78.59   466,748,959   78.59   466,748,959 

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd  100   2,535,565,347   100   2,535,565,347 

 Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd  100   275,000,000   100   275,000,000 

    3,579,773,888    3,579,773,888

7 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Group Company 

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 Non current 

 Quoted equity securities & debt securities (Note 7.1)  2,998,696   2,912,098   15,250   17,640 

 Unquoted equity securities (Note 7.2)  260,370   260,370   -     -   

   3,259,066   3,172,468   15,250   17,640 

 Current 

 Bank deposits   968,475,776   896,785,754   61,016,546   64,234,469 

   968,475,776   896,785,754   61,016,546   64,234,469

 

     

7.1 Quoted equity securities & debt securities - Group 2014  2013   2014   2013 

  No. of No. of  Fair Value   Fair Value 

  Shares Shares  Rs.   Rs. 

     

 Seylan Merchant Bank  1,100   1,100   7,570   7,090 

 Kelani Tyre PLC  600   600   31,320   30,360 

 Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC  100   100   9,900   9,950 

 Coco Lanka PLC  100   100   1,610   3,600 

 First Capital PLC  100   100   1,930   1,120 

 Asian Hotel & Properties PLC  1,586   1,586   93,257   110,601 

 Ferm Tea PLC  100   100   350   350 

 The Finance Company PLC  100   100   1,100   1,260 

 Asia Capital PLC  100   100   1,700   2,280 

As at 31 March
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 CW Mackie PLC  100   100   6,090   6,700 

 Udupussallawa PLC  200   200   4,460   5,000 

 Balangoda Plantation PLC  300   300   9,270   10,000 

 Namunukula Plantation PLC  200   200   16,400   15,320 

 Kahawathtte Plantation PLC  200   200   7,580   6,610 

 Lanka Walltile PLC  100   100   6,150   11,739 

 Ceylinco Finance PLC  300   300   2,670   2,670 

 Thalawakelle Plantation PLC  200   200   6,060   5,240 

 DFCC Bank  344   344   49,501   45,098 

 National Development Bank PLC  30   30   5,358   4,950 

 Peoples Leasing PLC  81,700   81,700   1,168,310   1,070,270 

 Seylan Bank PLC  7,600   7,600   281,200   269,800 

 Nation Lanka Finance PLC  300   300   2,340   2,670 

 Malwatta Valley Plantation PLC  5,000   5,000   19,500   21,000 

 Hapugastenna Plantation PLC  100   100   3,070   3,920 

 Royal Palms Hotels PLC  400   200   12,000   14,500 

 Seylan Bank PLC   12,500   12,500   1,250,000   1,250,000 

     2,998,696   2,912,098

 The Group uses Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities, in determining and disclosing 

the fair value of the financial instruments by valuation techniques.    

 

7.1 Quoted equity securities & debt securities - Company  2014   2013   2014  2013

  No. of No. of  Fair Value   Fair Value 

  Shares Shares  Rs.   Rs. 

     

 Hapugastenna Plantation PLC 100 100  3,070   3,920 

 Balangoda Plantation PLC 200 200  6,180   6,720 

 Royal Palm Beach Hotel PLC 200 200  6,000   7,000 

     15,250      17,640

     

7.2 Unquoted equity securities - Group  2014   2013   2014  2013

  No. of No. of  Fair Value   Fair Value 

  Shares Shares  Rs.   Rs. 

     

 MBSL Savings Bank Ltd.  10,000   10,000   100,000   100,000 

 Asbestos Cement Industries  24,055   24,055   160,370   160,370 

     260,370   260,370 

     

  Group Company 

8 INVENTORIES   2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

     

 Raw materials  419,242,377   345,953,345   -     -   

 Work-in-progress  3,688,700   1,146,639   -     -   

 Spare parts & consumables  101,463,978   62,028,019   -     -   

 Goods in transit  -     7,408,707   -     -   

 Loose tools  -     1,132,023   -     -   

 Finished goods  12,475,304   12,743,694   -     -   

 Other inventories  73,105,574   37,656,515   -     -   

 Less : Provision for obsolete items  -     (4,227,392)  -     -   

   609,975,933   463,841,550   -     -   

As at 31 March
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9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Group Company 

  2014 2013 2014 2013

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

 Trade debtors (Note 9.1)  5,247,114,614   3,182,002,285   -     3,500,000 

 Less: Impairment for trade debtors  (42,129,758)  (37,716,239)  -    (3,500,000)

   5,204,984,856   3,144,286,046   -     -   

 

 Other receivables  1,987,314,531   1,375,942,471   29,811,291   6,705,563 

 Less: Impairment for other receivables  (93,182,915)  (93,182,915)  -     -   

   1,894,131,616   1,282,759,556   29,811,291   6,705,563 

 

 Extra fuel chargers receivable (Note 9.2)  368,172,482   262,605,337   -     -   

 Less: Impairment for fuel charges receivables  (83,999,855)  -     -     -   

   284,172,627   262,605,337   -     -   

   7,383,289,099   4,689,650,939   29,811,291   6,705,563

9.1 The aging analysis of trade debtors is as follows: 

  Group Company 

  Total Neither past             Past due but not impaired Neither past       Past due but not impaired

   due nor 01 - 02   >02  due nor 01 - 02 > 02

    impaired Year Year Total impaired Year Year

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 

 31 March 2014 5,204,984,856 4,868,831,686 190,122,436 146,030,734 - - - -   

 31 March 2013 3,144,286,046 2,917,513,989 226,772,057 - - - - -   

 

9.1.A The Group carries out a significant portion of  its businesses with the Road Development Authority (RDA) and to the Ceylon Electricity 

Board (CEB) both entities which are owned and administrated  by the Government of Sri Lanka (GOSL). It is an inherent factor that 

invoices relating to work carried out by the Group to these entities affiliated to the GOSL have long settlement cycles, consistent with 

the current practice in the industry.     
 

 The Board of Directors of the group is of the view, that this phenomenon is an inherent factor in the construction industry and further 

provisioning is not required for bad and doubtful debts on receivables, as they are deemed to be recoverable. Further, the directors of 

the group is of the view that the current provisioning for bad and doubtful debts is adequate to meet any potential bad debts that could 

crystallize in the future.     

 

9.2. Extra fuel charges receivable from Ceylon Electricity Board 

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd. has recorded a claim of Rs.368,172,482/-  from the Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB) in view of 

excess charges for fuel consumed for the generating of electricity. We have not received confirmation from the Ceylon Electricity 

Board (CEB) consenting to this arrangement. 
 

 As per the information  currently available from correspondence submitted to Ernst & Young by  the management of the company, 

the claim  is still in negotiation with the Ceylon Electricity Board (CEB)  and the directors are confident that recovery of such claims is 

feasible based on the current electricity requirement in the Northern Province in Sri Lanka. An agreement is yet to be reached between 

the two parties as at the date of this report, as the rates are under negotiation. 
 

 The Company reviewed its prior balances against the current year negotiations and provided Rs. 83,999,855 as an impairment to trade 

and other receivables.

 

 

As at 31 March
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 The aging analysis of extra fuel charges receivable from Ceylon Electricity Board  is as follows: 

    More than  

   Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years 2014 2013

  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 

 Extra fuel charges receivable   105,567,145   215,693,270   46,912,067   368,172,482   262,605,337 

 Less: Impairment for fuel charges receivables  (4,753,154)  (32,334,634)  (46,912,067)  (83,999,855)  -   

   100,813,991   183,358,636   -     284,172,627   262,605,337

10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 

 WHT receivable   6,358,259   13,178,077   -     -   

  ESC receivable   1,994,619   -     -     -   

  Deposits and advances   319,450,131   285,905,193   23,095,104   500,000 

  Other receivables   172,609,893   46,911,112   -     330,000 

   500,412,902   345,994,382   23,095,104   830,000 

11 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES  Group  Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   (Restated)  (Restated)

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Loans receivable* 

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     374,212,928   324,212,928 

 CML-MTD Construction Ltd  -     -     408,814,120   184,814,120 

 Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     141,916,137   54,752,994 

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     192,545,241   33,220,101 

 MTD Walkers Projects Ltd  -     -     9,696,658   9,696,658 

   -     -     1,127,185,084   606,696,801 

 Current account balances 

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd     -     -     58,363,750   58,164,058 

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     37,942,593   28,519,252 

 Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd     -   -     20,795,549   13,940,436 

 CML-MTD Construction Ltd     -     -     13,808,401   -   

 MTD Walkers Projects Ltd  -     -     37,458,631   27,681,553 

 Wincon Development (Pvt.) Ltd  6,202,738   3,322,344   2,649,484   1,259,990 

 MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd  -     -     336,330   113,074 

 Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     71,198,107   40,328,368 

 Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd  -     28,904,628   364,680   -   

 Special Projects Company (Pvt.) Ltd  -    -   2,240   -

   6,202,738   32,226,972   242,919,765   170,006,731 

 Key Management Personnel  10,515,493   7,284,123   7,070,493   372,373 

   16,718,231   39,511,095   249,990,258   170,379,104

 Current portion of amount due from related parties   16,718,231   39,511,095   249,990,258   170,379,104 

 Non current portion of amount due from related parties   -     -     1,127,185,084   606,696,801

 * These loans are not secured and terms of repayments are not agreed as at the reporting date.

As at 31 March
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12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Components of cash and cash equivalents Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

12.1 Favourable cash & cash equivalent balances

 Cash & bank balances  66,813,907   76,236,485   373,295   43,854 

 Call deposits  29,801,990   24,562,552   -     -   

   96,615,897   100,799,037   373,295   43,854 

12.2 Unfavourable cash & cash equivalent balances

 Bank overdrafts   (1,903,898,798)  (954,203,387)  (6,430,836) (27,586,151)

 Total cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 

  cash flow statements  (1,807,282,901)  (853,404,350)  (6,057,541) (27,542,297)

 Company

13 STATED CAPITAL 2014 2013

   Number of  Value of  Number of   Value of

  shares   shares  shares   shares

   Rs.    Rs. 

  

 Issued & fully-paid - ordinary shares  114,357,140   3,659,428,479   114,357,140   3,659,428,479 

 Balance at the end of the year  114,357,140   3,659,428,479   114,357,140   3,659,428,479

      

    

14 CAPITAL RESERVES Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

      

Revaluation reserve 118,100,129 118,100,129   -     -   

 Other capital reserves 897,157  897,157  -     -   

  118,997,286 118,997,286   -     -   

      

    

15 OTHER RESERVES Group Company 

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

     

 General reserves  4,648,661   4,648,661   1,804,100   1,804,100 

   4,648,661   4,648,661   1,804,100   1,804,100 

     

As at 31 March
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16 NON CONTROLLING INTEREST Group

    2014 2013

     Rs.   Rs. 

     
 As at the beginning of the year  297,078,912   242,013,088 

 Share of profit/(loss) for the year  122,009,591   55,065,824 

 Effect of acquisitions, further acquisitions and percentage change in subsidiaries  (35,405,195)  -   

 Dividend paid  (1,033,651)  -   

 As at the end of the year  382,649,657  297,078,912

17 INTEREST BEARING LOANS & BORROWINGS     

 Group 2014 2014  2013 2013 

   Amounts   Amounts      Amounts   Amounts    

   repayable   repayable  2014  repayable   repayable  2013

   within 1 year   after 1 year  Total  within 1 year   after 1 year  Total

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

       

 Bank loans (Note 17.1)  1,208,700,589   931,175,988   2,139,876,577   1,301,045,694   289,927,721   1,590,973,415 

 Finance leases (Note 17.2)  254,743,079   304,725,310   559,468,389   225,021,700   407,820,550   632,842,250 

   1,463,443,668   1,235,901,298   2,699,344,966   1,526,067,394   697,748,271   2,223,815,665

       

 Company 2014 2014  2013 2013 

   Amounts   Amounts      Amounts   Amounts    

   repayable   repayable  2014  repayable   repayable  2013

   within 1 year   after 1 year  Total  within 1 year   after 1 year  Total

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

       

 Bank loans (Note 17.1.1)  -     653,474,500   653,474,500   -     -     -   

 Finance leases (Note 17.2.1)  2,113,808   5,873,151   7,986,959   1,757,822   8,513,611   10,271,433 

   2,113,808   659,347,651   661,461,459   1,757,822   8,513,611   10,271,433

17.1 Bank loans - Group    Impact of

  As at  New loans     exchange rate   As at 

  01.04.2013 obtained  Repayment on conversion  31.03.2014

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

       

Seylan Bank PLC  6,857,047   -     (6,857,047)  -     -   

 Hatton National Bank PLC  73,750,000   64,635,000   (36,070,000)  -     102,315,000 

 Development Finance Corporation Ceylon PLC  104,156,540   145,800,471   (217,408,477)  -     32,548,534 

 Merchant Credit Bank of Sri Lanka Limited  14,641,835   -     (14,641,835)  -     -   

 People’s Bank  1,169,124,317   3,220,556,765   (3,344,428,791)  -     1,045,252,291 

 People’s Leasing & Finance PLC  6,001,972   -     (2,630,706)  -     3,371,266 

 Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC  26,298,771   68,298,494   (71,479,870)  -     23,117,395 

 Union Bank of Colombo PLC  34,869,338   -     (28,083,584)  -     6,785,754 

 Bank of Ceylon  29,189,985   173,638,879   (106,096,671)  -     96,732,193 

 National Development Bank PLC  75,820,000   115,189,967   (72,467,720)  -     118,542,247 

 LB Finance PLC  50,263,610   252,215,497   (254,551,710)  -     47,927,397 

 Nations Trust Bank PLC  -     9,810,000  -  -     9,810,000 

 CIMB Bank Malaysia  -     664,597,000   -     (11,122,500)  653,474,500 

  1,590,973,415  4,714,742,072   (4,154,716,411) (11,122,500)  2,139,876,577 

As at 31 March
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17.1.1 Bank loans - Company         Impact of

  As at  New loans     exchange rate   As at 

  01.04.2013 obtained  Repayment on conversion  31.03.2014

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

      

 CIMB Bank- Malaysia -     664,597,000   -     (11,122,500)  653,474,500 

   -     664,597,000   -     (11,122,500)  653,474,500 

      

 

17.2 Finance leases - Group As at  New leases  Repayment  As at 

  01.04.2013 obtained   31.03.2014

  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

      

People’s Leasing & Finance PLC  141,112,499   11,171,232   (56,901,612)  95,382,119 

 Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC  298,033   -     (408,408) (110,375)

 Hatton National Bank PLC  160,194,545   60,111,389   (66,450,916)  153,855,018 

 Sampath Leasing & Factoring Limited  32,122,162   -     (11,901,067)  20,221,095 

 Bank of Ceylon  17,570,083   -     (6,772,241)  10,797,842 

 Seylan Bank PLC  68,739,957   -     (49,742,010)  18,997,947 

 Development Finance Corporation Ceylon PLC  185,612,364   -     (68,049,554)  117,562,810 

 Central Finance Company PLC  37,484,579   -     (11,963,876)  25,520,703 

 Pan Asia Bank PLC  23,458,078   52,326,551   (17,281,333)  58,503,296 

 Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka PLC  6,911,756   3,780,320   (6,452,658)  4,239,418 

 Mercantile Investment & Finance PLC  8,177,057   102,864,578   (17,026,815)  94,014,820 

 LB Finance PLC  66,854,508   -     (19,101,288)  47,753,220 

 People’s Merchant Finance PLC  34,234,967   6,288,720   (10,426,211)  30,097,476 

 Gross liability  782,770,588   236,542,789   (342,477,990)  676,835,389 

 Finance charges allocated to future period  (149,928,338)  (64,103,630)  96,664,968  (117,367,000)

 Net liability  632,842,250   172,439,159   (245,813,021)    559,468,389

      

 

17.2.1 Finance leases - Company As at  New leases   Repayment  As at 

  01.04.2013 obtained   31.03.2014

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

      

People’s Leasing & Finance PLC  6,814,681   -     (1,839,420)  4,975,261 

 Mercantile Investment & Finance PLC  8,177,057   -     (2,511,637)  5,665,420 

 Gross liability  14,991,738   -     (4,351,057)  10,640,681 

 Finance charges allocated to future period  (4,720,305)  -     2,066,583  (2,653,722)

 Net liability  10,271,433   -   (2,284,474)   7,986,959

17.3 Details of assets which were pledged against above bank facilities are disclosed in note 31.  

As at 31 March
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18 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITY Group

  2014 2013

   Rs. Rs.

 Long Term loans

 Loan from Mr. V.R.J.Edirisinghe 2,300,000 2,300,000 

   2,300,000 2,300,000 

 * This loan is not secured and terms of repayments are not agreed as at the reporting date, Further interest has been paid on

  market rate (16%).

19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  Group

  2014 2013

  Rs. Rs. 

 Balance at the beginning of the year 91,125,460   49,031,644 

 Amount origination/ (reversal) of temporary differences   

  - Recognised in profit or loss 5,870,935   41,911,958 

  - Recognised in other comprehensive income  (515,265)  181,858 

 Balance as at end of the year  96,481,130   91,125,460

 

19.1 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

 2014 2013

   Temporary Deferred Temporary Deferred 

  difference tax difference tax

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Deferred tax liability

 Property, plant and equipment  898,142,533   122,747,943   755,420,973   112,345,545  

 Deferred tax asset

 Retirement benefit obligation 47,870,416   (3,959,783)  49,693,583 (4,911,519)

 Tax losses 187,282,399   (22,307,030)  135,904,714  (16,308,566)

   1,133,295,348   96,481,130   941,019,270   91,125,460 

19.2 Movement in temporary differences during the year 
     

   Recognised  Recognised  

   As at in total As at in total As at 

   01 April comprehensive 31 March comprehensive 31 March 

   2012 income 2013 income 2014 

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Property, plant and equipment  71,267,297   41,078,248   112,345,545   10,402,398   122,747,943 

 Retirement benefit obligation  (2,163,587)  (2,747,932)  (4,911,519)  985,724 (3,959,783)

 Tax losses  (20,072,066)  3,763,500   (16,308,566)  (6,032,452) (22,307,030)

   49,031,644   42,093,816   91,125,460   5,355,670   96,481,130

As at 31 March
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19.3 Unrecognised deferred tax assets   

 Deferred tax asset of Rs. 31,683,829/- of Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd and Rs. 37,382,276/- of MTD Walkers PLC   

(“Company”) has not been recognised in the statement of financial position as the management is of the opinion that the reversal   

of the taxable asset will not be crystalised in the foreseeable future.         

 

20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

     (Restated)

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Retirement Benefits Obligation-Gratuity  

 At the beginning of the year 62,306,550 54,014,018 3,298,357 3,285,417 

 Current service cost 7,617,643 6,212,324 692,344 376,911 

 Interest cost 6,485,059 6,117,951 395,803 394,250 

 Benefits paid (7,404,514) (1,807,445) - -   

 Actuarial (gains)/losses (8,400,559) (2,230,298) (949,940) (758,221)

 Retirement benefit obligations of companies acquired during the year 320,550 - - -   

 At the end of the year 60,924,729 62,306,550 3,436,564 3,298,357 

 20.1 Expense recognised in profit or loss

 Current service cost  7,617,643   6,212,324   692,344   376,911 

 Interest cost  6,485,059   6,117,951   395,803   394,250 

   14,102,702   12,330,275   1,088,147   771,161

 20.2 Actuarial gains and losses recognised directly in OCI

 Recognized during the period  (8,400,559)  (2,230,298)  (949,940) (758,221)

   (8,400,559)  (2,230,298)  (949,940) (758,221)

 LKAS 19 (Revised) - ‘Employee Benefits’ - requires the use of actuarial techniques to make a reliable estimate of the amount of 

employee benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods and discount that benefit using 

the Projected Unit Credit Method in order to determine the present value of the employee benefit obligation and the current service 

cost. This requires an entity to determine how much benefit is attributable to the current and prior periods and to make estimates 

about demographic variables and financial variables that will influence the cost of the benefit.

 Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

 The principal assumptions used are as follows :  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.  

 Discount rate  11% 11% 11% -   

 Future salary increases  5% - 10% 10% 5% -   

 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on a 67/70 mortality table, issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London.

 The average life expectancy of an individual retiring at age 55.

 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

 20.3 Sensitivity of assumptions used

 Values appearing in the financial statements are very sensitive to the financial and non-financial assumption used.

 A sensitivity analysis was carried out as follows: 

As at 31 March

NOTES TO THE
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 A one percentage point change in the discount rate Group Company

  2014 2014 

   +1% -1% +1% -1%

   Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 The present value of defined benefit obligation  58,578,778 62,651,721 3,310,380 3,578,657 

 A one percentage point change in the salary escalation rate Group Company

  2014 2014 

   +1% -1% +1% -1%

   Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 The present value of defined benefit obligation  62,757,782 58,457,565 3,590,872 3,296,872 

21 TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   (Restated)

   Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

 Trade creditors   1,566,685,616   923,834,106   -     -   

 Mobilization advance   2,294,362,716   1,227,269,253   -     -   

 Retention payable  69,710,976   29,931,123   -     -   

 Sundry creditors including accrued expenses  543,194,940   344,433,070   19,317,577   39,916,246 

 Deposits and advances  8,209,655   17,246,945   -     -   

   4,482,163,903   2,542,714,497   19,317,577   39,916,246

22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

   

 Other taxes payable  21,352,622   37,184,555   522,000   522,000 

 VAT payable  19,775,107   128,504,739   -     -   

 Provision for surcharge of EPF  5,759,188   15,719   -     -   

   46,886,917   165,705,013   522,000   522,000

 

     

23 AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED PARTIES Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

    (Restated)    (Restated) 

  Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 Current account balances 

 CML-MTD Construction (Pvt.) Ltd  -     -     -     9,689,880 

 MTD Capital Bhd  221,559,154   355,422,916   -     160,190,365 

 Loan payable * 

 MTD Capital Bhd  922,097,320   693,202,816   922,097,320   693,202,815 

   1,143,656,474   1,048,625,732   922,097,320   863,083,060 

 Key management personal  11,887,870   16,367,159   -     -   

   1,155,544,344   1,064,992,891   922,097,320   863,083,060 
     

 * This loan is not secured and terms of repayments are not agreed as at the reporting date.

As at 31 March
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25 OTHER INCOME Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 

 Insurance claim  2,336,044   7,282,592   -     -   

 Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment  22,536,806   3,272,822   -     -   

 Creditors & customers advances written back  1,656,776   203,219   1,189,451   -   

 Foreign exchange gain  2,497,984   -     -     -   

 Sundry income  43,710,460   22,593,076   -     -   

 Sludge income  2,695,500   6,439,940   -     -   

 Reversal of over provision in respect of doubtful debtors  -     31,179,854   -     -   

   75,433,570   70,971,503   1,189,451   -   

26 FINANCE COST        

 Interest  expense on loans & borrowings   370,759,472   264,729,731   19,215,662   7,076,336 

 Interest expense on overdrafts  195,725,212   135,583,306   3,275,723   3,298,629 

 Finance charges on lease liabilities  96,251,043   100,762,902   1,712,595   1,282,324 

 Default interest on leases & loans  10,779,507   10,000,621   237,776   382,246 

 Foreign exchange loss  1,055,917   2,754,682   -     -   

 Exchange loss on financial asset  29,726,591   -     -     -   

 Net loss on financial asset at fair value through profit & loss   -     -     2,390   2,390 

 Interest on MTD Capital BHD loans  37,447,476   29,403,811   32,615,960   24,458,968 

   741,745,218   543,235,053   57,060,106   36,500,893

     

27 FINANCE INCOME    

 Interest income on fixed deposits  121,159,259   86,744,637   13,326,292   7,710,578 

 Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  86,598   179,467   -   

 Dividend income  1,520,569   330,215   11,683,431   -   

 Foreign exchange gain  11,122,500   -     11,122,500   -   

 Interest income on loans to related parties  -     -     68,529,504   52,731,321 

  133,888,926   87,254,319   104,661,727   60,441,899

     

28 PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 Stated after charging /( crediting) the followings       

 Auditors’ remuneration 

  - Statutory audit fees  3,732,994   3,545,887   606,936   878,442 

  - Audit related fees  2,366,197   1,642,937   577,376   -   

  - Non-audit fees  560,847   295,417   -     -   

 Directors fees  36,812,031   23,761,342   11,825,768   5,000,000 

 Depreciation  539,605,268   466,761,022   7,554,551   2,517,029 

 Employee benefits including the following 

  - Defined contribution plan costs - EPF & ETF   72,324,988   51,354,586   5,330,025   3,109,103 

  - Other staff costs   703,748,283   634,364,786   48,808,321   20,823,351 

 Bonus  23,032,440   8,645,564   2,528,306   1,592,582 

 Donation  1,746,442   1,894,417   5,500   -   

 EPF/ETF surcharge  4,828,194   1,047,631   -     -   

 Bank charges  2,263,815   3,520,129   -     -   

 Professional fees  1,321,250   -     -     -   

 Advertising  3,190,028   2,315,700   2,127,440   1,054,136 

 Business promotion  19,131,551   8,541,297   -     -   

 Impairment for debtors  88,413,374   8,418,539   -     -   

 Bad debt written off  23,317,078   53,068,547   -     -   

Year ended 31 March  
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29 TAX EXPENSES Group Company

    2014 2013 2014 2013

    Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

  The major components of income tax expense for the year

  ended 31 March are as follows : 

 Income statement 

 Current income tax 

 Current income tax expense on ordinary activities for the year (29.1)     123,751,674   78,768,673   14,897,755   10,426,170 

 Under/(over) provision of current taxes in respect of prior years  -     (6,543,637)  -     -   

   123,751,674   72,225,036   14,897,755   10,426,170 

 Deferred income tax  

 Deferred taxation charge/(reversal) (Note 19)  5,870,935   41,911,958   -     -   

 Income tax expense reported in the income statement  129,622,609   114,136,994   14,897,755   10,426,170

     

29.1 A reconciliation between tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rates are as follows:  

  

 Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

     

 Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax  730,418,809   616,733,737   (28,793,167)  3,689,954 

 Less: Income not form a part of trade or business  (234,795,008)  (289,119,442)  (81,855,796) (56,670,738)

 Add: Aggregate disallowable items  939,148,902   790,604,202   31,004,553   12,484,013 

 Less: Aggregate allowable items  (1,604,502,478)  (1,068,542,191)  (6,061,107) (3,249,605)

 Total tax loss of subsidiaries  745,721,432   241,222,209   -     -   

 Taxable profit/(loss) from business  575,991,657   290,898,515   (85,705,517) (43,746,376)

 Taxable other income  231,868,718   164,785,084   81,855,796   60,441,899 

 Tax losses (limited to 35 % of the statutory income)  (39,936,654)  (33,752,270)  (28,649,529) (21,154,665)

   767,923,721   421,931,329   53,206,267   39,287,234 

 Less: Deduction under sec.32 

 Royalty expenses  (18,688,734)  (10,948,976)  -     -   

 Ground rent  (10,213,714)  (6,962,642)  -     -   

 Assessable income  739,021,273   404,019,711   53,206,267   -   

 Less: Qualifying payments - sec.34  -     (2,050,912)  -  (2,050,912)

 Taxable profit  739,021,273   401,968,799   53,206,267   37,236,322 

 

 Taxable Income 

 of which, 

  - Taxable income at 10%  10,285,182   -     -     -   

  - Taxable income from construction at 12%  508,268,455   221,924,621   -     -   

  - Taxable income other than construction at 28%  220,467,636   180,044,178   53,206,267   37,236,322 

   739,021,273   401,968,799   53,206,267   37,236,322

 

Year ended 31 March  
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 Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   Rs. 

 Income tax provision for the year is made up of the following: 

  - Income tax at 10%  1,028,519   -     -     -   

  - Income tax at 12%  60,992,215   26,632,950   -     -   

  - Income tax at 28%  61,730,940   52,135,723   14,897,755   10,426,170 

 Current income tax expense  123,751,674   78,768,673   14,897,755   10,426,170 

 

 Donation made to public trust fund  

 Excess brought forward  -     2,050,912   -     2,050,912 

 Claimed for the year  -     (2,050,912)  -   (2,050,912)

 Excess carried forward to next Y/A  -     -     -     -   

 

 Tax losses brought forward  1,339,688,496   1,172,139,003   83,626,926   61,035,214 

 Tax losses for the year  760,681,192   201,301,763   85,705,517   43,746,376 

 Tax losses set off against taxable profit  (39,936,654)  (33,752,270)  (28,649,529) (21,154,665)

 Carried forward tax losses  2,060,433,034   1,339,688,496   140,682,914   83,626,925

30 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE     

30.1 Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders  by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.     

     

30.2 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings/(loss) per share computation.   

    

 Group Company

  2014 2013 2014 2013

   (Restated)  (Restated)

 Amounts used as numerator: Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 Net profit/(loss) for  the year attributable to the

  owners of the parent  479,662,407   447,576,866   (43,690,922) (6,736,216)

     

 Group Company 

  2014 2013 2014 2013

 Numbers of ordinary shares used as denominator:  Number   Number   Number   Number 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

  applicable to basic earnings per share  114,357,140   114,357,140   114,357,140   114,357,140 

 Basic earning/(loss) per share (Rs.)  4.19   3.91   (0.38)  (0.06)

     

30.3 There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year.   

 

Year ended 31 March  
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31 ASSETS PLEDGED

Lender Approved Facility Repayment terms Security Included under

2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

CML-MTD Construction Ltd

People's Bank 10.19 Mn 10.19 Mn 24 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2012

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 103.5 Mn 103.5 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from October 2012

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 9.07 Mn 9.07 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from October 2012

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 25.02 Mn 25.02 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from December 

2012

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 4.48 Mn 4.48 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from February 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 12.96 Mn 12.96 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 15.6 Mn 15.6 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 10.77 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from April 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 41.93 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 

2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 11.5 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 

2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 7.02 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 

2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 18.52 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 

2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

As at 31 March 2014

NOTES TO THE
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Lender Approved Facility Repayment terms Security Included under

2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

Seylan Bank 470.0 Mn 470.0 Mn Revolving facilities Fixed Deposits - Rs. 43.348 Mn

Cash Margin against 

guarantees Rs. 18.435 Mn

Vehicle Mortgage - 

Rs. 10.013 Mn

Machinery Mortgage -

Rs. 38.691 Mn

Property Mortgage -

Rs. 80.0 Mn

Other current 

financial assets

Other current 

financial assets

Property, Plant & 

equipment

Property, Plant & 

equipment

Property, Plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 2.852 Mn 2.877 Mn Revolving facilities Machinery & Vehicle 

Mortgage - Rs. 270.0 Mn

Cash Margin against 

guarantees Rs 185.0 Mn

Fixed Deposits against OD & Bill 

Discounting - Rs. 167.0 Mn

Property, Plant & 

equipment

Other current 

financial assets

Other current 

financial assets

National 

Development 

Bank PLC

240.684 

Mn

292.22 Mn Revolving facility Cash Margin against 

guarantees - Rs 40.486 Mn

Other current 

financial assets

DFCC Vardhana 

Bank

26.573 

Mn

- Revolving facility Cash Margin against 

guarantees - Rs 8.426 Mn

Other current 

financial assets

Hatton National 

Bank

90.0 Mn 90.0 Mn Revolving facility Fixed Deposit against OD-

Rs. 111.66 Mn

Fixed Deposit against general 

Facilities-Rs. 20.0 Mn

Other current 

financial assets

Other current 

financial assets

LB Finance 70.0 Mn 60.0 Mn Revolving facility Mortgage over machinery Property, Plant & 

equipment

Lanka Orix 

Factors Limited

35.0 Mn 35.0 Mn Revolving facility Mortgage over machinery Property, Plant & 

equipment

As at 31 March 2014
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31 ASSETS PLEDGED (Contd.)

Lender Approved Facility Repayment terms Security Included under

2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

CML-MTD Construction Ltd

Peoples Bank 52.47 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from December 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

Peoples Bank 5.4 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

Peoples Bank 4.76 Mn - 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

NDB Bank PLC 90.58 Mn 90.58 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from August 2012

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

LOLC PLC 15.0 Mn 15.0 Mn 48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from December 2010

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

Hatton National 

Bank PLC

50.0 Mn  -   36 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2013

 None -

Hatton National 

Bank PLC

12.35 Mn - 36 equal monthly installments 

commencing from November 2013

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

Hatton National 

Bank PLC

20.4 Mn  -   36 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2014

Mortgage over machinery Property, plant & 

equipment

Nations Trust 

Bank PLC

9.81 Mn  -   48 equal monthly installments 

commencing from March 2014

Mortgage over motor 

vehicle

Property, plant & 

equipment

Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd

People's Bank 5.0 Mn 5.0 Mn Revolving and renewed annually Primary mortgage 

over property at 

Siyambalape,Sapugaskanda

Property, plant & 

equipment

People's Bank 25.0 Mn 25.0 Mn 90 days Fixed Deposit of Rs. 40.0 

Mn of MTD Walkers PLC

Other Current 

Financial Assets 

included under MTD 

Walkers PLC

People's Bank 100.0 Mn 100.0 Mn Revolving and renewed annually Secondary mortgage over 

land at No18 and 18 A, St. 

Michael's Road, Colombo 3

Property plant & 

equipments included 

under Walker Sons 

and Company Limited

People's Bank 10.0 Mn 10.0 Mn 120 days Primary mortgage 

over property at 

Siyambalape,Sapugaskanda

Property, plant & 

equipment

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 March 2014
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Lender Approved Facility Repayment terms Security Included under

2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

People's Bank 32.4 Mn 32.4 Mn On demand Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 

18.8 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

Commercial Bank 

PLC

0.4 Mn 0.4 Mn Revolving and renewed 

annually

Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 

471,947/-

Other current financial 

assets

Bank of Ceylon 27.0 Mn 22.0 Mn Revolving and renewed 

annually

Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 

29.2 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

Bank of Ceylon 3.0 Mn 5.0 Mn On demand Fixed deposit  amounting to Rs. 

3.0 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

Bank of Ceylon 8.0 Mn  -   On demand Fixed deposit  amounting to Rs. 

2.0 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd

Peoples' Bank Rs. 15.0 

Mn

Rs. 15.0 

Mn

36 Monthly 

Installments

Primary Mortgage over land at 

No.18 and 18A, St. Michael's  

Road, Colombo 03 

Property, plant & equipment 

included under Walker Sons 

& Company Limited

Peoples' Bank Rs. 80.0 

Mn

Rs. 80.0 

Mn

48 Monthly 

Installments

Primary Mortgage over piling 

machine 

Property plant & equipment

Peoples' Bank Rs. 40.0 

Mn

Rs. 40.0 

Mn

120 - 360 days Primary Mortgage over land at 

No.18 and 18A, St. Michael's  

Road, Colombo 03 

Property, plant & equipment 

included under Walker Sons 

& Company Limited

Peoples' Bank Rs. 

86.04 

Mn

Rs. 86.04 

Mn

48 Monthly 

Installments

Mortgage over Plant & 

Machinery 

Property, plant & equipment

Peoples' Bank Rs. 8.0 

Mn

Rs. 8.0 

Mn

24 Monthly 

Installments

Primary Mortgage over land at 

No.18 and 18A, St. Michael's  

Road, Colombo 03 

Property, plant & equipment 

included under Walker Sons 

& Company Limited

DFCC Bank PLC Rs. 80.0 

Mn

Rs. 80.0 

Mn

60 Monthly 

Installments

Mortgage over Plant & 

Machinery 

Property, plant & equipment

Peoples' Bank Rs. 10.0 

Mn

Rs. 10.0 

Mn

 On demand Primary Mortgage over land at 

No.18 and 18A, St. Michael's  

Road, Colombo 03 

Property, plant & equipment 

included under Walker Sons 

& Company Limited

National 

Development 

Bank PLC

Rs. 70.0 

Mn

Rs. 70.0 

Mn

60 Monthly 

Installments

Mortgage over Plant & 

Machinery 

Property, plant & equipment

As at 31 March 2014
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31 ASSETS PLEDGED (Contd..)

Lender Approved Facility Repayment terms Security Included under

2014 2013

Rs. Rs.

Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd

Union Bank 

Colombo PLC

40.6 Mn. 40.6 Mn. 18 equal monthly 

installments of Rs. 

2,258,938 together 

with monthly interest 

commencing from  

April 2012

Property including plant & 

machinery and leasehold 

buildings.

Finance lease receivables

Union Bank 

Colombo PLC

25.0 Mn. 25.0 Mn. On demand Primary floating mortgage over 

lease hold land and buildings

Finance lease receivables

Bank of Ceylon 190.0 Mn 175.0 Mn On demand Fixed deposit  amounting to 

Rs.214.6 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

MTD Walkers PLC

People's Bank 4.5 Mn  -   Revolving and renewed 

annually

Fixed deposit  amounting to 

6.0 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

People's Bank  -    13.5 Mn Revolving and renewed 

annually

Fixed deposit  amounting to 

15.0 Mn

Other current financial 

assets

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES 

32.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments  

 The Company and Group do not have significant capital commitments as at the reporting date. 

 

32.2 Contingencies 

a) Lawsuits 

 The Group is the plaintiff/defendant in lawsuits filed in respect of the followings: 

 

 Company Type of Cases Name/Institution Case No.

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd Termination of contract Mr. R.M. Dissanayaka LT/01/Add/97/2010

  of an employee

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd Gelioya  Property -Kandy Mr. B.K.A.P. Balasuriya DLM/2088/08

 CML-MTD Construction Ltd Breach of contract  Mr. Upul Premajayantha 13596/M

 Walkers Piling (Pvt.) Ltd Transportation of soil Police Station- Kaduwela 97456 (MC Fort)

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd Director compensation Mr. M N M Masood WP/HCCA/371/2003 (F)

 Walker Sons & Company Ltd Private Provident Fund &  

  Gratuity of Former Directors Former Directors CA/WRIT/280/2012

   Mr.L.J.K Hettiarachchi 

   Mr.H G Fonseka 

   Mr.H.A.V .Soyza 

 Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd Ownership of Land -Cemetery Mr. Hettiarachchige Don Amaradasa 592/L (Gampaha)

As at 31 March 2014
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 Although, there can be no assurance , the directors believe, based on the information currently available, that the ultimate resolution of 

such legal procedures would not likely have a material adverse affect on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the 

company. Accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in the financial statements, nor has any liability been determined by 

the ongoing legal cases, as at 31 March 2014. 

 

b)  Bank and Corporate Guarantees 

 The Group had given bank & corporate guarantees to its client where contracts are in progress. Based on the information currently 

available, the directors do not expect a liability to arise from these Guarantees. 

  

  2014 2013

 Bank Guarantees Rs. Rs.

 People’s Bank  1,312,927,133   1,431,102,671 

 Seylan Bank PLC  63,331,291   78,514,105 

 Nations Trust Bank PLC  31,520,000   57,800,000 

 DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC  85,123,457   -   

 Hatton National Bank PLC  1,578,351,452   436,179,045 

 National Development Bank PLC  1,507,289,384   533,782,908 

 Bank of Ceylon  336,093,732   263,520,000 

 Union Bank PLC  100,000,000   100,000,000 

   5,014,636,449   2,900,898,729 

 Corporate Guarantees 

 MTD Walkers PLC  3,724,182,000   1,551,430,000 

   3,724,182,000   1,551,430,000

c) Value Added Tax 

  Due to the inherent factors of the construction industry the group pays Value Added Tax on a cash basis, (ie, as and when cash is 

received an invoices settled by the Road Development Authority (RDA) and Provincial Road Development Authority (PRDA) .The group 

has not received clearance for such an arrangement from the Department of Revenue of Sri Lanka, and no provision has been made in 

the financial statements for potential assessments in this regard.

  

d) Employees’ Provident Fund & Employees’ Trust Fund 

  Where ever foreseeable the company has made adequate provision for unpaid EPF & ETF liabilities as at the financial year end for 

all group companies. As per the information currently available with the company, no evidence has immerged for us to believe that 

further provisions are necessary for additional surcharge/levies for the non-payment of such dues as the management is of the view 

that provisioning has been made for any future liability that may crystallize on the same. 

As at 31 March 2014
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33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

 There have been no material events occurred after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure. 

 

34 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT  

 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been restated in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 8 - Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, to reflect the following: 

 

  Group   Company 

   2013   2013 

   Rs.   Rs. 

 Income statements 

 Increase/ (decrease) in administrative expenses  3,000,000   3,771,161 

 Increase/ (decrease) in basic earnings/ (loss) per share (0.03) (0.03)

 Statements of financial position  

 Increase/ (decrease) in amount due from related parties  4,084,123   372,373 

 Increase/ (decrease) in retirement benefit obligations  -     3,298,357 

 Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables  22,084,123   18,372,373 

 

 Statements of changes in equity  

 Increase/ (decrease) in retained earnings  (18,000,000) (21,298,357)

35 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY 

 MTD Walkers PLC acquired 79.74% equity stake in  Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd, which engages in manufacturing of spiral 

wound ductwork and associated fittings for exports, on 31 March 2014. The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were 

as follows. 

 

  Fair Value as at

  31.03. 2014

  Rs.

 Assets 

 Property, plant & equipment  33,437,765 

 Investments  2,818,481 

 Inventories  9,335,058 

 Income tax receivable  50,307 

 Trade and other receivables  2,150,885 

 Amount due from related parties  393,223 

 Cash and cash equivalents  50,625 

   48,236,344 

As at 31 March 2014
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 Liabilities   

 Retirement benefit obligation  320,550 

 Trade and other payables  15,515,315 

 Amount due to related parties  42,440,697 

 Bank overdraft  2,104,139 

   60,380,701 

 Total identifiable net assets at fair value   

 (12,144,356)

 Non controlling Interest measured at fair value  2,560,878 

 Goodwill arising on acquisition  62,728,428 

 Purchase consideration  53,144,950 

 Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired   2,053,514 

 Net cash out flow on acquisition of subsidiary  55,198,464 

 

35.1 During the year Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd, a subsidiary of MTD Walkers PLC acquired the controlling interest in 

Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd. 

 

36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

36.1 Transaction with the Related Entities

 

  Parent Company Subsidiary Companies Other Companies Total

  2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

 Nature of Transaction Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 

 As at 1 April   1,048,625,732   321,939,164   765,753,663   322,599,009   3,322,344   2,676,661   1,817,701,739   647,214,834 

 Fund received/(transferred)  -     -     -     -     (1,158,300)  -     (1,158,300)  -   

 Reimbursement of expenses  56,774,413   27,807,195   31,855,448   41,785,566   4,038,694   645,683   93,072,982   70,238,444 

 Interest paid  37,447,476   30,135,525   -     -     -     -     37,851,902   30,135,525 

 Interest received  -     -     68,529,504   52,731,321   -     -     68,529,504   52,731,321 

 Loan received  -     668,743,848   -     -     -     -     -     668,743,848 

 Loan given  -     -     626,488,283   356,675,067   -     -     626,488,283   356,675,067 

 Settlement of loans   -     -     (106,000,000)  (14,726,500)  -     -     (106,000,000)  (14,726,500)

 Lease rental paid  -     -     348,852   648,577   -     -     348,852   648,577 

 Temporary advance received  -     -     (40,246,043)  -     -     -     (40,246,043)  -   

 Gratuity paid  -     -     -     6,040,623   -     -     -     6,040,623 

 PLC Expenses reimbursed by

  subsidiaries  -     -     (8,642,485)  -     -     -     (8,642,485)  -   

 Funds given for statutory payments  -     -     29,368,143   -     -     -     29,368,143   -  

  Exchange loss  808,853   -     -     -     -     -     808,853   -   

 As at 31 March   1,143,656,474   1,048,625,732   1,367,455,365   765,753,663   6,202,738   3,322,344   2,517,314,577   1,817,701,739 

 

 Included in  

 Amount due from related party  -     -     1,367,455,365   775,443,543   6,202,738   3,322,344 1,373,658,103 778,765,887

 Amount due to related party  1,143,656,474   1,048,625,732   -     9,689,880   -     -     1,143,656,474   1,038,935,852 

   1,143,656,474   1,048,625,732   1,367,455,365   765,753,663   6,202,738   3,322,344   2,517,314,577   1,817,701,739

 

 Parent Company : MTD Capital Bhd 

 Subsidiaries :  Walker Sons & Company Ltd., Walker Sons & Company Engineers (Pvt.) Ltd, MTD Walkers Infracon Ltd, Walkers  

  Piling (Pvt.) Ltd, MTD Walkers Projects Ltd, CML MTD Construction Ltd, Special Projects Company (Pvt.) Ltd,  

  Colombo Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd, Northern Power Company (Pvt.) Ltd and Western Airducts Lanka (Pvt Ltd. 

 Other Companies : Wincon Development Ceylon (Pvt.) Ltd. 

As at 31 March 2014
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36.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company 

  The Key Management Personnel of the Company are the members of its Board of Directors and that of its parent. 

 Group Company

a) Key Management Personnel Compensation  2014 2013 2014 2013

  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 

 Short-term Employee Benefits  36,812,031   23,761,342 11,825,768  5,000,000

  36,812,031   23,761,342  11,825,768  5,000,000

 

36.3 There are no related party transactions other than those disclosed in Notes 11, 23 & 36 to the financial statements. 

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

  The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise short and long term borrowings, trade and other payables, and trade and financial 

guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to 

support its operations. The Group has loan and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that 

arrive directly from its operations. The Group also holds fair value through profit or loss investments.  

   

 The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  

 The Board of Directors and Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. Reviews and agrees policies for 

managing each of these risks, which are summarized below. 

  

 Market risk 

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: finance rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as 

equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include: loans and borrowings, deposits and fair value through profit or 

loss investments.  

 

 Finance rate risk 

  Finance rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations 

with floating rates. The rates applied to Groups short term borrowings are fixed periodically. The Group manages its finance rate 

risk by aggressively negotiating rates for short and long term borrowings and having a portfolio of facilities from various financial 

institutions which gives avenues use the facility based on competitive rates. 

 

 Foreign currency risk 

  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s 

operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the 

Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.  

 

  The Group manages its foreign currency risk by having a balance of receivables and payables which enables a natural hedging & 

through leading and lagging of transactions.   

Year ended 31 March 2014 
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 Equity price risk 

  The Group’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market-price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of 

the investment securities. 

  

 At the reporting date, the Group exposure to quoted equity securities at market value was Rupees 2,998,696/-. A 3 % increase in 

comparison to the previous financial year where the market value stood at Rupees 2,912,098/-. 

 

  At the reporting date, the Group exposure to non-quoted equity securities at carrying value was Rupees 260,370/-. This is the exact 

carrying value which was held in FYE 2013 for Rupees 260,370/-. 

  

 Credit risk 

 Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 

financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing 

activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.   

 

 

 

 Trade and other receivable 

 Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to 

customer credit risk management. 

 

 Liquidity risk 

 The Group manages liquidity risk exposure through effective working capital management. The Group also has planning guidelines in 

place to ensure that the short term and medium term liquidity is managed at acceptable levels. 

 

 The table below summaries the maturity profile of groups financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

 

 Year ended 31 March 2014 Less than 1 year Above 1 year Total

  Rs. Rs. Rs.

 

 Bank financing  1,208,700,589   931,175,988   2,139,876,577 

 Finance leases   254,743,079   304,725,310   559,468,389 

 Trade and other payables  4,529,050,819   -     4,529,050,819

Year ended 31 March 2014 
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We are mindful of 
the need to develop 
a business model 
which will ensure 
sustainability in our 
operational activities, 
to benefit society, the 
environment and those 
who work with our 
Group, now and in the 
long-term.

Constructing
Success

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Northern Power Plant - Jaffna
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INFORMATION TO 
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Share information at a glance

Total shares issued

 as at 31st March 2014 114,357,140

Public shareholding

 as at 31st March 2014 9.2 percent

Stock symbol KAPI.N000

Market Performance

During the period under review All Share 

Price Index (ASPI) increased marginally 

by approximately 4.1 percent over the 

previous financial year with the index 

closing at 5968.3, whilst Standard & Poor’s 

Sri Lanka 20 Index (S&P SL20) closed at 

3279.9, representing an overall decrease of 

approximately 0.4 percent in comparison to 

FYE 2013. 

The market witnessed volatility over the 12 

month period ended 31st March 2014, which 

was primarily affected by the relatively 

higher yield on fixed income securities, 

exchange rate volatility and tighter liquidity 

conditions. 

However, positive investor confidence was 

evident since the beginning of 2014 which 

can be attributable to the gradual decline of 

policy rates and secondary market interest 

rates. Further, foreign investors remained 

net buyers in the CSE during the year with 

net foreign inflow of approximately Rs. 10.9 

billion. 

Share Performance of MTD 
Walkers PLC

During the financial year under review, MTD 

Walkers PLC share price ranged from Rs. 

22.5 to Rs. 35.6, closing at Rs. 30.1 as at 

31st March 2014. Thus, the share price of 

MTD Walkers PLC corresponded to a 22.9 

percent increase mainly as a result of the 

Company’s enhanced financial performance.

The increase in share price resulted a Rs. 

640.4 million increase in the  market capital 

of MTD Walkers PLC.  

Price Earnings Ratio and Earnings 
per Share

MTD Walkers PLC’s shares were trading at a 

price earnings ratio (PER) of 6.8X as at 31st 

March 2014 in comparison to 6.2X recorded 

at the end of the previous financial year. The 

increase was primarily underpinned by the 

Company’s growth in revenue and overall 

profitability.

The earnings per Share (EPS) for the period 

increased by approximately 12.2 percent, 

which is attributable to the surge in the 

earnings.   

Price to Book and Net Asset Value

Price to Book Value of MTD Walkers PLC 

increased from 0.7 to 0.8 indicating that the 

returns and revenue growth have improved 

market sentiments. 

Further, the Net Assets per Share 

attributable to the equity holders of the 

company increased by approximately 10.2 

percent to Rs. 41.3 during the period under 

review from Rs.37.5. 
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31st March 2014 31st March 2013

Name of the shareholder No of shares % No of shares %

1 MTD Capital Bhd 103,808,720 90.78 103,808,720 90.78

2 Bank of Ceylon No. 1 Account 815,205 0.71 537,600 0.47

3 Waldok Mackenzie Limited - Hi - Line Trading (Private) 

Limited 

548,588 0.48 254,331 0.22

4 Mr Hans Anton Van Starrex 407,693 0.36

5 Standard Chartered Bank Singapore - HL Bank 

Singapore

403,200 0.35 403,200 0.35

6 Mrs Sushila Padmini Gunasekera 362,241 0.32

7 Mr Hamish Winston Mcdonald Woodward 314,000 0.27 314,000 0.27

8 Mr Wanniachchige Senarath Rohitha Fonseka 307,094 0.27

9 Mr Mohamed Subair Fouzal Haqque 162,199 0.14 68,836 0.06

10 Mrs Lorraine Estelle Marlene Yaseen 155,575 0.14

11 Mr Abdul Rahman Mohamed Iqbal 149,800 0.13 155,000 0.14

12 Mrs Palamandadige Anoma Sandhayani Amaratunga 146,080 0.13 146,080 0.13

13 Mr Dayananda Ratnayake 111,000 0.10 111,000 0.10

14 Mr Don Manuwelge Anil Alwis 106,000 0.09 106,000 0.09

15 Waldok Mackenzie Limited - Hi-Line Towers (Private) 

Limited

103,000 0.09 85,000 0.07

16 Mr Anton Sunil Lakshmanasingham 95,900 0.08 95,900 0.08

17 Hi Line Towers (Private) Limited 89,030 0.08

18 Waldok Mackenzie Limited - Hi-Line Towers (Private) 

Limited

85,000 0.07

19 Deutsche Bank AG - Namal Growth Fund 81,423 0.07

20 Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC - Mr Ravindra Erle 

Rambukwella

80,000 0.07 80,000 0.07

Others 6,025,392 5.27

Total shares in issue 114,357,140 100

List of 20 major shareholders based on the number of shares held as at 31st March 2014
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Analysis report of shareholders as at 31st March 2014

Analysis report of shareholders as at 31st March 2014

Public holding as at 31st March 2014

31st March 2014 31st March 2013

No. of 

shareholders

% Total 

shareholding

% No. of 

shareholders

% Total 

shareholding

%

Individual 2,075 94.2 7,375,608 6.5 2,379 94.8 8,247,745 7.2 

Institutional 128 5.8 106,981,532 93.6 130 5.2 106,109,395 92.8 

Total 2,203 100.0 114,357,140 100.0 2,509         100.0 114,357,140  100.0

Resident 2,176 98.8 9,665,987 8.5 2,484 99.0 9,719,148 8.5 

Non-resident 27 1.2 104,691,153 91.5 25 1.0 104,637,992 91.5 

Total 2,203 100.0 114,357,140 100.0 2,509         100.0 114,357,140 100 .0

31st March 2014 31st March 2013

No. of shares held No. of 

shareholders

% Total 

shareholding

% No. of 

shareholders

% Total 

shareholding

%

1 – 1,000 1,429 64.9 505,966 0.4 1,585 63.2 602,101 0.5 

1,001 – 10,000 628 28.5 2,302,458 2.0 768 30.6 2,723,143 2.4 

10,001 – 1,000,000 131 5.9 3,648,321 3.2 143 5.7 3,844,709 3.4 

100,001 – 1,000,000 14 0.6 4,091,675 3.6 11 0.4 2,371,617 2.1 

1,000,001 & over 1 0.0 103,808,720 90.8 2 0.1 104,815,570 91.7 

Total 2,203 100.0 114,357,140 100 .0 2,509 100.0 114,357,140 100.0 

No. of shares %

Public Holding 10,548,420 9.2

INFORMATION TO 
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

MTD monthly movement of share price

Rs. million

A
p
r-

1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
n
-1

3

Ju
l-

1
3

A
u
g
-1

3

S
ep

-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

N
o
v-

1
3

D
ec

-1
3

Ja
n
-1

4

Fe
b
-1

4

M
ar

-1
4

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

High             Low            3per.mov.avg



153

M
T
D

 W
alkers P

L
C

Share trading for the 12 months ended 31st March 2014

Investor information

Market value of a share for the 12 months ended 31st March 2014

Market price per share 2014 (Rs.) 2013 (Rs.)

Highest 36.6 39.9

Lowest 22.0 13.7

Closing 30.1 24.5

2014 2013

Number of transactions 10,302 10,624

Number of shares traded 12,673,014 11,059,155

Value of shares traded (Rs.) 375,431,839.0 302,621,049.0
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RELATED PARTY INTEREST
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2014

MTD 

Walkers 

PLC

Walker 

Sons & 

Company 

Limited

Walker 

Sons & 

Company 

Engineers 

(Private) 

Limited

MTD 

Walkers 

Infracon 

Limited

MTD 

Walkers 

Projects 

Limited

Walkers 

Piling 

(Private) 

Limited

Northern 

Power 

Company 

(Private) 

Limited

CML - MTD 

Construction 

Limited

Colombo 

Engineering

(Private) 

Limited

Dato’ Azmil Khalili Bin 

Dato’ Khalid
x - - - - - x x -

Keith George Cowling x - - - - x x x -

Leong Yow Lee x - - - - - - - -

Albert Rasakantha 

Rasiah
x x x x x - - - -

Jehan Prasanna 

Amaratunga
x - - x x - x x x

Niranjan Joseph de 

Silva Deva-Aditya
x - - - - - - - -

Hewawasamge 

Ravindranath Srilal 

Wijeratne

x - - x - - - - x

X  - Board director but no related party interests

-   - Neither board director nor related party interests

Board restructuring not effected during the respective financial year. 
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DECADE AT A
GLANCE

  31st March 31st March   31st March   31st March   31st March   31st March   31st March   31st March 31st March 31st March

Rs. 000’ 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Operating results          

Group revenue  10,092,371   7,389,640   5,853,313   2,769,685   1,933,584   1,476,056   154,475   162,519   151,616   124,686 

EBIT  1,338,275   1,072,714   675,214   (23,796)  119,197   93,923   9,022   (27,891)  (945)  (14,946)

Net finance cost  (607,856)  (455,981)  (253,840)  (173,989)  (164,814)  (97,421)  (11,872)  (8,781)  (8,015)  (9,272)

Profit before tax  730,419   616,734   421,375   (197,785)  (20,672)  109,552   43,916   (36,672)  (8,960)  (24,218)

Tax expenses  (129,623)  (114,137)  (22,638)  (39,595)  (43,835)  (27,315)  (4,488)  (168)  (464)  (237)

Profit for the year  600,796   502,597   398,737   (237,380)  (64,507)  82,237   39,428   (36,840)  (9,424)  (24,455)

          

Capital employed          

Stated capital  3,659,428   3,659,428   3,659,428   3,659,428   74,332   74,332   74,332   74,332   57,179   57,179 

Other reserves  123,646   123,646   123,646   123,646   123,646   164,174   193,650   73,650   90,803   91,198 

Retained earnings  936,225   500,678   66,099   (266,448)  (60,319)  35,014   (48,645)  (86,388)  (49,634)  (41,848)

  4,719,299   4,283,752   3,849,173   3,516,626   137,659   273,520   219,337   61,594   98,348   106,529 

Non-controlling interest  382,650   297,079   242,013   179,309   188,864   327,188   594   322   408   420 

Total equity  5,101,949   4,580,831   4,091,186   3,695,935   326,523   600,708   219,931   61,916   98,756   106,949 

Total debt  4,603,244   3,178,019   2,853,145   1,224,132   788,469   690,960   96,654   37,616   41,362   50,952 

  9,705,193   7,758,850   6,944,331   4,920,067   1,114,992   1,291,668   316,585   99,532   140,118   157,901 

          

Assets employed          

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)  2,604,047   2,450,630   2,305,894   1,610,488   1,047,952   1,152,759   549,341   184,746   188,146   195,914 

Non current assets other than PP&E  3,294,274   2,774,552   2,608,787   2,499,826   378   292   378   205   223   706 

Current assets  9,752,516   6,536,583   4,423,141   2,686,608   1,654,064   1,443,584   278,153   110,812   104,355   99,115 

Liabilities net of debt  10,544,285   7,177,754   5,243,783   3,099,762   2,375,083   1,304,968   511,288   196,231   152,606   137,834 

  5,106,552   4,584,011   4,094,039   3,697,160   327,311   1,291,667   316,584   99,532   140,118   157,901 

          

Cashflow          

Net cashflow from operating activities  (52,396)  859,861   (433,584)  185,190   (104,363)  (117,698)  (94,425)  (35,749)  2,992   4,065 

Net cash flow from investing activities  (1,129,662)  (999,327)  (513,289)  (759,564)  (321,822)  (120,332)  (195,349)  8,007   9,396   (17,192)

Net cash flow from financing activities  228,179   (242,526)  592,482   555,662   400,201   456,778   335,946   29,600   (5,337)  (3,558)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents  (953,879)  (381,992)  (354,391)  (18,712)  (25,984)  218,748   46,172   1,858   7,051   (16,685)

          

At a glance          

EPS (Rs.)  4.2   3.9   2.9   0.1   (16.2)  14.7   6.9   (6.4)  (1.6)  (4.3)

Interest cover (no.of times)  2.2   2.4   2.7   (0.1)  0.7   1.0   0.8   (3.2)  (0.1)  (1.6)

Net assets per share (Rs.)  41.3   37.5   33.7   30.8   24.1   47.8   38.4   10.8   17.2   18.6 

ROE (%)  11.8   11.0   9.7   (6.4)  (19.8)  13.7   17.9   (59.5)  (9.5)  (22.9)

Gearing (%)  47.4   41.0   41.1   24.9   70.7   62.0   30.5   37.8   29.5   32.3 

Current ratio (no.of times)  1.1   1.0   1.0   1.0   1.2   1.2   1.2   0.6   0.6   0.6 

Market price per share (Rs.)  30.1   24.5   23.0   65.0   386.8   75.0   79.5   8.0   11.3   10.8 



156

A
n
n
u
al R

ep
o
rt 2

0
1
3
/1

4

AWARDS AND
ACCREDITATIONS 

Accreditations 

Subsidiaries of MTD Walkers PLC has 

received following accreditations from 

the Institute of Construction Training and 

Development (ICTAD) for its performance in 

the construction industry:

Dredging and Reclamation 

ventilation and Air conditioning and 

Heavy steel fabrication 

Construction Association of Sri Lanka 

(NCASL) 

Subsidiary companies of MTD Walkers 

PLC are accredited with the following 

international standards pertaining to quality 

management, environment management 

and health and safety management:

ISO 9001:2008 (Quality Management 

System)

since February 2000

2006

(Pvt.) Ltd- since June 2012

ISO 14001:2004 (Environment 

Management System)

since July 2001

2014

OHSAS 18001:2007 (Occupational Health 

and Safety Management System)

since June 2013

2014

MTD Walkers PLC is privileged to have 

memberships in Chamber of Construction 

Industry (CCI), International Federation 

of Asian and Western Pacific Contractors 

Associations (IFAWPCA), Institute of 

Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL) and the 

membership of Institute of Construction 

Training and Development (ICTAD).
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Accolades 

Lanka (ECCSL) has recognized MTD 

Walkers PLC as a member of good 

standing and has been duly selected by 

the Board of Directors to all the rights 

and privileges of membership therein

7th oldest Company in Sri Lanka on the 

Corporate Heritage book published by 

LMD Magazine’s in the year of 2013 

Walkers as a top 100 revenue company 

for two consecutive years  

Awards 

award in the Construction and 

Engineering Category at the 49th Annual 

Report Ceremony organized by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Sri Lanka 

National Award for Construction 

Performance awarded by the 

Institute for Construction Training 

and Development (ICTAD) under the 

category of Civil Engineering 
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CIRCULAR TO 
SHAREHOLDERS

Notice of the meeting, Chairman’s Review, 

the Annual Report of the Board of Directors, 

the Statement of Accounts for the year 

ended 31st March 2014 and the Report of 

the Auditors are attached.

A shareholder appointing a proxy (other 

than Directors of the Company) to attend 

the meeting should indicate the proxy 

holder’s National Identity Card number on 

the form of proxy and request the proxy 

holder to bring his/her National Identity 

Card with him/her.

Please note that only registered 

shareholders and/or their proxy holders 

will be permitted to attend the meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD.

MTD WALKERS PLC

Prashanie Saroja Attygalle 

Company Secretary 

25th August 2014

Colombo.
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NOTICE OF
MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty 

Eighth Annual General Meeting of MTD 

Walkers PLC will be held at the Committee 

Room “A”of Bandaranaike Memorial 

International Conference Hall (BMICH) at 

Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07 at 

10.00 am on Monday, 22nd September 2014 

for the following purposes:

1) To receive and consider the Report 

of the Directors and Statement of 

Accounts for the year ended 31st  

March 2014 with the Report of the 

Auditors thereon.

2) To re-elect Dato’ Dr Azmil Khalili Bin 

Dato’ Khalid who retires by rotation at 

the Annual General Meeting in terms of 

Article 84 of the Articles of Association, 

as a Director of the Company.

3) To re-elect Mr Albert Rasakantha 

Rasiah who retires by rotation at the 

Annual General Meeting in terms of 

Article 84 of the Articles of Association, 

as a Director of the Company.

4) To re-elect Mr Hewawasamge 

Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne who 

retires by rotation at the Annual  

General Meeting in terms of Article 

84 of the Articles of Association, as a 

Director of the Company.

5) To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young; 

Chartered Accountants as Auditors of 

the Company for the ensuing year and 

to authorize the Directors to determine 

their remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

MTD WALKERS PLC

Prashanie Saroja Attygalle 

Company Secretary 

25th August 2014 

Colombo.

Note: 

A member entitled to attend and vote 

is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote and speak on  his/her behalf 

and such proxy need not be a member 

of the Company. The instrument 

appointing a  proxy is attached and 

must be deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company at No.18, St  

Michael’s Road, Colombo 3, not less 

than 48 (forty eight) hours before the 

time fixed for holding of the meeting.    
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FORM OF
PROXY 

The Board of Directors

MTD WALKERS PLC

No.18, St. Michael’s Road

Colombo 3.

I/We*..............................................................................……………………………………………………………………………………...of

.....................................................................................................................................................…………………………………...…..being a 

Member/ Members * of MTD Walkers PLC hereby appoint -

Dato’ Dr. Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid or failing him     

Mr Jehan Prasanna Amaratunga or failing him                                    

Mr Leong Yow Lee     or failing him                                         

Mr Keith George Cowling or failing him                                         

Mr Albert Rasakantha Rasiah    or failing him

Mr Niranjan Joseph De Silva Deva – Aditya or failing him

Mr Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne   or failing him                                       

Mr/Mrs/Miss………………………...……………………………………………………..…………. (NIC No…………………………….)  

of ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… as my/our*Proxy to vote as 

indicated hereunder for me/us* and on my behalf at the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 22nd 

September 2014 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereon:

                                                                                                                            

  FOR AGAINST

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statement and the Directors Report 

 for the year ended 31st March 2014                                                                      

2. To re-elect Dato’ Dr Azmil Khalili Bin Dato’ Khalid who retires by 

 rotation in terms of Article 84 of the Articles of Association as a                                    

 Director of the Company.     

3. To re-elect Mr Albert Rasakantha Rasiah who retires by rotation in terms

 of Article 84 of the Articles of Association as a Director of the Company

4. To re-elect Mr Hewawasamge Ravindranath Srilal Wijeratne who 

  retires by rotation in terms of Article 84 of the Articles of                                 

       Association as a Director of the Company

5. To re- appoint Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants as 

 Auditors of the Company and to authorize the Directors to           

 determine their remuneration. 

                          

                                     

       Signed this ……………………………..day of ……………………..Two Thousand and Fourteen.  

      Signature ………………………          National Identity Card No……………………………… 

                                                                      Share Folio No…….…………………………………….
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Note 

If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power-of-Attorney should accompany the completed Form of Proxy for 

registration, if such document has not already been registered with the Company.

Instructions as to Completion of Form of Proxy   

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. 

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Kindly complete the Form of Proxy by filling legibly the full name, NIC number and address of the Proxy Holder and also of the   

Shareholder appointing the Proxy Holder. Please sign in the space provided and fill in the date and NIC number.

4. Please indicate preference of your vote on each resolution in the space provided therefore. If in the view of the Proxy Holder there  

is doubt by reason of the way in which instructions in the Proxy have been completed, the Proxy Holder will vote as he / she think fit. 

5. In terms of Article 66 of the Articles of Association of the Company it is provided that;

 The instruction appointing a Proxy shall be in writing and 

(a) In the case of an individual shall be signed by him / her or his / her Attorney; and

(b) In the case of a corporation shall be signed either under its common seal or shall be signed by its Attorney or by an Officer on  

 behalf of the corporation.

6. To be valid, the completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, No.18, St. Michael’s Road,  

Colombo 03, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the holding of the meeting.

7. The shareholders and the proxy holders are kindly requested to bring this Annual Report, together with an acceptable form of   

identity.
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